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We are an international consultancy
providing expert advice upon:

the exploration
and production
i of energy and

other natural
resources

Energy

the development
of land, property
and infrastructure

Planning & Development

the management
of the environment
and the health

Environmental Management

and safety of people |

|

Local knowledge
international expertise

Successful partners
delivering quality results
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s An effective
international presence
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RPS

RPS employs around 4,500 people in the UK Treland
the Netherlands the United States Canada, Brazil
Africa Australia and Asia Qur truly intemational
presence allows us to undertake co-ordinated and
Integrated projects throughout the world

Our strategy has been to broaden our range of
services and our geographical spread Since the
beginning of 2009 we have undertaken projects in
over 120 countries across six continents

B RPS s a remarkable
business Whilst the world has
been n the gnps of financal
and economic turbulence

we have progressed calmly
and eflectively Our directors,
managers and staff at all

levels show tremendous skill
applcation and judgement

Brook Land
Chairman
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Integrated Services...
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RPS

...a source of difference

and strength

We deliver services intemationally across a broad range of

disciplines and sectors As such, we are uniquely placed to

provide a fully integrated response to our chents' needs

We have the knowledge and expenence to ensure projects

are developed In ways which are sensitive to their

environmental impacts

B RPS 15 working with the
Waterschap Scheldestromen
authority across the Dutch
province of Zeeland We will

be advising on the design,
procurement and construction
phases of flood defence and quay
Improvements over the next
four years across several major
estuanes and waterways

B Over the past year RPS has been
working closely with the Province

of Nova Scotia on a project to help
attract the interest of o and gas
companies looking to explore and
develop new terntones
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Key Performance Indicators 2010 2009
Revenue (£m) 4618 4439
Fee income (£m) 3933 3744
Profit before taxation® (£m) 480 525
Earmings per share* (basic) (p} 1579 1708
Operating cash flow {£m) 579 706
Total dividend per share {p) 483 420

*Ad|usted to add back the amorusation of acquired intangible assets arising on business
combinations of £5 5m (2009 £3 9m) and, in respect of EPS the one-off tax credit arising on

changes in Australian tax Law of £1 8m (2009 £nil)

Results Highlights

m strong management and diversity of activity and geography

enabled the Group to produce resilient results in markets which
remained challenging

almost two thirds of operating profit eamed in growth markets of
Energy and Australia,

conversion of profit (ebitda) to cash once again over 100%

balance sheet rematns strong with year end net bank borrowings
at £31 5m (2009 £32 8m) having spent £18 Om on acquisitions

committed bank facilities of £125m available until 2013
full year dividend increased by 15%
acquisitions made during the year performing well

since year end two further acquisitions EH! (announced
18 February) and Nautilus (announced 2 March)
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RPS

2010 Results

Results

Profit (before tax and amorusation of acquired ntangibles) was in Iine with market
expectations at £480 miflion (2009 £52.5 milhon} Our tax rate at 25 3% (2009
309%) was lower than normal due 1o a one off benefit ansing from changes in the tax
law relatng to acquistions n Australia Basic eamings per share (before amortisation
and this one off tax credit) were 1579 pence (2009 1708 pence} Group operating
profit (before amortisation) was £51 8 mitlon (2009 £55 3 millon) Unallocated central
costs were reduced to £5 | million (2005 £62 milion) leaving a total result for the
three segments of £570 millon (2009 £61 5 million) Our margins remain exemplary
for the sectors in which we operate The contnbution of each segment was

Bath Energy and Ernvaranmental

(em) w010 2003 Management were broadly flat year on

Energy 273 277 year Without the Macondo disastet in

Planning and the Guif of Mexaco Energy would have

Development made an increased contnbution Planning
- UKandIreland 108 156 and Development dechned overall even
- Australia 9.4 83 though the Austrahan result improved

202 239 | The sgnificant reduction in the UK and
Ireland sub-sepment of Planning and

Environmental Dovel ; A
Management 94 100 fivhe Orl:;rdﬂer\ was tGe pnmaryrcaETe
Total 570 615 of the reduction in Group profitability

This was caused by exceptionally difficult
trading conditions descnbed below

Our Energy actmties are very largely intemational in character In combination with
our Planning and Developrent (Australia) business we now have approaching two
thirds of our profits being generated cutside Europe This exposes us to higher growth
economies and better opportunities

Cash Flow, Funding and Dividend

2010 was anather year of good cash flow with over 100% of ebitda being converted
nto cash once agan Operating cash flow was £579 million (2009 £706 milion}
Our balance sheet remains strong and we have no defined benefit pension schemes
We have bank faclities of £125 rmilion avalable untl 2C13 and the cost of these
faclities remains at histoncally low levels Net bank borrowings at the year end were
£315 millon (2009 £32.8 million) after nvesting in acquisitions to the value of £180
millon (2009 £44 2 millon) We are well positioned to continue to fund the
Group's growth strategy

The Board continues to be confident about the Group's financial strength and 15
recommending a final dvdend of 252 pence per share payable on 28 May 2011 10
shareholders on the register on 15 Apnl 2011 The total dvidend for the full year will
be 483 pence per share an increase of 5% (2009 420 pence per share} Qur
dividend has nsen at about this rate for |7 consecutive years
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B RPS s one of the world's leading
suppliers of independent ol and gas
consultancy encompassing all aspects of
geoscience, engineenng and commercial
advice Our projects include reserve
valuations for IPO and pre-IPO fund
raising, M & A due diigence and
support and Expert Services to a wide
range of chents :ncluding major financial
institutions and ol companies alike
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Energy

RPS is a global, multi-disciplinary consultancy, providing
integrated technical, commeraal and project management
support In the fields of geoscience, engineenng and HS&E
to the energy sector Our aim 1s to help clients develop
their energy resources across the complete life-cycle,
combining our technical and commercial skills with an
extensive knowledge of environmental and safety issues

B RPS adwised KNOC in its
acquisition of Dana Petroleum by
providing a review of production,
development and exploration
assets as part of their technical due
dilgence,  what was the largest
ever hostile acquisibon by a South
Korean firrn Our intermational
reputation as an expenenced
independent global reserves auditor
helped successfully conclude
negotiations about the value of
Dana s assets

B RPS has successfully completed
a deep water Regional Acquisition
Programme campaign offshore
USA. RPS was commissioned to
implement a full-scale visual and
acoustic montonng — the world s
largest deployment of this kind
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B Since 2001 RPS has been involved
in more than 250 onshore and
offshore wind wave and tdal energy
projects, Including the world's largest
offshore wind project the London
Array (which when completed

will provide approximately 25% of
London's electraty supply) and one
of the worid's largest onshore
schemes in Texas

O 2010
W 2009
273
173
27.7 18.6
Fee income Profit* Margin %
(Ems} {Ems)

Energy

Average number
of employees

Number of employees
Days absent (%)

Average length
of service (years}

Working part ume (%)

Retenuon rate (%)*

*excluding redundancies

2010 | 2009
637 | 619
15 1
56 | 49
B8 0
92 88

Age profile

Employees aged under 25 (%)
Employees aged 25-29 (%)
Employees aged 30-49 (%)
Employees aged 50+ (%)

2010 | 2009

4 4
14 13
47 49
35 34

*before amortsaton of acquired intangible assets of £2 Im (2009 £) Bm} and aker reorgamsacon costs of £0 3m (2009 £0 Im)
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RPS

Energy

We provide intemationally recognised
consultancy services to the ol and gas
industnes from bases in the UK USA
Canada, Brazl, Austraha the Middle East
and Asia Projects are undertaken In many
other countnes ncluding China India West
Afnca and the Arctic As current events

in Libya demonstrate, much of the world s
ol reserves are found in difficult working
environments In addition, we are market
leaders in the provision of envircnmental
and engineenng adwvice to the UK offshore
renewable energy industry

Global investment 1n exploratien and
production slowed significantly during the
second quarter of 2009 and remained

at a subdued level for the rest of that
year Market conditions in the first part
of 2010 showed a modest improverment
over the latter part of 2009 However,
the explosion on 20 Apnl 2010 of the
Deepwater Honzon ng on the Macondo
prospect resulted in a moratonum on
deep water dnlling in the Gulf of Mexico
This adversely affected actvty levels

in our US operations for the rest of
2010 Elsewhere in the world towards
the end of the year we expenenced
improved client confidence particutarly
as the ol pnce increased and investment
in exploration for unconventional
hydrocarbon resources gathered pace
However the level of demand did not
imprave sufficiently to remove the pnong
pressure from our clents which had built
dunng 2009

National C1l Companies were consistently
active and have become an increasingly
important part of our portfolio of

clients In addition our reputation withm
the financial community in respect of
deterrmination of ol and gas reserves for
reporting purposes, asset evaluaton and
in support of corporate activity continued
to develop dunng the year Notably, we
adwvised KNOC in rts successful bid for
Dana Petroleum

Qutlook

Trading towards the end of 2010
suggests that a sustainable recovery
may be underway 1n our Energy business
The high and nsing ol pnce seems to
be stmulating additional actvity Qur
business developrrent initiatives in Brazil
and the Middle East are showing signs
of success and our exposure 10 new
exploration areas such as the Arctic
should assist our development

Many of the projects in which we are
involved are of a long term nature
reflecting the complexity of identifying
and secunng scurces of oil and gas in
increasingly challenging environments This
prowides a solhd underpin for cur business
Qur reputation as prowviders of asset and
corporate valuations was enhanced last
year and we believe these markets are
likely to reman a good source of fee
income New opportuniues for example
In relation to unconventional forms of
gas and the infrastructure they require,
are continuing to develop particularly

In respect of shale gas in North Amenca
and coal seam gas v Australia

The moratonum on deep water dnling In
the Gulif has ended and the first licence to
dnil was awarded recently We currently
antiopate a significant level of acuvity to
develop in the second half The need to
improve safety within the industry globally
has already resulted in additional safety and
nsk ranagement commissions YWe envisage
this trend continuing

The acquisition of Boyd in August 15 as
expected supporting the development of
our cil and gas activittes in Canada and
INcreases our exposure to the attractive
intemational rining sector

Since the year end we have completed
two further acquisitions Evans Hamitten
{announced on 18 February) provides
similar services to the offshore exploration
and production industry in the Amencas
as our successful Metocean business

does in Australia Nautitus (announced

on 2 March) takes us into the technical,
geosciences traiming market, which we see
having good growth opportunities as the
need for speciaiist traning increases across
the oil and gas sector
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B RPS 15 acting as envirenmental
consultant for a major project

to revitahise Perth s Swan River
shoreline This Department of
Pianreng intiative will connect the
city to the nver and deliver strong
economic and social benefits
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Planning & Development

RPS 1s a leading planning-led multi-disciplinary consultancy

in the UK, Ireland and Australa We offer a unique range

of professional and technical services In all aspects of

planning and development Acknowledged as experts n

planning, transportation and environmental assessment,

we have a detalled understanding of all relevant sectors

of the economy

@ RPS has been appointed by the
Cornb Partners (Shell Stato! &
Vermihon) to undertake the Town
Planning Engineenng Environment
Impact Statement and most
significartly the local Stakeholde:
Engagement aspects of an onshore
pipekne rerouting in Mayo Ireland

W RPS has secured planning consent
for 2 major new Vodafone call

centre in the UK, having previously
assisted Amazon in developing its UK
dstnbution centre
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RPS

Planning & Development

Within these businesses we provide
consultancy services in respect of town

and country planning, bulding surveying,
landscape and urban design, transport
planming and environmental assessment. We
remain leaders in this market in the UK and
Irefand and Austraba,

Our 2010 results reflect the challenging
nature of a number of the markets in
which we operate but also the high quality
managernent we have brought to bear,
enabling us 1o maintan a respectable retum
despite demand falling significantly and
considerable pnang pressure from clients.

The economic downtum began to be
felt in parts of these businesses In the
last part of 2008 We moved quickly

1o reduce capacity and costs, a process
which continued throughout 2009

and in 2010 particularly as the effects

of the global financiat cnsis spread to

the Australia property market. Our
commercial development chents, affected
by market uncertainties and a reduced
ability to access credit, significantly reduced
actwty levels and in consequence, the
support needed from consultants Both
these charactenstics were apparent,
intemationally throughout 2010 In

the UK this effect was exacerbated by
uncertainty surrounding the run up to
both the General Election and the new
Govermment's spending review

In Austratia commercial developers became
increasingly short of appropnate finance,
and so operated at reduced levels desprte
the overall health of therr economy, refaive
to others We have however, successfully
expanded our support to the energy

infrastructure secior The acquisition of
Aquaterra in May significantly strengthened
our actmties In the water and mining
sectors where we see good growth
opportunties Aquaterras main operating
centre in Perth has relocated into our new
Perth office, which s now the Group's
largest. Floods in Queensland in both
January/February and December had a
significant adverse effect

In Bntan we were involved in a number
of prnvate sector infrastructure projects
and are increasing our involverment in
this market, as it seems relatively robust,
particularly in respect of energy related
projects The earfy effects of reduced
public expenditure began to be felt by
the year end, particularly in Scotland

Our businesses in both the Republic of
Ireland and Northemn Ireland depend
sigruficantly on public sector investment. The
weak, state of public finances in the Republic
contnued to put pressure on our business
throughout the year, requinng further cost
cutting In Northern Ireland cur business
progressed reasonably well untl the effects
of UK public finance constrants began to
appear In the last part of the year

In our Intenm Management Statement
dated 28 October 2010 we announced that
in order to ensure a robust Planning and
Developrment business we were merging
our Brush Insh and Northern Irefand
businesses. The integration process was
successfully completed before the year end
and accordingly we are reporting the results
of one business Planning and Development
UK and lreland for 2010 In order to provide
appropnate year an year COMpansons,

business segment information has been
revised for pnor periods as shown in the
announcement made by the Group on
3 February 201 |

Qutlook

As dentifung sources of energy, dimate
change and other environmental 1ssues grow
i importance the competitive advantage
we denve in these markets from our broad
range of integrated services should continue
to increase

We retan long term optimism about the
potential for our business in Australia This
15 underpinned by public and private sector
investment in nfrastructure, particularly
related to gas exploration and other
natural resources projects, as well as the
opportunities we now have in the water
and mining sectors However the effects of
the recent extreme flooding and Cyclone
Yasi in Queensland are likely to be fek

for some while and will affect the first

half results of Planning and Development
(Austraha) sgnificantly Eventually we should
benefit from recovery related wark, much of
which will be done under the control of the
newly created Queensland Reconstruction
Authonty It remains urclear however,
when we will move from adverse to
beneficial effects. The Board s hopeful that
a more normal workdoad will retum dunng
the course of the second half, as our dients
re-establish project requirements and we
become involved in the early stages of the
reconstruction work.

Untl our commercial development clients
in the UK expenence less economic
uncertanty and have better access to credt,
achieving organic growth will reman difficult
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and further setbacks are possible We are
therefore focussed on developing additronal
work with private sector infrastructure
providers, particularly in the energy sector

In those parts of the ecorcmy mere
dependent on the public sector we are hkely
1o continue to face uncertanty untl the
effect of expenditure cuts becomne clearer

The integration of our Republic of Ireland
and Northem Ireland businesses with the
Brtish Planning and Development business
has been well receved by staff and dients,
has proceeded well and 1s already beginning
to open up new domestic and ntermational
apponriunities Following the economic

and political turbulence in Ireland In recent
months it s to be boped there will now
be a penod of stability which will allow the
economy to begin to recover

W RPS provided architectural,
engineenng and highway design
services for this [00000m? high-
spec, high security facility for the
Miristry of Defence

The building achieved a BREEAM
Excellent rating in ine with the
Governments agenda for
sustainable development

2010 2009
Feeincome Profit*  Margin Fee Income  Profit*  Margin
(£ms) (Ems) % (Ems) {Ems) %
UK & Ireland 1052 108 103 UK & Ireland 1277 156 122
Austraha 652 94 14 4 Australia 332 83 249
Total 1704 202 e 9 Total 160.9 239 149

* before amortisason of acquired ntangible assets of £3 Im (2002 £} 7m) and after reorgansation costs of £07m (2009 (2 8m)

Planming & Development

Average number
of employees

Mumber of employees
Days absent (%)

Average length
of service (years)

Working part tirme (%)
Retenuon Rate (%)*

*excluding redundancies

2010 | 2009
2,349 (2,277
17 14
58| 45

7 i1

a5 94

Age profile 2010 | 2009

Employees aged under 25 (%) 7 Y]

Employees aged 25-29 (%) 19 21
Employees aged 30-49 (%) 60 55
Employees aged 50+ (%) 14 14
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W RPS won the award for Best Water
Consultancy 2010 at the Edie Awards
for Environmental Excellence The
Awards seek to celebrate the years
rmost successful green innovators and
environmental breakthroughs

W RPS played a crircal role as the key
contract partner to Dwr Cymru n Wales
throughout the freeze and subsequent
thaw dunng Chnstmas 2010 We were
able to deploy wital resource at very
short notice in support of our chent
dunng this extremely challenging penod
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Environmental Management

During the course of 40 years' involvement in
environmental management, we have gained deep nsight
into the commercial challenges as well as the political,
ethical and legal 1ssues facing our clients Professional
advice In this sector has to be technically excellent and
commercially appropriate, but also politically aware and
culturally sensrtive

B RPS s working with Crossrail
as the sole provider of Asbestos
and Hazardous matenals
consultancy services

W RPS provides consultancy
advice to prevent and control
major accident hazards For
redundant nuclear fuel storage
ponds we have developed

a genenc safety case approach
to allow nspections and
ntervention work to be
conducted safely and
cost-effectively
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W RPS prowides occupational heatth
services to a range of organisations This
includes employees of the Foreign and
Commonwealth Office on a woridwide
basis for whom health promotion
survelltance and adwice 15 delivered
through a heaith lne’ call centre

1 2010 Environmental Management
M 2009

Average number
of employees

Number of employees
Days absent (%)

Average length
of service {years)

Warking part ume (%)
100 14.9 Retenton rate (%)*

Fee Income Profit* Margin %

-
I
(Ems) (Ems) excluding redundancies

wte | 1000
1,275 |1 262
28 28
54 56
12 12
Bl 82

Age praofile

Employees aged under 25 (%)
Employees aged 25-29 (%)
Employees aged 30-49 (%)
Employees aged 50+ (%)

10 | 2009
12 12
e 16
Sl 51
21 21

*before amorusation of acquired intangible assets of £04m (2009 £03m) and after reorganisation costs of £0 3m (2009 £04m}
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RPS

Environmental Management

This business prowdes consultancy Qutlook

services in respect of environmental Much of the work we do in these
sciences health, safety, nsk and water markets Is regulatory driven and to a
management 1n the UK and the degree non-discretionary enabling us
Netherlands to maintain levels of activity, although

we expect pricng pressure to continue
We do not anticipate a particularly good
year in the Netherlands, but are well
positioned in refation to the new round
As expected, our UK water activities of investment in the UK water industry
remained relatively subdued through much

of the year as our chents shifted attenuon

1o the new regulatory cycle Towards the

end of the year we saw some signs that the

new round of investment I1s getting

underway The Dutch economy has

suffered a senious recession, but we have

been well positioned to benefit from

Government stimulus expenditure related

to water and transport infrastructure

During the course of 2010 and particularly

when the Dutch government introduced a

consolidation budget our private sector

clients became more cautious This held

back our performance towards the end

of the year Qur health and safety activities

in the UK are largely in regulated markets,

this protects volume to an iImportant

degree, but exposes us to pricing pressure

The acquisition of Health i Business

in February supported our growing

occupational hezlth business It has been

ntegrated successfully and performed well

Qur nuclear safety actvties continued to

trade well as demand held up in a highty

regulated market, short of the specialist

skills we provide

This 1s another good set of results with
exemplary margins being sustained despite
significant pricing pressure from chents
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RPS

Group Prospects

We have come through the exceptionally challenging circurmstances of the

last twa years in good shape and hope to resume growth i the current year
Howaver, we face continuing uncertainties in Queenstand and in understanding
our clients' responses to reduced public expenditure in a number of countries
We remain focussed therefore, on contnuing to mprove the efficiency of our
businesses, although enabling our employees to recover some of the ground
they have lost in remuneration over the last two years has been important at
the beginring of 2011

RPS remains well positioned n markets of fundamental importance to the
global economy these continue to have sigrificant long term potential We
believe that our strategy of bullding mult-disciplinary businesses in each of
the territones in which we operate to be attractive and achievable and we
will therefore, continue to seek acquisition opportunities Our balance sheet
Is strong encugh to continue to support this strategy

The main drivers of growih for the Group in 2011 are hkely to be steadity
improving ol and gas exploration and production markets and activity related
to providing energy infrastructure Environmental management is likely to

grow provided the Duich market does not deteriorate much further Recovery
i commercal praperty and public sector infrastructure markets seems lkely
to take longer

We continue to operate in unpredictable circumstances Overall however, we
currently expect a modestly improved performance in 201

rpsgroup com




Key Business Drivers:

m the commercial advantage our clients can
achieve from sustainable development of land
and buildings,

m the sustainable provision of infrastructure
including airports, roads, water, waste, public
transport and power,

m soclety's need to secure, In a safe way,
adequate supplies of energy from
environmentally acceptable sources,

m the need to manage environmental and
health & safety nsks as well as therr related
legislation/regulation and the arnising staff,
customer and governance pressures,

m soclety's need to deal with climate change
and global warming
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RPS

Operations
Employees E

The Group remains committed to creating an employment environment which
will attract retain and motivate employees of high calibre Emphasis i1s placed
upon personal development to meet both current and future needs Employee
communication and consultation 1s encouraged at all tevels of the business The
criteria for selection and promotion are the individual's suitability for the position
offered based on their qualfications, experience, skiils and abilities Business
units manage the remuneration of staff within the guidelines of approved annual
budgets We have appropriate human resource structures and systems managed
by personnel professionals throughout the businesses and countries in which

we operate RPS was awarded first place in Britan's Top Employers 2010 by the
Corporate Research Foundation (CRF) Institute in association with the Daily
Telegraph and HR Management CRF has been given special recogniucn by the
EU Commussion for its outstanding contribution to employer best practice in
several EU countries

The Company operates share incentive plans on an international basis These
are open to the majority of the Group's employees and enable employees to
purchase RPS shares with the Company providing a matching share contribution
The Company also operates & Performance Share Plan in which more senior
employees particpate and which offers the potential to buld a significant equity
interest over a number of years

Operating Structure

Our operating structure has developed as the Group has grown in size and
complexity Changes are driven by the need to achieve the correct balance
between the autonomy that enables our businesses to operate in a flexible and
respansive fashion whilst ensuring transparency and accountabiity throughaut the
Group The Group s spht into a number of operating divisions which focus on the
pnncipal markets that we serve both by sector and geography Qur smaller business
units focus on specalised areas but are accountable to the relevant divisional
management board Underpinning this structure 1s a set of clear obligatons in terms
of reporting and authonities that operates throughout the Group Our principal
businesses in both the UK and overseas employ appropriately qualfied accounting,
human resource and other support staff In the recent period of economic
uncertainty this structure has enabled the extra attention to detail that 15 vital to
ensure operational efficiency and careful cost management Dunng the course of
2010 we have developed the structure of our Australian business and its Board in
arder to enable the further expansion of thns business In addition our Bntish, Insh
and Nerthern Insh Planning and Development businesses have now been merged,
this will faciitate more effioent management, marketing and resource allocation
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Operations

in addition to retaining appropriate
contral, the Group provides support

to the sales and marketing activities

of our businesses through its business
information urut which 1s alse responsible
for the maintenance and development
of the Group’s intranet and website

We have continued to invest in
information technology to faclitate better
comrunication and flow of nformation
bath internally and externally Notably
during 2010 we installed telepresence
video conference systerns in the UK

and Australia in order to improve
commurications

Equal Opportunities

in Employment

RPS provides equal opportunities for all
its employees and potential employees
regardless of their sex sexual omentation
trans-gender status, religion or belef
marttal status, civil partnership status,
pregnancy, age disability, race, colour,
nationality, national or ethnic origing

The policy apphes to the process of
recruitment and selection, promotion,
training, conditions of work pay and
benefits and to every other aspect

of employment

Training and Continuous
Professional Development

RPS 1s committed to the training,
education and development of its
employees to increase effectiveness
develop potential and ensure adequate
succession planning

Dwvisional Directors their appointed
project managers and professional

traners are responsible for the
management of training and for the
verification of technical competence for
praoject personnel in accordance with
our quality management system

We aim 1o identify and prowde

training education and development
for employees, in order that they <an
develop and apply this knowledge to
greater and more demanding roles in
the future Wherever possible we try to
identify successors to key posts within
the organisation as part of our ongoing
succession management policy

Prior to external adverusement any
avaiable posts are published on the
JoinRPS com careers website and
promoted internally via the Group's
Intranet Central to identifying our
training and educational needs 15 staff
apprassal This activity 1s concerned

with developing staff by identifying and
meeting performance and training needs
as well as developing tndwidual potential

Appraisals are intended to complement
the standard staff induction programme
on Company pelicy and procedures
which covers topics including safety

or equipment handling and invotves
assessmenis of competency on a more
adrministrative level Staff apprasal 1 a
continuous process and 1s not kmited
to formal meeuings However formal
appraisal meetings take place in many
parts of the Group at least once a year

RPS 1s a recognised commergal training
provider in a number of specific technical
fields and 1s cerufied by such external
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bodies as CCNSG (ECITB) on site safety
courses RPS, for example, operates a
CIWEM approved structured training
scheme for its chartered water and
envirenmental engineers and MICE

and MIE| approved CPD schemes for
avil engineers in the UK and Ireland
Employees are encouraged to take on
active involvernent with professional and
industry bodies In Austraha, for example
employees are significant contributors to
the Society of Petroleurn Engneers, The
Urban Development Institute and the
Property Counal of Australia Our aim 1s
to help the development of indimiduals
througheout their empleyment with the
Company by underpinning their skills
and prefessional ethics whilst broadening
their business knowledge One of the
key objectives of the scheme 1s the
long-term commitment to CPD of all
exsting staff within the organisation
Thereby, indviduals are always able

to demonstrate technical experience

Group

Average number Jot0 z00%
of employees

Number of empleyees* 4372 |4254
Days absent (%) 2 18
Average length

of service {years) 6| 54
Working part ume {%) 9 i
Retencion rare (%)* 84 90
Age profile

Employees aged under 25 (%) 8 9
Employees aged 25-29 (%) 17 19
Empioyees aged 30-49 (%) 55 53
Employees aged S0+ (%) 20 19

*excluding redundancies

in specific sectors, such as the water
industry, or In relevant aspects of
environmental consultancy

Academic Bursaries

Dunng 2010 RPS continued 115 long term
practice of awarding academic bursaries
to students studying relevant courses

at particular colleges and universities

as well as supporting staff through

further academic study In doing so RPS
supported academic study and/or engoing
research at the universities and colleges
listed below

m  Unwersity College London

a Impenal College,
University of London

m  Queen Marys College
University of London

m  Birkbeck College,
University of London

m  Oxford Brooks Uriversity
m  Unwersity of Gloucester

m  University of Central England,
Birmingham

m  Birmingham City University

®  South Birmingham College

s Stourbnidge College Birmingham
s University of Wolverhampton

m  University of Coventry

m University of Loughborough

m  University of Derby

m  De Montfort University
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a  Nottingham Trent University,
m  University of Nottingham
8  University Lincoln

s Lincoln College

Angha Ruskin University

m  University of Southampton

m  University of Manchester

m  University of Salford

m  Sheffield Hallam University

m  Unwersity of Northumbra

»  University of York

B The Open University, Milton Keynes
w  Unversity College Cardiff

m  Univeraity of Wales Newport

s Unwersity of Glamargan

® 5t Andrews University

®  Strhing University

8  Naper University Edinburgh

m  Aberdeen College of Commerce
n  Queens University Belfast

m  University of Ulster

lreland

m  University College Dublin

Trinty College, Dubtin
n  Dublin City University

National University of Ireland Galway

The Netherlands
®  Technical Uriversity of Delft
a InHolland College, Rotterdam

m Utrecht College

Austraha

= University of New England

m  Gniffiths University

»  Queensland University of Technology
m  Unwversity of the Sunshine Coast

m  Swinburne University

a  Curtin Unwersity

Growth and Funding

Desgite current economic arcumstances
RPS operates in markets which are
generally attractive and expanding with
good long-term prospects but which
are fast changing We need therefore

to keep our range of services and the
way we market and delver them under
continuous review The Board beheves
that the long-term health and growth

of the Group will be best secured by
ensuring that RPS s, and 1s percewved by
clients and staff to be, a market leader in
each of our business areas QOur corporate
strategy 1s designed to achieve this

We endeavour to dehver long-term
shareholder value and have, therefore,
to balance annual earnings growth with
investment in beth our existing chents
staff and products and the development
of our service offering and capability

Report and Accounts 2010




The acquisiion strategy RPS has pursued
over the last two decades has brought
considerable benefit to shareholders,
chents and staff The companies acquired
have enabled us to bulld strong positicns
in a number of markets This has included
the creation of a substantial business in
the energy sector This, in turn, enables us
to offer a broader, tugher quality service
to our clients and attractive employrment
to staff and potental recrusts The
financial performance of the companies
which have been acquired has increased
the Group's growth The Board sees the
maintenance of this element of the
strategy as being of importance to the
continued growth of the Group and will
consider more significant acquisitions, as
well as making acquisitions outside the
countnes in which we currently operate

At the year end the Group had net bank
borrowings of £31 5 millon {Note 24)
RPS normally generates sufficient free
cash to fund rts working capital and
caprtal expenditure requirements
Additional cash resources are therefore
only needed in order to pursue the
Group s acquisition strategy

The Board believes the Group's current
bank facihties that include a £125 million
revohang credit facility (Note 14) are
adequate for current purposes but
would be prepared o increase them in
order to make appropriate investments

Dividend Policy

For many years our dividend per

share has grown at an average annual
compound rate of about 15% Our
ability to maintain this level of growth
will depend upon the scale of earnings
growth, the nature and scale of future
acguisiticns and how that investment 1s
funded The final dividend will normally
be greater than the interm payment

Shareholder Value

The Board manages the Group in order
to achieve good levels of growth in
shareholder value on a consistent long-
term basis It 15 however, recognised that
this can only be achieved by providing a
competitive service which adds value to
our chents' organisaticns and offering an
attractive working environment and
career prospects to our staff Striking
this balance whilst also respecting our
responsibility to society at large 1s the
main task facing the Board Current
economic arcumstances make the
achievement of this balance even

more challenging

Corporate Governance

RPS operates to a strong system of
governance in arder to safeguard

the interests of its shareholders The
structures and policies that are in place
to achieve this are set out on pages 44
to 59
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Risk Management

RPS Group Risk Analysis m
RPS supphes a wide range of services to many sectors of the economy in a

significant number of countres This gives nse to a range of potential risks that need

to be ndividually recognised, assessed and effectively managed The management

of these nsks I1s not separated from the business, but 1s treated as an integral part

of the way we operate A key role of the Executive Directors is to assess the nisks

to which the Group may be exposed, to report matenal nsks to the Board and to
recommend measures for their mitigation

The Group has well-established and embedded systems of intemal controls and nsk
management that 1s designed to safeguard shareholders’ investment, as well as the
Group's persennel, assets and reputation Whilst the Group Board has overall
respensibiity for the Group's system of internal control and for reviewing its
effeciiveness, it 15 the role of management to implement policies relating to nisk

and control

The principal nsks identified by the Group can be descnbed under the following
categones

B Business Strategy - the nsk of not delivenng the Group s long-term strategy The
Group's pnnapal nisks include loss of competitive position and strategic nsks in
relation to specfic activities

m  Business Continuity - the nsk that 1n the event of an adverse occurrence the
business operations will not be able to operate The main nsks are falure of
IT systems ang the recrutment and retention of key stafl afthough in 2010 we
have been affected by the cessation of dnlfing in the Gulf of Mexico following
the Macondo spill and the beginning of catastrophic flooding n Queensland

B FAnancal and Commercial - the nsk of performance falling short of expectations
including the reputational nsk inked to quality of work

®  Legal and Compliance - the nsk of faling to comply with all relevant legslaton
and regulations as well as liabilities ansing from trading acuvities which are not
covered by professional indemnity insurance

W Health, Safety and Environment - the risk related to the safety of staff clients
sub-contractors members of the public and the environment

Business Strategy

The Group's strategy seeks te ensure continuous Improvernent in the range and
quahty of our services and our financial performance by

W operating in markets where we can add value to our clients’ activities,

W endeavounng to achieve leadershup in those markets, and
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B making acquisitions of quality
businesses in order to extend our
expertise and geographical presence

Successful iImplementation of the strategy
requires the Board to identify appropnate
markets and how to operate in them
successfully Each year the Board sets
itself a senes of specific objectives and
pnonties Progress against these is
measured on a regular basis

The Executive Committee reviews and
has to approve all acquisitions before

any binding comritment 1s made
Normally in respect of acquisitions with an
enterpnse value In excess of £20 million,
full Group Board approval 1s required
pnor to any binding commitrment being
made In the recent economic chmate,
however, the Group Board has been
considenng all acquisitions

The Executives have developed
comprehensive methods to evaluate
potental acquisitions, including the legal
framework within which busimesses are
acquired and methods of integration

Business Continuity

Faure to recruit and retain qualfied and
talented staff can disrupt the Group's
ability to win new contracts and/or
execute contracts effectively

Each of the Group's businesses has as

a management pnonty, the successful
implemenitabion of a recrutment and
retention strategy that 15 appropnate to the
markets in which they operate At Group
level advice 1s provided to the businesses

about recrutment techniques, remuneration
strategies and people management. In
addition share schemes are in place to

assist staff motivation and retention

The Executive Directors have overall
responsibility for the develepment of human
resource pohicies in the businesses for which
they are responsible

RPS Technology Services (RPSTS) manages
all the Group's IT systems although some
specific functions are carmed out locally on
site Each year RPSTS produces a plan for
the improvement of the Group s systems
The Board approves that plan and allocates
the appropnate budget The plan includes
measures designed to ensure the reliability
and restience of the Group’s systems

The fact that the Group has operations in
a large number of locations increases its
ability to withstand events which cut power
and communications, cause equipment
malfunction or result from theft

Events In the Gulf of Mexico and
Queensland reminded the Board in 2010
that our business can be adversely affected
by natural and man made disasters which
cannot be antiipated and which are not
controllable by RPS In both cases our
response has been measured and served
te hmit impacts on our staff company
assets and our financial performance
However, in both those cases the financiat
impact was significant There was no
addiwonal speafic pre-planning which
could have been done which would have
lessened the impact matenalty
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Finanaial and Commeraal
Management

The financial management of the Group
15 undertaken within the framework of
the operating structure that 1s descnbed
on page 25 Business units are treated
as separate entities for the purposes of
budgeting and accounting

Each business unit mantains a business
plan which defines the activities and scope
of business to be conducted The budgets
quantfy the expectations for the Group
The plans {Including budgets) are agreed
with the Group Board The businesses

n the UK are supported by centrally
managed accounting and personnel
functions Qur overseas businesses have
their own accounting and personnel
functions RPS has a detaled financal
reporting management system which
incorporates checks and reviews financial
madelling, accountability and transparency
at every level

Dunng the recent financial cnsis and
economic recession changes have been
made to the planning and budgeting
processes These have been successiully
designed to reduce resources and
processes with a high degree of
uncertainty enabhng focus to be
maintaned on work winning and delvery

Qperational staff have rno access to the
underiying processing of transactions
Invoices from suppliers are approved by
the Operational Directors and are sent
to the finance function for processing and
payment. Remittances from clients are
receved by the finance function

Segregation of duties within the finance
team wself and between the offices

and the accounting function ensures
accountability and sound financral practice
at every level

Business unut and office financial results
are reviewed monthly by relevant boards
and directors This detailed review,
together with the chacking and
reconcilation work done by the
accounting team ensures the high degree
of scrutiny required to minimise the
possibility of mistakes, rregulanty or fraud
remaning undetected

The Groups Executive Committee,

which compnises the Group's Executive
Directors and the Company Secretary,
meets at least once a month and discusses
newly emerging nsks as they occur The
minutes of these meetings are provided
to the Non-Executive Directors

The RPS Board moniters the Group s
financial performance on a monthty
basis using the detaled budgets as the
benchmark. Future performance 1s
estimated by reference to forward order
books, although the nature of most
contracts means that such forecasting
cannot be comptetely accurate and

the degree of imprecision cannot be
statistically tested

The Groups financial instruments
compnse cash, bank loans and tems such
as recevables and payables that anse
directly from its operations The main
purpose of these instruments 1s to provide
finance for the Group's operations

Risk Management

The Group reports its results in sterling
but has operations i Australia, lreland,
the Metherlands, USA Canada, Malaysia
Singapore and Brazl that have functional
currencies other than stering As a
result the Group's balance sheet income
staterment and statement of canselidated
income can be affected by moverment in
the exchange rate between sterling and
the functional currencies of the overseas
operanons The Groun daoes not hedge
such translation exposures

Where operations have part of their trade
in currences other than their functionat
currency they endeavour where possible
to match the currency of revenues and
cost of sales The Group uses foreign
exchange contracts and loans to manage
transactional nsks for commercial but not
accounting purposes

It has been and remains the Group's
polcy that financial instruments are not
used for speculative purposes

The Group has strong review procedures
for monitonng and controling cash flows
and funding requirements This includes
the production of cash flow projections
and the reporting and review of dally cash
collecuions against targets

The mtemal audrt function 15 undertaken
by the Group financial accounting team
as part of ts other functions Given the
current structure of the Group the Board
and the Audit Committee consider that

a separate internal audit function 15 not

at present required Dunng the year the
Executive Committee performed a fult
review of intemal controls within the




Risk Managernent

Group the detaills of which were reported
to the Audit Commuttee The Board
recognises that control nsks increase
dunng the integration of newly acquired
businesses and dunng this penod montors
closely the status of the systems and
commercial integration

RPS 15 a multi-disciphnary Group
operating across intemational boundanes
with a broad base of clients and skifled
professional employees Comrespondingly
and consistent with its size and
complexity, the Group has a large number
of contractual relationships 'n the
Directors’ view, however, there is no
single contract or client relationship which
1s essential to the Group s business

Complance, Litigation

and Insurance

It 1s essential that RPS complies with
prevailing legistavon and with the terms
of its contracts with clients stafl and
supphers In order to ensure this the
Group has in place a senes of quality
rmanagerent systems

In appropnate parts of its business RPS
maintans and implements documented
Quality Management Systems which
satisfy, as a minimum, the requirements of
ISO 3001 2000 through the

@ documenting of procedures to control
the quality of services,

& mamntaning records to ¢control and
show compliance with quahty and
clent reguirements,

B recording the implementation of
correchive measures necessary to
ensure the quality of service provided,

W taking appropnate preventative
measures to improve guahty
and minimise the possibility of
unsatisfactory service, and

B monitenng the quality management
systern in operation at each office
at reguiar intervals in order to
ensure its continuing and mproving
effecuveness

Formal certification to 1SO 9001 2000
standard 1s a required procedure for

some aspects of RPS business therefore a
number of RPS' offices in the UK Ireland
and the Netherdands are certified te 15O
9001 Ofiices in North Amenca and
Australia have quality systems that are
based on formal procedures that have been
developed in line with ISO 900! guidelnes.

Those RPS offices providing environmental
menitonng and analytical services hold
external accreditations from addiional
qualty assurance schemes Qualty
accreditations held by indmidual RPS
offices include those externally audited

by UKAS, Aquacheck, RICE UK NEQAS
and the UK Health and Safety Executive s
WASP scheme

In Ireland our offices are quality accredited
through the NSAI (Nauonal Standards
Authonty of Ireland) and $GS and for
Safety Management through the NISO
(National insh Safety Orgarusation)
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However, even when these systems work
well 1ssues can anse which may give nse
tc Iiigation in which RPS needs to
participate There aie procedures in place
for managing such Iitigation The Group
also has extensive insurance cover in place
to ensure against such losses and potential
losses A range of policies are in place, the
prncpal of which relate to professional
indemnity, employers. public and third
party liabilty

Health and Safety

The health and safety performance of the
Group 15 fundamental 1o RPS operations
worldwide Safeguarding the employee’s
weli-being s of paramount importance
with responsibility resting with the Board
This responsibility 15 shared wath the

local management boards within the
organisation and 1s passed down to each
manager and employee

The Board sets the policy and objectives
for health and safety management

The Company Secretary oversees
implermentation of the health and safety
management within the Group Health
and safety perfermance s reported at
Dwisional Board meetings An analysis of
accidents and incidents s presented at
every Group Board meeting

The Board requires that each business
provides and mantains safe working
conditions sutable equipment and
resources 1o implement safe systems of
work to protect employees contractors,
visitors and other people who could be
affected by the Group s activities

Comphance with legislation in all the
countnes where activities are camed out
15 mandatory although wherever possible
the Group aims to surpass mimum
standards and develop best-practice
within the industry

Each business in the Group has appointed
health and safety professionals to
implement appropnate management
systems QHSAS 18001 15 an
intemationally recognised standard

for heatth and safety management

that 15 aligned with the 15C 9000
(Quality Management) and ISC 14000
(Environmental Management) standards
32 4% of employees across the Group
work in offices that now have third party
accreditation to the OHSAS 8001
standard (2009 29 3%)

Adl activities that are undertaken are
assessed for hazards with appropnate
contrels put in place to ensure the nsk
1s reduced to a satisfactory level Where
necessary safe systems of work are
documented There are systems in place
throughout the organisation to audit
actities to ensure complance

All employees are traneg to ensure that

they have the appropnate skills to carry out

their job safely Senior management are
trained to ensure that they can discharge
their responsibilities to their staff

Each Group business has a system for
reporting and Investigating accidents,
dangerous occurrences and near misses

All incidents are investigated to determine

the root cause Any significant inadents

Risk Management

are reparted throughout the organisation
and brought to the attention of the Board

In 2010, the reportable accdent rate
was 3 3 acadents per 1,000 employees
(2009 46) Typically the accidents that
occurred are related to manual handling
acuvities, however, slips and falls a'so
account for a significant proportion of
the acadents

Reportable Accident Rates
Group

2010 2009

Reportable 15 19

njuries

Reportable 33 46
inpuries incident
rate per 1,000

employees
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B RPS has supported Tree Aid

for over 5 years with chantable
contrbutions for some of Afncas
poorest rural communities to
succeed in the fight against poverty
and the effects of Climate Change
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Corporate Responsibility

Social Responsibeility and Sustainabihity

RPS is committed to ensunng that 1t conducts its business in a responsible and
sustainable way Taking care of our clents suppliers employees, the wider
community and the environment and conducting operations with a high standard
of business integnty are all essential to the long term success of our business

The Group requires its staff to adopt high standards of behaviour in therr daily
professional conduct or when traveling on business Employees are required to

be sympathetic to the cutiures of and comply with the laws and regulations of the
countries in which they operate, alsc giving due regard to the safety the well being
and the human nghts of all project personnel and relevant local communities

RPS has set itself the task of reducing per caprta energy consumption by 5% each year
using 2007 as the base This would, If achieved, halve our (per capita) energy use by
2020 The need to reduce staff numbers in parts of the Group as a result of recent
trading conditions has made this task more challenging than onginally envisaged Our
likely success can only be evaluated when economic arcumstances improve, allowing
staff numbers to stabilise

Chents

The Group aims to develop and maintain strong and lasting relationships with its
clients RPS endeavours to deliver all services and reports to the required qualty
and specofication within the time frame agreed with the client RPS employees work
with their clients to meet and anticipate their needs

Conflicts of Interest

All RPS employees must avord personal or professional activities and financial
interests that could conflict with their responsibilities to the Group If a conflict of
interest does anse then this must be acknowledged and reported Employees must
not seek personal gain from third parties or abuse their positon within the Group
for personal gan

Community Involvement

RPS has supported community and charitable fund raising with gifts in kind and
financral contnbutions throughout the year, mostly at office level In 2010 the Group
and its staff gave or raised £472,000 in chartabte contnbutions {2009 £480 000}
Taking into account the £188,000 spent on academic bursanes and educational
intiatives (2009 £105,000), the Group’s total contnbution to the communities in
which 1t operates was £660000 (2009 £585,000)

Across our busingsses we have contrbuted to a wide range of chanties and
intiatives At Group level we made a donation of £25,500 to Tree Aid in support of
its educational tree planting and woodland conservation programmes in Sub-Saharan
Afrnca RPS has supported Tree Aud for several years with chantable contributions
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fund raising and gdts in kind In 2010 RPS
was again acknowledged as the leading
corporate sponscr of Tree Ad We are
proud to continue our assoaation with
their award winning work that assists some
of Afnca's poorest rural communiuies to
succeed in the fight against poverty and
the effects of climate change

Environmental Management

RPS contributes to environmental
management as part of many projects
that it undertakes for clients The Group
adwvises interational bodies, governments,
local authonties and private companies
on improving their environmental
performance We have many employees
with professional qualfications in
environmental management, some have
achieved intermational recagnition for
their work and play a leading role in
professional bodies

Although RPS seeks to manage and reduce
its own environmental impact. our greatest
impact 15 to be found n the advice we
provide to chents many of whom are
undertaking major caprtal projects

RPS endeavours to

B comply with alf relevant nationat and
regional legislation as a mimimum
standard

B comply with codes of pracuce and
other requirements such as those
specified by regutators and our chents,

B utlise suppliers that offer praducts
which are sustainable, recyclable or
environmentally sensitive wherever
practicable and econamic,

8 promote practcal energy efficency
and waste minimisation measures, and

W provide a shared inter-office IT
network and communications
technology that reduces the need for
business travel

In order to achieve this RPS

M  ensures employees are trained and
motvated to conduct therr actavities In
an environmentally responsible manner

B reviews the pokcy on a regular
basis to take inta account any
new developments in legislaticn
or environmental management or
shareholder expectations, and

| allocates sufficient management
resources to ensure effective
implementation of the environmental
policies

Parts of the Group has achieved

ISO 14001 the intemationally recognised
environmental management system
standard

Facilities for recycling office waste are

in place at our offices Dunng 2010 our
offices recycled waste paper spent toner
and ink cartndges, obsaolete computer
hardware, pnnters and mobile phones
Proceeds from this recycling were
donated to chanty

Chmate Change

RPS has extensive skills that enable us
to understand and adwise upon the
causes and effects of cmate change
RPS undertakes projects that involve
developing strategies to reduce our
clients’ carbon emuissions and adapt

Report and Accounts 2010




buldings and infrastructure to cope with
anticipated cimatic changes We expect
the workload in this area to increase

The carbon footprint for RPS In

2009, recalcutated «n accordance with
Greenhouse Gas Protocol and current
Defra guidance amounted to 4 662
tannes Calculated on a similar basis
the overall carbon footprint increased
to 16972 tonnes in 2010 This was in
part the result of the first time inclusion
of our Eastern Australan offices in

the caleulations these being part of

a business acquired during 2009 In
addrtion during 2010 the number of
vans operated by our Environmenital
Management business in the United
Kingdom increased significantly as the
business grew A large number of these

new vans are low carbon emission, which
will progressively minimise the impact of

this fleet on the overall footprint

The specfic target set by the Board
15 to reduce per capita office energy

consumption by 5% per annum This target

was achieved in 2010 with office gas and

electnaty consumption decreasing by 77%
per capita over the pnor year from 39 per

capita to 36 MwH per employee As
indicated above however our ability to

sustain improvement will be dependent on

ECONOMIC arcumstances the continuing
uncertan environment in which we
operate means that the structure of our
businesses may be affected in ways that
make the achievement of our targets
more challenging

Shareholders

The Group conducts its operations

in accordance with what it believes
are pnnaples of good corporate
governance Our aim 15 to provide
shareholders with a retum on
investment that rewards their financial
commitment The Board understands
the rmportance of strong cash flows
and earmings and develops its business
in such a way as to grow these in

a sustainable way as far as possible
The Board endeavours to maintain
involvement of shareholders by
keeping them informed on major
actions or deaisions affecting their
investment, through a year-round
Investor Relations programme

The Chairmen of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee attend
the Annual General Meeting, and

are avallable to answer shareholders'
questions The Chairman and the
Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director are avalzble to discuss
governance strategy and any 1ssues
of concem or interest with any major
shareholders The Chief Executive and
Finance Director meet frequently with
major instrtutional shareholders and
fund managers

Investor Relations 15 discussed at
every Board meeting which enables
the Board to keep abreast of and
develop an understanding of the views
expressed by major shareholders
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The Board

Brook Land
Non-Executive Chairman

Aged 61 Brook Land was formerly a
partner of and 1s now a consuliant to
Nabarro He s a drector of a number of
private comparies Untl June 2008 he was
Senior Independent Director of Signet
Group plc He was appointed to the
Board in 1997

Dr Alan Hearne
Chief Executive

Aged 58 Alan Heame holds a degree

in economics and a doctorate in
environmental planning Following

a penod of academic research into
environmental planning he joined RPS

in 1978, became a Director in 1979 and
Chief Executive in 1981 Alan Heame was
the plc Entrepreneur of the Year in 2001
was made a Companion of the Institute
of Management in 2002 a member of the
Board of the Companions in 2007 and
fellow of Aston Business School :n 2006

Gary Young
Finance Director

Aged 51 Gary Young graduzted from
Southampton University n 1982 and
qualified as a Chartered Accountant in 1986
with Pnce Waterhouse Before joining RPS
he held a number of financial director roles
including positions within Rutland Trust

plc and AT&T Capital He joined RPS in
September 2000 and was appointed to

the Board in Novernber 2000

Peter Dowen
Executive Director

Aged 62 Peter Dowen graduated from
Leeds School of Architecture in 1972 and
qualfied as a Chartered Architect in 1973
After a penod in private pracuce he became
a director of Bnan Clouston and Partners in
1980 before joining RPS 10 1989 when he
was appointed to the Board

Dr Phil Willhlams
Executive Director

Aged 57 Phil Willlams joined the Group

in September 2003 through the acquisition
of Hydrosearch Associates Limited where
he held the posiion of Managing Director
Phil joined Hydrosearch in (981 and was
appointed Managing Director in 1983 Over
the next 20 years he led Hydrosearch as the
company developed into one of the world s
largest energy sector consuiting groups

Phil was appointed to the Board in
December 2005

Roger Deviin
Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

Aged 53 Roger Devhin chairs four private
companies - Pincipal Hotels (on beha'f
of Permira) Traveljgsaw Gamesys and
Satelite Information Services He s also
a non-executive director of National
Express Group Plc Roger read Law at
Oxford and trained in the City with
Hill Samuel, before going on to join the
beards of both Hilton International and
Ladbrokes He joined the Beard on

29 Apnl 2002 and 15 serving a final
three-year term

Karen McPherson
independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 59 Karen was a Non-Executive
Director of F&C Asset Management Plc
from 1985 to October 2006 Karen has
extensive Human Resources experence
and currently runs her own independent
HR consuttancy business, Potental
Unlimited, which she founded in 2000
Prior to this Karen worked for F&C
Management Pic from 1996 ta 1998 as
Director and Head of Human Resources
She previously worked for JP Morgan and
Chemical Bank. Karen was appointed to
the Board in june 2005 and 1s serving a
second three-year term

John Bennett
Independent Non-Executive Direcior

Aged 63 John was appomnted 1o the
Board on | june 2006 He s a Chartered
Accountant wath 30 years expenence

i the house bulding industry He was
Finance Director of Westbury plc unul

it was acquired early in 2006 He has
wide expernence of fimancial management
capital and debt raising, acquisitions and
investor relations and he played a leading
role in the strategic development of
Westbury into a top ten volume house
bullder in the UK John 15 serving a second
three year term

Louise Charlton
Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 50 Louise was appointed to

the Board on 22 May 2008 She is
Group Senior Partner of Brunswick
Group LLP the nternational corporate
communications group of which she was
a co-founder Lowse 1s a Director and
Trustee of the Natural History Museum
She is serving an mnitial three-year term

Robert Miller-Bakewell
Independent Non-Executive Director

Aged 58 Robert joined the Board on

4 May 2010 and 15 serving an imittal three
year term Robert was a Senior Director
of Investment Research at Mernill Lynch
from 1998 to 2008 and prior to this
worked as an investment analyst with
NatWest Markets and its predecessor
companies Over the previous twenty
years his focus was on analysing and
advising water waste, transport and
environmental infrastructure companies
both in the UK and intemationally He
15 also a member of OFWAT's Future
Regulaton Panel
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Committees

Committee membership

Audit Committee
John Bennett {Chairman)
Roger Devlin

Robert Miller-Bakewell

Remuneration Committee
Karen McPherson (Chairman)
john Bennett

Roger Deviin

The number of Board and Committee meetings attended by each of the Directors dunng the year was as follows

Noemination Committee
Brook Land (Chairman}
Lowse Charlton

Karen McPherson
Executive Committee®
Alan Heame (Chairman)
Peter Dowen

Phil Williams

Gary Young

Nicholas Rowe (Secretary)

Corporate Governance

Brook Land (Chairman)

Alan Heame

Nicholas Rowe (Secretary)

Full Audit Remuneration Nomination Corporate

Board Committes Commitiee Commitiee CGovernarce

Brook Land 8 - - 3 2
Alan Heame 8 - - - 2
Gary Young 8 - - -~ -
Peter Dowen 3 - - - -
Phi Whlliams 8 - - - —
Roger Devlin 7 3 3 - -
Karen McPherson 8 - 3 3 -
John Bennett 8 3 3 - -
Lowse Charlten 8 - - 3 -
Robert Miller-Bakewell** 5 2 — - -
Number of meetings held 8 3 3 3 2

* The Executive Committee meets monthly or more frequently (f required
** Rebert Miller Bakewell joned the Board and the Audit Commuttee during the year
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance activities It also oversees the policies

Committee described in the Corporate Responsibility
The Corporate Govemance Committee Statement as well as the Groups
18 responsible for overseeing the Group
structure and organisation and evaluating
these in the context of develepments in
standards of corporate govermance The
Committee keeps the Board and its other
committees appraised of developments

that may impact their structure and

environmental policies The Commiitee
consists of the Chairman Chief Executive
and Company Secretary

Combined Code

The Company has, throughout the year to
31 December 2010, comphied with all

provisions of the Combined Code on
Corporate Governance 2008 (the Code)
except that in the penod to 4 May 2010,
the Audit Committee consisted of only
two independent Non-Executive Directors
On appontment of Robert Miller-Bakewell
to that Committee full compliance with
the Code was achieved The table below
summanses how the Company has applied
each of the provisions of the Code

Combined
Code

paragrph Commen Page -
The Board shouid meet regulary Lo discharge its duties There should be a formal Al Compharit 47 48
schedule of matters specifically reserved for te decsion The annual report should
include a statement of how the Board aperates including a high level staterment of
which types of decisions are to be taken by the Board and which are delegated
to management
The Annual Report should identfy the Chairman Chief Executive Senior Al2 Compliant 42-43
Director and Chairman and Independent Non-Executive members of MNomination
Audit and Remuneration Comrmittees It should also set out the number of meetings
held and indmdual attendance
The Chairman should hold meetings with Non Executive Directors without Al3 Compliant 48
the Executives present. Led by the Senior Independent Non-Executive Cirector,
the Non Executve Directors should meet witheut the Charrman present
at least annually to apprase the Chairman s performance
Where Directors have concems which cannot be resolved about the nunning of Ald Compliant 8
the Company or & proposed action these concerns should be recorded n
the Board minutes On resignation these concerns should be provided n a watten
staterment to the Chasrman for arculation to the Board
The Cempany should arrange appropnate insurance cover 1n respect of tegal AlS Compliant 48
action agamnst Directors
The roles of the Chairman and Chiefl Executive should be split The division of A2l Compliant 47
responsibilites between the Chaimman and Chiefl Executive should be clearly
established set out In wnuing and agreed by the Board
The Chairman on appointment should be independent. A22 Complant 47
The Board should dentify in the annual report each Non-Executive Director it Al Compliant 42
considers to be independent
Al least half the board excluding the Chairman should compnse Non-Executive A3l Compliant 47

Directors determmined by the board to be independent.
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Combined
Code
paragraph Cornenent Page

The Board should appoint one of the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be A3 Complant 47
the Senicr Independent Non Executve Director The Servor Independent Director
should be avalable 1o shareholders if they have concemns which contact through the

normal channels of Chawman Chief Executive or Finance Director has faled to resolve
or for which such contact 1S inappropnate

There should be a Nomination Committee A maonty of the members should be Aql Coemplant 58 59
independent Non Executive Directors The Chairman or independent nan executive director

should chair the commitiee unless it 1s dealing with the appontment of a successor 1o the

Charmanship The Nomination Commuttee should rmake avalable 1s terms of reference

The Nomination Commttee should evaluate the balance of skills knowledge and Adl Complant 58 39
expenence on the Board and evaluate the role and capabilites required for a
particular appointment,

Cn appontment of 2 Charman the Nomination Commrtlee should prepare a job Ad43 Cornphant 58-59
speafication A Chairman s other significant commitments should be disclosed to the

Board before appomntrnent and included 1n the Annual Report

The terms and conditions of appantment of Non-Executive Directors should be made Ad4 Comphant 55

avalable for inspection by any person at the Company s registered office and at

the AGM

The annual report should descnbe the work of the Nomination Committee ncluding A6 Cornphant 58-59
precesses it has used in relation to Board appontments An explanation should be given

if nerther an external search consultancy nor open advertisement has been used In the
appointment of a non-executve director

New Directors should receive a full, formal and tailored inducton on joining the Board AS51 Compham 43
Shareholders should be offered the opportunity 10 meet the new Non-Executive

All Directors should have access to ndependent professional advice A52 Comphant 48
Committees should be prowded with sufficent resources to undertake their dulies.

All Directors shoulkd have access to the adwvice and services of the Company AS53 Comphiant 48
Secretary who 15 responsible o the Board for ensunng that Board procedures are
complied with

The Board shoukd state in the Annual Report how 1t evaluates the performance of the Board Ab Compfliant 48
1ts committees and (ts indiadual Directars The Mon Executive Directors led by the Semior
Independent Director should be responsible for performance evaluation of the Chairman

All Directars should be subject 1o election by shareholders at the first Annual General AT Complant Notce
Meeting afier therr appontment, and 1o re election thereafter at intervals of no more of
than three years The names of Directors subrmitted for electon or re-election should Meeung
be accompanied by sufficient biographical details and any other relevant information

The Non-Executive Directors should be appainted for speaified terms subject to AT2 Complant 47
re-election Any term beyond six years for a Non Execulive should be subject to

particularty ngorous review and take Into account the need for progressive refreshing

of the Board

Performance refated elements of remuneration should form a significant Bil Comphant 49
proporuon of the total remuneraton package of the Executive Directors

Share options should not be offered at a discount. Bi2 Compliant 54

Remuneration for Non-Executive Directors should reflect the ume commitment and BI3 Compliant 55
responsibihuies of the role and should net include share opuons

The Remuneration Cormmittee should consider what compensaton commitments BIS Complhant 55
the Directors_terms of appontment would entail :n the event of early termination.
Noce or contract penods of Executive Directors should be one year or less. Blé Comphant 55

A Remuneration Comimuttee should be established with at least three Independent B21 Compliant 49
Non Executives

The Remuneration Commuttee should make avadable its terrns of reference B21 Compliant 50
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Corporate Governance continued

Combnned
Code

paragraph Comment Page
The Remuneration Committee should set remuneration for all executrves B22 Compliant 49 54
The Remuneration Commuttee should recommend and monitor the
level and structure of remuneration for senior management.
The Board should determine the remunemmtion of the Non-Executive Directors B23 Comphant 55
Shareholders should be wnwited specifically to approve all new long-term incentive B24 Compliant 50
schemnes ({as defined in the Listuing Rules} and significant changes to existing schemes
The Directors should explan in the annual report their responsibility for prepanng accounts Cll Compliant 65 &7
and there should be a slatement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities
The Directors should report that the business 15 a going concem Cl2 Comphant 65
The Board should conduct at least annually a review of the effectiveness of the Groups c2l Compliant 58
systern of internai contrels and should report to sharehoiders that they have done so
The Board should establsh an Audit Committee with at least three members C3 Compliart * 37
who sheuld all be Independent Non-Executive Diractors At least one member of the
Audrt Committee should have recent and relevant financial expenence
The role and responsibility of the Audt Committee should be set out in wntten terms C3233 Comphant 57-58
of reference This should be disclosed in the annual report
The Audit Committee should review arrangemenits by which staff of the Company C34 Compliant 57
may n confidence raise concems about possible impropneties in matters of financal
teporting or other matters
The Audit Commitiee should consider annually whether there is a need for an C35 Compliant 57
internal audit function and make a recommendation to the Board
The Audit Committes should have pnmary responsibilty for making a recommendation C3é Comphant 57
on the appointment_reappomtment o removal of the external auditors
If the Board does not accept the Audit Commitiee s recommendation 1t should {38 Caornpliant nfa
include in its annual report a statemnent explaining why the Board take a
different posiion
The annual report should explain 1o shareholders how Independence 1s C37 Comphant 57
safeguarded if the auditor provides non audn services
The Chauman should ensure that the views of the shareholders are disclosed to the DI Comphant 39
Board as a whole The Chawman s avadable to discuss governance and strategy with the
shareholders The Senior Independent Director should attend sufficent meetings
wath a range of major sharehoiders in order to develop a balanced understanding of the
issues and concerns of the sharehelders
The Board should state in their Annual Report the steps they have taken to ensure Board br2 Comphant 39
members develop an understanding of the views of major shareholders about
ther Company
The Company should propose a separate resolutron at the AGM on each substantially D21 Comphant Notice
separate 1ssue and should in particular propese a resolution at the AGM refating of
to the report and accounts Meeting
The Company should count all proxy votes and indicate the leve! of proxies D22 Comphiant
lodged on each resolution and the balance for and against the resolution
and the number of abstentons The Compary should ensure that votes cast are
properly receved and recorded
Chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees should attend the D23 Complant 39
AGM in order to be avalable to apswer questians
The Company should arrange for the Notce of AGM and related papers to be sent to D24 Compliant Nouce of
shareholders at least 20 working days before the meeting, Meeting

* Cn appoinitment of an additicnzl Non-Executive Director to the Commuttee in May 2010 comphance with this provision was achieved

Report and Accounts 2010




Board Responsibilities
The Board has a schedule of matters that
are reserved for its decision

The key responsibilities of the Board are
as follows

I To ensure that the Group maintains
a strategy that 1s capable of delivering
realistic returns to shareholders

2 To organise and monitor the
performance of the Group's operations
through the Divisional structure

3 To keep that structure under review
and be prepared to change the
number and nature of the Cwvisions in
order both to take account of market
opportunities and also to deal with
management Issues

4 To clanfy any ambiguities in the
authonty responsibilities and
obligations of the vanous parts of the
Dwvisions both in terms of managing
their businesses and reporting upon
those businesses

5 To keep under review the
compositton of the Divisional
Management teams and monrtor
their performance being prepared to
make changes in order to maintain
or improve performance in terms of
both delivery to clients and financial
results

6 To ensure the Group and Divisional
Boards have policies in place to attract
and retan high quality staff

7 To manage and promote the RPS
brand by ensunng tt has an adequate
profile amongst the chent base and 15
respected and strengthened

8 To keep under review opportunities
to extend the range of products
RPS offers and the sectors in which
it operates

9 To keep under review opportunities
to extend the geographic areas in
which RPS operates

[0 To ensure that the Board has avallable
an appropnate and effective advisory
team including brokers, financial
adwisers, audrtors, lawyers and financial
public relations professionals

I} To mantain together with our
brokers, an active Investor Relations
programme designed to ensure full
exposure of the RPS investment case
to appropnate fund managers i the
UK, Europe and USA

t2 To mantain contact with a wide range
of analysts and brokers to ensure
current independent research 1s
avallable to the market

I3 To maintain systems of corporate
governance compliant with the
Combined Code and appropnate
for a company of RPS type and size
To discuss these matters with major
shareholders on a regular basis

|4 To ensure that the Group operates
appropnate nsk management systems
in respect of all aspects of its business

15 To ensure that the Group has in place
IT systems appropnate for the proper
operation of the business and its Ikely
expansion

& To ensure that the Group has in place
both a web-site and an intranet that
provides an effective communication
medium for staff, chents and others
with an interest in RPS

17 To ensure that the Group has
sufficient and adequate funding in
place to mantain its strategy

The Board 15 also responsible for the
financing of the Group materal caprtal
commitments, commencing or setthng
major Iitigation, corporate acquisitions
and disposals, appointments to subsidiary
company boards and anything else
which may matenally affect the Group's
performance The requirement to
obtain Board approval 1s communicated
widely throughout the Group's senior
management.

Board Structure

At the date of this report the Board
compnsed four Executive and six
Non-Executive Directors including the
Chairman Robert Milier-Bakewell was
appointed as a Non-Executive Director
on 4 May 2010 The Execuuve Directors
are responsible fer the day to day

Management & Governance

management of al the Group s busmess
activities

The Non-Executive Directors are in the
opinion of the Board all independent of
management and contnbute independent
judgement as well as extensve knowledge
and expenence to the proceedings of the
Board The Chairman was independent
on appointment The Non-Executive
Directors are appointed for three year
terms which are subject to re-election
Any term beyond six years for a Non-
Executive 1s ngorously reviewed, locking
at the requirement to refresh the Board
With effect from the 20t Annual
General Meeting all directors will be
subject to annual re-election

The Charman and Chief Executive have
clear and distinct rafes The key functions
of the Chairman are to conduct Board
meeungs as well as meetings of
shareholders and to ensure that all
Directors are properly brefed in order 1o
take a full and constructve part in Board
discussions The Chief Executive s role 1s
to develop and lead business strategies
and processes to enable the Group s
business to meet the requirements of

its chients and the needs of its staff

and shareholders

The Senior Independent Dhrector 1s
avallable to shareholders who wish to
raise concerns that cannot be resolved
through the Chairman, Chief Executive or
Finance Director Roger Devlin acted as
Senior Independent Director throughout
the year under review

The Board is assisted by the Audit,
Remuneration, Normination, Corporate
Governance and Executive committees

all of which activities are descnbed in this
report The Chairman of each Committee
provides updates as to its actvities at
Board meetings

Board Operations

The Board generally meets on a monthly
basis, except dunng holiday penods

but may meet more frequently should
arcumstance require The Board agenda
gives significant focus to business
performance and strategy Comprehensive
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Corporate Governance contnued

papers are circulated well in advance of
Board meetings These include general
updates and bnefings on significant 1ssues
from the Chief Executive, the Finance
Director, each of the Executive Directors
and the Company Secretary At meetings
oral reports are made on I1ssues ansing
from written reports both these and
other matters of immediate importance
are discussed by the Beard Presentatons
on the operations of particular operating
companies are made from time to

tme The Company Secretary assists

the Chairman in ensuning that Board
procedures are followed and advises on
matters of Corporate Governance The
services of the Company Secretary are
avalable to Directors generally

The Executive Directors meet formally

at least once a month The Executive
Committee 1s responsible for all
operational matters within the Group
except in respect of any decision, or
group of decsions which could not be
executed within the hmit of funds available
to the Group or which are hikely to have a
matenal effect upon the trading prospects
of the Group The minutes of meetings
are crrculated to the Non-Executive
DCirectors for review

Operational matters do not include the
setting of the Group Strategy or budgets
for the Group as a whole or raising of
equity or debt finance these remain
matters for decision of the full Board
along with anything which requires
shareholder consultation or approval such
as results announcements the Annual
Report or Circulars

Where Directors have concerns which
cannot be resolved regarding the
management of the Company or a
proposed action, these concerns are
recorded in the Board minutes It s
Company policy that if a Director tesigns
any concemns expressed are provided, in
a written statement, to the Chairman for
arculason te the Beard

Shareholders have prewviously approved
changes to the Companys Articles

of Association to allow Directors to
authonse conflicts in accordance with the

Comparues Act 2006 These provisions
enable the Directors to authonse a
confhct subject to such terms as they may
think fit, which may include exclusion from
voting in respect of the relevant issue and
exclusion from informaticn and discussion
relating to the matter The procedure
approved by the Board for authonsing
conflicts reminds directors of the need to
consider their duties as directors and not
grant an authonsation unless they believe,
in good farth, that this would be fikely to
promote the success of the Company

A potentally conflicted Diractor cannot
vote on an authonsing resolution or be
counted in a quorum for that purpose
Any authority granted may be terminated
at any tme and the director 15 informed
of his obligation to inform the Company
without delay should there be any change
in the nature of the conflict authorised

In addition, the Board requires the
Nomination Comrmittee to check that any
individual it nominates to the Board 1s free
of any potential conflict of interest Since
the time that these arrangements were
introduced no actual or potential conflicts
of interest have ansen

The Company maintans Directors and
Officers liability insuranice with a current
hmit of indemnity of £20m

There 15 an agreed procedure for
Directors to take independent
professional advice and training at the
Company's expense

Board Performance

The Board undertakes an annual appratsal
of its performance Directors are asked
to complete a detalled review relating to
the general operation of the Board and
its Committees as well as performance
against group strategy The results are
discussed with the Chairman and a
summary of the prinapal findings s
presented 1o and discussed by the Board
Where appropnate the Board agrees
changes to process and structure that are
necessary to address the issues ansing

The Non-Executive Directors hold
meetings with the Chairman without the
Executives present at least twice a year
The Non-Executives, ted by the Senior

Non-Executive Director, meet on an
annual basis to apprasse the Chairman's
performance The Executive Directors
have ther performance individually
reviewed by the Chief Executive against
annually set objectives The Chief
Executive has his performance reviewed
by the Charman and Senior independent
Non-Executive Director The Boards
annuat appraisal process incorporates

a review of the performance of Non-
Executive Directors

Directors receive an induction on
appointment including considerable
information on the Company as weli as the
Board and its procedures They also meet
other members of the Board to be briefed
on strategy, financial matters and other

key 1ssues Advice 1s avalable from the
Company's sohators i required Dunng the
year updates are provided on key issues

as required, iIncluding visits 1o operating
companies to meet local management

Communication

The Company attaches great importance
to communication with its shareholders
and other stakehclders The full report
and accounts is made avallable to

all shareholders and to other parties
who have an interest in the Group s
performance on the Group s webstte

In addrtion the Company's website
provides up-to-date information about
its organisation, the services it offers

and newsworthy subjects The Company
also responds to numerous letters

and enquines from shareholders and
others with an interest in the Gioup

There 15 regular dialogue with individual
institutional shareholders as well as
presentations after the ntenm and
annual results and at other events All
shareholders have the opportunity to
ask questions at the Company's Annual
General Meeting
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Audit and internal controls

The respective responsibifities of the
Directors and the independent auditors
N connection with the accounts are
explained on pages 65-67 and the
statement of the Directors in respect
of going concern appears on page 65

The Board has procedures in place

as recommended in the guidance in

' The Combined Code on Corporate
Governance' and ' Tumbull Guidance on
Intermal Controls” These have been in
place for the whole year and up to the
date of approvat of the finanaal statements

The nsk management policies are
descnbed on pages 31-35

The Board 15 responsible for the Group's
system of internal control which i3 designed
to prowide reasonzble but not absolute
assurance against matenal misstatement

or loss The Board reviews from time to
time the effectiveness of the system of
internal control and nsk management from
inforrmation provided by management

and the Group's external audiors Such a
review was undertaken dunng 2010 the
outcome of which was satsfactory The
key procedures that the Directors have
established to provide effective internal
financial controls are as follows

Financial reporting A detaled formal
budgeting process for all Group
businesses culminates in an annual Group
budget which 1s approved by the Board
The results for the Group are reported
monthly against this budget to the Board

Financial and accounting prinaiples and
intermal financial controls assurance
Complance with these is reviewed

as requested Accounting policies and
guidelines are 1ssued to all accounting
teams including those of acquired
companies These set out the pnnciples
of and minmum standards required by
the Board for effectwe financial controf

Capital nvestment The Company has
clearly defined guidelines for capital
expenditure These include annual
budgets, detaled appraisal and review
procedures levels of authonty and due
diigence requirements where businesses
are being acquired

Remuneration Report

The Committee compnses Karen
McPherson (Chairman} Jobn Bennett and
Roger Deviin all of whom were members
throughout the year

The Chairman of the Company and Chief
Executive have assisted the Remuneration
Commuttee in their deliberations on other
Drwectors’ remuneratton The Company
Secretary 15 10 atiendance at the meeting
to provide the Committee with any
additional adwvice that 15 required

The frequency of, and attendance by
members at, Remuneration Committee
meetings 1S set out on page 43 of the
report and accounts

The Remuneration Commuttee appointed
and received wholly imdependent

advice on executive compensation from
PricewaterhouseCoopers ('‘PwC)

Management & Governance

Alan Hearne
I Fixed 344%
7 Vinaple 656%

Peter Dowen
I Frxed  443%
1 Vanable 357%

Gary Toung
I Fred 444%
2 Vanable 55 &%

Phil Williams
| Fxed 442%
1 Varable 558%

Analysis of fixed versus performance
related pay for Executive Directors 2010

Noctes

Fixed compensation comprises-
Basic salary

Pension Contnbution

Benefits

Vanable compensation comprises-
Maximum centnbution under the
Bonus Plan
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Corporate Governance continued

Remuneration Committee -
Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are as set
out below

m the Committee has been defegated
responsibility by the Board to
determine and agree with the Board
the framework or broad policy
for remuneration of the Executive
Directers and Senior Employees of
the Company; the remuneration
of Non-Executive-Directors s a
matter for the executive members
of the Board who, when necessary,
take advice from the independent
consultants No Director or manager
is Involved In any decisions as to their
own remuneration

B within the terms of the agreed policy,
to determine the total mdmdual
remuneration package of each
Executive Director including, where
appropnate, bonuses, benefits, and
long term incentive allocations,

B the quorum necessary for the

transaction of business 15 2 mernmbers
A duly convened meeting of the
Committee at which a quorum

1s present shall be competent to
exercise all or any of the authonties
powers and discretions vested in or
exercisable by the Committee,

B to determine the policy for and scope
of pension arrangements for each
Executive Director:

B 1o determine targets for any
performance related pay and share
schemes operated by the Company

B 1 determining such packages and
arrangements give due regard to the
comments and recommendations of
the Combined Code as well as the
Listing Rules of the Financial Services
Authority and associated guidance,

m to ensure that contractuat terms on
termination, ang any payments made,
are far to the indnvidual and the

Company that falure 1s not rewarded
and that the duty to mitigate loss 15 fully
recognised n line with the statement of
best practice in the ABI guidelines,

@ to ensure that provisions regarding
disclosure of remuneration, ncluding
pensions, as set out in The Large &
Medium-Sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations
2008 and the UK Corporate
Governance Code, are fulfilled,

@ to be aware of and advise on any
major changes in employee benefit
structures throughout the Company
or Group,

W to be exclusively responsible for
establishing the selection cntena
selecting, appointing and setting
the terms of reference for any
remuneration consultants who advise
the Committee

® to meet as required during the year,
and

m to report the frequency of and
attendance by members at
Remuneration Committee meetings
In the annual report

Background

The Remuneration Committee indicated
in its 2008 Report that it was reviewing
the operation of the Company s executive
annual bonus arrangements and long-
term incentives upon the expiry of the
shareholder approval for the RPS Group
Plc Long-Term Incentive Plan (the "LTIP")
in the context of its whole remuneration
policy n ne with best practice

The Remuneration Committee started the
consultation process n November 2009
with ts major shareholders on a new
incentive pian the RPS Group Ple Bonus
Plan (the Bonus Plan’) This exercse was
completed in the first quarter of 2010
Feedback was sought from and provided
by sharehalders and as a result of this the
final design and operation of the Bonus
Plan was amended and broad shareholder
support confirmed

The Bonus Plan replaced the annual
bonus plan and LTIP for Executive
Directors for 2010 Full details of the
Bonus Plan are set out below

Remuneration policy

The Remuneration Committee's pahcy for
2010 was to set the main elements of the
remuneration package in order to reflact

m the performance of the indvidual
concemed,

B the performance of the business
unit(s) for which he/she is responsible

W in the case of the Group directors,
the performance of the Group as a
whole and

W the relevant market(s) for the
executives and the tenms and
conditions prevailing in those markets

The Committee recognises that the man
competitors of the Group and, therefore,
comparators for the remuneration are
found outside the group of companies
that are listed In consequence the
Committee needs to reflect that in its
deliberaticns including RPS” market leading
position in a number of those markets

The Committee 15, in addition, mindful of
trends and best practice amongst listed
companies of a similar size in the Support
Services sector

The policy s designed to attract, retain
and motivate indviduals by providing the
opportunity to eam competitive levels
of compensation provided performance
1s delivered, whilst remaining within the
range of compensation offered by
similar companies

Directors’ remuneration 1s the subject

of annual review In accordance with

this policy Addmionally it focuses on

the contnbution to the contnued long
term growth and success of the Company
and seeks to align Director interests

with those of the Company, employees
and shareholders
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The charts on page 49 demonsirate the
proportion of the maximum potential
compensation which s performance
related for each Executive Director

Base salary

When deterrmining the salary of the
Executive Directors the Remuneration
Committee takes e consderation

B the performance of the Group as
a whole,

8 the performance of the individual
Executrve Director both for the
Group and the businesses under his
control

B pay and conditions throughout the
Company, and

B the market conditions in the sector
the Group operates In

The results of this exercise are then
benchmarked against an independently
established group of listed companies

This group 15 identified ndependently
by PwC

The basis of selection of the group 1s

B companies within the same sector as
the Company, and

B compantes with a range of market
capitahsations such that the
Company sits within the middle of
the comparator group This group s
reviewed on an annual basis

The companies compnsing the comparator

group used in the last review were
as follows

Aggreko Ple

Alfred McAlpine Plc
Amec Plc

Ashtead Group Plc
Atkins WS PLC

Babock Internatona Group
BPP Hceldings PLC

BSS Group PLC

Bunzl PLC

Connaught Flc

Davis Service Group PLC
De La Rue Pic

Diploma Plc
Electrocomponents Plc
Filtrona PLC

Galiform Ple

Hays PLC

Homeserve PLC
Interserve PLC

intertek Group PLC
john Menzies Plc
Lavendon Group Plc
Michael Page International Plc
Mitie Group

Mouchel Group PLC
PayPaint PLC

Premier Famell PLC
Repus PLC

Scott Wilson Group Ple
Serco Group Plc

Shanks Group Plc

SIG PLC

Speedy Hire PLC
SThree PLC

Travis Perkins PLC
White Young Green PLC
WSP Group PLC

The Committee has access to
information on the pay and conditions
of other employees in the Group

when determining the remuneration
packages for Executve Directors The
Remuneration Commttee actively
considers the relationship between
general changes to employees pay and
conditions and any proposed changes in
the remuneration packages for Executive
Directors 1o ensure it can be sufficiently
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robust in its determinations in hight of the
position of the Company as a whole

Takng account all of the above factors
the Executive Directors were all awarded
a basic salary increase of 2 5% as at

I January 2010

Bonus Plan
Rationale for the Bonus Plan

The Remuneration Committee believes
that the Bonus Plan 1s an appropnate
incentrve arrangement for the Company
for the following reasons

® the Plan provides a direct ink
between the level of profit generated
by the Company and the total
incentive cost,

® the Plan s self-financing, if threshold
profit levels are not achieved there
will be no Company contnbution

W there is a nsk adjustment mechanism
built in to the operation of the Plan
with a claw back of contnbutions f
the threshold profit i1s not met for any
financial year during the Plan penod

B the Plan allows the Remuneration
Committee to align performance
conditions to the budget and
performance of the Company for
each financial year

B the operation of the Plan s smple
and transparent to participants, the
Company and shareholders,

B the Plan has a potential retentive
effect as participants can see the
potential benefits accruing over the
plan penod,

B there is an alignment of Executive
Directors’ nterests with shareholders

B shareholders receve a mirimum
level of profit pnor to any
incentive payments to Executive
Directors,

| Executive Directors are
encouraged to pursue
consistent levels of profit and
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® there s a fong term alignment
with the interests of shareholders
as the deferred element of the
Plan 15 in the form of equity

Summary of the Main Features

of the Bonus Plan

The Bonus Plan 1s based on a percentage
of the profits earned dunng a three year
penod which 1s used to create a bonus
pool 50% of the benus pool 1s pad out In
year |, 50% of the cumulative balance of
the bonus poal 1s paid out In year 2 and
the cumulative balance (after payments
in years | and 2 and contribution to the
pool in respect of year 3) 15 paid out as a
larger final payment at the end of year 3

The key features of the Bonus Plan are

m  at the beginning of the plan period
participants will have a plan account
to which bonus units will be allocated
These bonus units will only have value
if the Company makes a contribution
to the Plan On the basis that the
threshold profit 15 exceeded and a
contnbution 15 made into the Plan
a number of the bonus units wall be
eligible for release each year The
Remuneration Commuttee will in its
discretion when determuning how
many eligible bonus units to release
(and therefore the level of annual
payrent received by the participant)
take into account individual and wider
Company and dwisional financiat
and non financial performance,
including the Company s sustainability
emvaronmental and corporate
gavernance record

the contnbution to the Plan will be
calculated on the followng basis

the Remuneration Committee

will set the threshold profit at the
beginning of each financial year Only
in exceptional circumstances will the
Committee amend the threshold
profit once it has been set,

up to 3% of the total profit for the
financial year will be conmrbuted o
the Bonus Plan for the Executve
Cirectors This 1s subject 1o an
individual cap as a percentage of
salary prowded that the threshold
profit 1s met or exceeded The
Rernuneration Committee considers
the 3% maxunum contnbution to

be appropnate based on the histonc
incentives costs of the Executive
Drrectors of the Company and their
counterparts in the other constituents
of the Support Services Sector;

where the actual profit for the
financial year 15 less than the threshold
profit 15% of the difference will be
deducted from the value of funds held
in the Plan prowvided that the value
cannct be less than zero

there 15 a maximum contnbution that
can be made to a participant's plan
account in respect of any financial
year (see below) The Remuneration
Committee determined these imits
based on the aggregate of the histonc
level of LTIP award and bonus
potential set by the Committee The
Committee was keen to ensure that
the total incentive compensation

available was not increased by the
implementation of the new Plan

m the value of deferred contnbutions In
to a participant’s plan account will be
held in shares,

B participants will be entitled to the
release of bonus units with an aggregate
bonus unit pnce equal to 50% of the
balance of their Plan accounts at the
end of each financial ygar with the final
balance of the Plan account pad at the
end of the third year

Details of Bonus Plan Operation
for 2010

This secton of the report sets out the
followtng information in respect of the
2010 operation of the Bonus Plan

W the maximum contnbution set for
each Executive Director

W the profit thresholds and contrnbution
percentages set for the 2010 financial
yean,

# the actual contnbution made to the
Bonus Plan in respect of the 2010
financial year and

@ the corresponding plan account
payrents and balances for participants

Maximum Contribution 2010

Maxmum Contnbution
under the Plan Mawmum Contnbunon

Name {%age Satary) for 2010
Alan Hearme 200% 200%
Gary Young 150% 150%
Pl Whlliams 150% 150%
Peter Dowen 150% 150%
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Profit & Contribution Thresholds for 2010
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Leve) Level 0 Leved | Level 2
PBTA Threshold <£45m £45m £52 5m
{thus figure 15 ne., of all bonus costs mchudeng the

bonus casts under the Plan for thes Finanaal year)

Bonus Plan Contnbuuon Percentage 19%" 3%*
Bonus Plan Deduction Percentage 15%

Actual PBTA for 2010 £48m Total Plan Contnbution £874,000

*Straight ine between points

Participant Plan Accounts

The following table sets out the detads of the Plan Accounts for the Executive Directors

Plan Account Detads

Openming Balance

2010 Plan Contnbutian

2010 Plan Deduction
Balance

2010 Payment

Closing Balance

Value to be deferred in Shares

Alan Heame Gary Young Pl Wilkarns
£ £
372813 141,579 198 206
186407 70790 99 103
186,406 70789 99103
186406 70789 99 103

Peter Dowen will, as announced be leaving the Company in September 201 1 and will

not therefore, be participating in the Plan

The Bonus Plan will be operated for 2011 with the same main parameters However
the Remuneration Committee will set the appropnate thresholds and contnbution levels
for 2011 taking into account the circumstances of the Company and market generally

Long-term Incentives

Shareholder appioval has lapsed for the LTIP and therefore no further grants will be
made under this Plan as ndicated above the LTIP and former annual bonus plan have

been replaced by the Bonus Plan

The following table and paragraphs summanse the operation of the Company's LTIP-

2007 Grant 2008 Grant 2009 Grart

% of Salary/ % of Salary/ % of Salary/
Exgcuive Condition Condison Condrtion
Maximum Annual Grant 100 100 100
Chief Executive 100 100 100
Finance Director 80 80 80
Executive Directors 80 60-80 60-80
Performance Condition EPS Growth EPS Growth EPS Growth

Status

(see table below)

Refeased in full
on |4 March
2010 as the EPS
perfarmance
CONDILIoN was
sausfied (see
table below)

(see table below)

Based on current
performance it 15
anucipated that
the grant wall
lapse on

8 Apnl 201 |

(see table below)

Release Date
31 March 2012
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100% of the shares subject to the 2007
grant were released on 14 March 2010
The following table sets out the number
of shares released 1o the Executive
Directors

Narnc Nurnber of ordinary shares
Alan Hearme 124893
Gary Young 49272
Pril Williams 60222
Peter Dowen 60222

The market pnce of shares on release was
£178l

The performance conditions attached to
the release of LTIP shares related to EPS
growth are as foliows

% Average Basic EPS # of LTI®
Growth pa above RPI Award Released®
3 125

4 25

5 375

6 50

7 625

B 75

9 875

10 100

*Straight line release applies between these points

The Remuneration Committee will
determine the satisfaction of the
performance condrions in respect of
bath the LTIP The EPS figure used by
the Company will be audited basic EPS
figure disclosed in the Cempany's
Financial Statements

The performance condition companng
INCreases N earnings per share against
inflation was chosen in order to ensure
that LTIP awards and options would

only be recewed against a background

of sustained real increase in the financial
performance of the Company The
Commuttee has deterrmined that there
will be no release of the 2008 grant made
in 2011 A charge of £495000 made
previously was, therefore released into the
2010 profit and loss account In addition
the Committee has determined that there

is no realistic prospect that the 2009 grant
under the LTIP will resutt in any release

in March 20i2 As a result a charge of
£214,000 made previously has also been
released into the 2010 profit and loss
account There are no ather ocutstanding
awards under the LTIP and in consequence
the LTIP is in practical terms closed

Full details of the Directors LTIP awards
are set out on page 64

In years pror to the introduction of the
LTIP in 2004 the Company operated

an Executive Share Option Plan All
outstanding options under this plan are
set out on page 63 All performance
condtions under this Plan were met
details of which have been set out in
previous reports of the Committee No
aptions were issued at a discount under
this plan

Benefits

The Executive Directors participate in

a Company money puichase (defined
contnbution) scherme for which the
Employer contribution 15 15% In 2006 the
Remuneration Committee agreed to pay
a one-off pension contnbution In respect
of Alan Heamne representing six years of
annual contrbutions No further pension
contributions are therefore being paid

in respect of Alan Heame during

that penod

Executive Directors can also participate
in the all-employee Inland Revenue

Share Incentive Plan (SIP) The SIP gives
employees the cpportunity to purchase
up to £1,500 of shares a year with

the Company providing one addiional
matching share for every employee
puichased share Total participation in the
SIP scheme across the group 15 30% of
ehgble employees

The Executive Dhrectors also receve the
following addimonal benefits

B healtheare,

B Iife assurance and dependents’
pensions,

B disability schemes and
B company car or car allowance

Shareholding Guideline

Shareholdings across the Executive
Directors and Serior Executives are not
uniform Therefore, four years ago the
Remuneration Committee introduced
shareholding guidelines to encourage long-
term share ownership by the Executives

The guidelines encourage Executive
Directors to build up and retan a holding
of shares The Remuneration Commitiee
believes this forms a stable incentive pay
platform on which to build a responsible
relationship between shareholders the
Executives and the Company

It 15 intended that the Executives will
be able 1o build up their shareholding
by their partiopation in the Company's
incentive plans

Recommended sharcholding

Name requirement s percentage of salary
Alan Hearne 150%
Gary Young 100%
Phil Williams 100%
Peter Dowen 100%

Report and Accounts 2010




Service contracts
The Company s policy on the duration of
service contracts 1s that

B Executive Directors should have
rolling service contracts terminable
on no more than one year's notice
served by the Company or the
Director and

m  Non-Executive Directors are
appomnzed for fixed terms of three
years renewable on agreement of
both the Company and the Director

The policy on termination payments

is that the Company does not make
payments beyond its contractual
obligations, including any payment in
respect of notice to which a Director

1s entitled after mitigation 1s considered
None of the Directors contracts provide
for automatic payments in excess of one
year or for extended notice penods or
compensatian i the event of a change of
control None of the Directors’ contracts
provide for iquidated damages

All of the Company's Executive Directors
have service contracts with the Company
as detailed below

Notice Penad
MName Date of Contract (months)
Alan Heame February 1997 12
Peter Dowen  February1997 12
Phal Williams Novembes 2005 12
Gary Young September 2000 12

The anly event on the accurrence of
which the Company I1s lable to make

a payment to any of the Executive
Directors 15 cessation of employment
With effect from the Company s annual
general meeting in 2011 all directors will
be required to seek re-election on an
annual basis

Non-Executive Directors

The fees pard to the Non-Executive
Directors are deterrmined by the Board
and am to be competiive with other fully
Iisted comparues of equivalent size and
complexity The Chairman of the Company
recewves a higher fee than the other
Nan-Execuuve Directors and Committee
Chairmen and the Senior Independent
Director recene an additional payment

Management & Governance

The fees pad to the Charrman and each
Non-Executive Director are detailed on
the following page

Details of the terms of appointment of
the serving Non-Executive Dicectors are
set out n the table below

Unexpred tom

of contract as

at 31 Dec

Namg lital Contract date 2010 {months)
Brook Land September 1997 Annual
Review

Roger Devin Apnd 2002 4
Karen McPherson June 2005 5
john Bennett June 2006 17
Lowise Chartton May 2008 5
Robert Miller-Bakeweli May 2010 29

Non-Executive Directors are not entitled
to participate in the pension plan or the
performance based pay schernes including
annual bonus and share schemes Terms
and conditions of appomtment of Non-
Executive Directors are avallable for
inspection by any person at the Company's
registered office and at the AGM

Performance Graph

The graph shows a companson of

the total shareholder return from the
Company's shares for each of the last
five finanoial years against the total
shareholder retumn for the companies
comprising the FTSE All Share, the FTSE
All Share Support Services sector and
the comparator group The Remuneration
Committee has selected these
benchmarks as they provide a good
indication of the Company's general
performance
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Emoluments excudng Fenson
pensions {paxd and prowded)
Bask
salary Banus feos  Benefits 010 2009 2010 2009
£000s £000s £000s £00Cs £000s £000s £000s {0005
Executive
Alan Hearme 405 186 - 17 608 414 - -
Gary Young 205 71 - 10 286 210 31 30
Peter Dowen 234 - -~ 10 244 238 3s 34
Andrew Troup* - - - - - 178 - 7
Phil Willsams 287 99 - il 397 293 43 42
Non-Executive
Brook Land - - 95 ~ 5 95 - -
Roget Deviin - - 35 - 35 35 - -
Karen McPherson - - 40 - 40 40 - -
John Bennett - - 35 - 35 35 - ~
Louse Chariton - - 30 - 30 30 - -
Robert Miller Bakewell** - - 17 - 17 - = -
Total 2010 1131 356 252 48 1,787 - 109 -
Total 2009 1272 - 235 6l - 1568 - 133

The total Directors emoluments were £1 787 000 (2009 £1 568 000) excluding pension contnbutons In
addiwon Employers Natonal Insurance Contnbution paid in respect of these emoluments were £195000

(2005 £170000)

* Remuneration for Mr Troup 1 2009 15 that covered up o his resignation from the Board on

5 Novermnber 2009

**Robert Miller Bakewell joined the board an 4 May 2010

Directors’ emoluments

and compensation

The fotlowing disclosures on Directors
remuneration and share incentives have
been audited as required by Part 3 of
Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium-
sized Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Reports) Regulations 2008 The table
above sets out detalls of the emoluments
and compensaton received dunng the
year by each Director

Share awards

The tables on pages 63 and 64 set

out details of the audited share options
and LTIPs held by each [hrector dunng
the year

The Company operates its share schemes
within the dilution limits specified by the
ABI

Pensions

The Executive Directors of the Company
earned pensions benefits In a company
money purchase {defined contribution)
scheme apart from Phit Willams whose
pension benefits are in a Group Personal
Pension plan (defined contnbution) dunng
the year

An Ordinary Resolution to approve this
report will be proposed at the Company s
Annual General Meeting on 6 May 20! |

This report was approved by the Board
on 2 March 2011

Signed on behalf of the Board
Karen McPherson
Chaiman of the Remuneration
Committee 2 March 2011
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee compnses three
Independent Non-Executive Directors,
John Bennett Roger Devlin and Robert
Miller-Bakewell It has written terms of
reference set out as below Although the
Board considers that all current members
of the Committee have experience which
15 relevant to the role John Bennett who
1s a Chartered Accountant 1s the member
of the Committee specifically identified

as having recent and relevant financial
experience The Committee reviews

the draft financial statements prior 1o
submission to the Board and monitors and
makes recommendations to the Board
regarding the Group s accounting policies
and considers significant matters relating
to intemal contiol procedures During
the year the Committee assisted the
Bcard in conducting the review of internal
controls described on page 49 The Audit
Committee has considered the need for
an intermat audit function but considers
that at present the financial controls
operating throughout the Group and the
reviews undertaken by the Group Finance
function are adequate without a separate
internal audit function

The Audit Committee keeps the scope
and cost effectiveness of the external
audit under review The independence
and effectiveness of the external auditor 1s
reviewed annually and audit partners are
rotated every five years The possibility
of undertaking an audit tender process 1s
considered on a regular basis As part of
its responsibility to ensure independence
and objecuvity the commuttee has
adopted a policy to determine the
arcumstances in which Audrtors may be
permutted to undertake non-audit work
for the Group Under the terms of this
pohcy the provision of certain services are
prohibited and include those listed below

m  booklkeeping services
®m  preparation of financial statements

m  design and implementation of
financial systems

valuation services

investment advisory broker and
dealing services

m  general management services

Certan other services are approved up to
agreed financial limits with the provision of
such services beyond those hmits requinng
approval of the Committee The following
fall within this category

B taxation services

W transactien support including
due diligence

M advice relating to nsk management
and controls

B accountancy adwvice and training

The provision of any service at any
level that does not fali within the above
categones requires the approval of the
Committee

The split between audit and non-audit
fees for the year under 1eview appears on
page 80

The Company has in place formal
procedures which allow staff of the
Company to in confidence, raise concems
about possible impropnetes in matters of
financial reporting and other 1ssues These
procedures are reviewed by the Audit
Committee and are as follows

any employee wishing to raise a
concemn regarding internal controls,
accounting or audit matters may do
so with the Senior Non-Executive
Director, Roger Devin or the
Company Secretary, Nicholas Rowe,

W any concerns raised will be treated in
confidence, and will be investigated
and any action proposed reported 1o
the Audit Committee and

B the person raising the concem need
not disclose their identity if their
identity 15 disclosed this will not be
passed on by the person recening
the complaint without the indmdual’s
consent
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Audit Commuttee -
Terms of Reference

Committee compostion capabilities
and meetings

The Committee shall compnse at least
two Independent Non-Executive Directors
(with a querum of two), appointed by the
Board all of whom possess an adequate
understanding of the financial management
and reporting requirements of publicly
quoted companies

The Board will appoint a sutably qualified
Director other than the Chairman to chair
the Committee The Company Secretary is
secretary to the Committee

The Committee shall meet at least twice
per annum and may invite to attend the
Chief Executive and the Finance Director
representatives of the external auditors
and anyone else who may assist the
Committee from time to time

Relationship between the Committee and
the Board

The RPS Group Ple Board

B reviews and agrees terms of reference
put forward by the Audit Committee

m  considers changes to the terms of
reference when recommended by
the Commuttee,

W receives pPrompt summary reports
after each meeting of the Committee

B s advised of matters for its attention
at other times as deemed necessary by
the Committee

a  will refer matters to the Committee
for its attention as necessary,

| reviews annually the Committee’s
policies practices and performance,
and

B ensures that funds are available to the
Committee for external advice when
needed, which shall be obtained via an
Executive Director
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Commuttee authonity

The Committee shal have the authonty
to consider any matters refating to the
financial affairs of the Group

The Committee shall have the authonty
to request relevant information from
any employee and employees shall be
expected to respond accordingly

The Committee may take external
professional advice with respect 1o its
responsibilities and duties

The Committee shall have no executive
responsibilities with respect to
irmplementation of its recommendations

Committee responsibilities and duties
financal matters

The Committee shall review accounting
policies and practices used by the Group
as well as information 1o be published to
the London Stock Exchange prior 1o its
submission to the Board

The Committee shall ensure that

the information presented by the
Group supports a balanced clear and
understandable view of s financal
position and prospects

External audit

The Committee shall make
recommendations 1o the Board

with respect to the appontment

of external auditors and will take

steps necessary to satsfy itself about the
contnuing independence of relevant firms.

The Commuittee shall review the level of
extermal audit fees

The Commuttee shalt review the scope
of approach to and findings from extemnal
audit work.

The Commuttee shall discuss with the
external auditors any proposed changes in
accounting policies

The Commuttee Chawrman will laise
directly with the extemal auditors in order
to ensure a full understanding of any
1ssues that anse from their work and wall
report to the Committee accondingly

Risk management
Intemal controls

The Committee shall revew the means by
which sound systems of internal control
are mantaned across the Group and shall
review reports on the effectiveness of
those systems

Intemal audit

The Committee shall review at least
annually the internal audit function
and will make appropnate
recommendations to the Board

Other nsk management systems

The Committee shall consider the
adequacy of other systems which help to
manage the Group's exposures to damage
or loss

Nomination Committee

The Committee meets as required but not
less than once a year, and compnses the
Non-executve Charman Brook Land and
two Independent Non-Executive Directors
Louise Chariton and Karen McPherson The
Company Secretary attends all meetings Its
responsibiities include reviewing the Board
structure, size and composition, norminating
candidates to the Board when vacances
anse and recommending Directors who are
retinng to be put forward for re-election
The Committee believes that the Board as
currently constituted provides an appropnate
range and balance of skills and expenence
The Executve Directors have many years
expenence with the Company and of their
specific roles The Non-Executive Directors,
as ther biographies indlicate have skills
ranging across finance, law, Investment
analysis. human resources and corporate
communicaton The Committee, however,
keeps Board succession planning and the
need to retan Board balarce under careful
review Succession plans deal specfically
with each of the roles undertaken by

the Executive Directors whilst taking into
account the developing needs of the
business. Account s also taken of the need
to penadically refresh the Non-executive
compliment and ensure that they continue
o provide the range and balance of skills

required The Commuttee acknowledges that
diversity, including gender 15 an importart
consideration In addressing these issues and
takes account of this in its planning The
pursutt of diversity does however, create
other wssues By way of example two of

the Non-Executive Directors, who provide
valuable advice to the Board in other areas
do not feel qualified to st on the Audit
Committee

When Directors are appointed to the
Board this 1s through a formal, ngorous and
transparent process Robert Miller-Bakewell
was apponted as a Non-Executve Director
on 4 May 2010 This followed a careful
evaluation of the skills currently avallable at
Board level and how these could best be
enhanced and balanced Previously

Mr Miller-Bakewell had worked as an
investrnent analyst working within the
Company's sector After a number of
detalled and ngorous interviews the
Committee concluded that his skills and
expenence offered a strong match with

the Company's requirements Mr Miller-
Bakewell was only then appointed followng
a meeting wrth all other Directors and final
consideration of the appointment by the
Committee and the Board

The Nominaton Committee s wntten terms
of reference are set out below

Membership

The Committee shall be appointed by the
Board and shall comprise a Chairmarn and at
least two other members

A majonty of members of the Committee
shall be Independent Non-Executve
Oirectors.

The Board appoints the Committee
Chairman In the absence of the Committee
Charman andfor an appointed deputy the
remaining members present shall elect one
of their number to char the meeting.

If a regular member 15 unable 1o act due

to absence, illness or any other cause, the
Charrman of the Committee may appoint
another Director of the Company 10 serve
as an altemate member having due regard 1o
mantaning the required balance of Executive
and Independent Non-Executive members
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Care should be taken to minimise the nsk of
any conflict of interest that might be seen to
gve nse to an unacceptable Influence

Secretary

The Company Secretary acts as the
Secretary of the Committee and attend
alt meetings

Quorum

The quorum necessary for the transaction
of business s twa A duly convened
meeting of the Commuittee at which a
quorum 15 present shall be competent

to exerase all or any of the authonties
powers and discretions vested in or
exercisable by the Committee

Frequency of meetings

The Committee shall meet not less than
once a year and at such other times

as the Board or any member of the
Committee requires

Notice of meetings

Meetings of the Committee shall be
surnmaoned by the Secretary of the
Commuittee at the request of the Chairman
of the Committee

Unless otherwise agreed, notice of each
meeting confimming the venue tme and
date iogether with an agenda of tems to
be discussed, shall be forwarded to each
member of the Committee no fewer than
five working days pnor to the date of the
meeting As far as practical meetings shall
be held immediately before or after
meetings of the Man Board

Mindtes of meetings

The Secretary shall minute the
proceedings and resolutons of all
Committee meetings including the names
of those present and in attendance

Minutes of Committee meetings shall
be arculated to all members of the
Comruttee and to the Chairman of the
Board and made available on request to
other members of the Board

Annual General Meeting

The Chairman of the Committee shall

attend the Annual General Meeting
prepared to respond to any shareholder
questions on the Committee’s actvties

The terms and conditions of appointment
of Nen-Executive Directors should be
made avalable for inspection by any
person at the Company s registered office
andg at the AGM

Duties
The Committee shall

®  regularly review the structure size and
composition of the Board and make
recornmendations to the Board with
regard to any agjusiments that are
deemed necessary,

B prepare a description of the role and
¢apabilities required for a particular
appointment,

B be responsible for dentifying and
nominating for the approval of
the Board candidates to fill Board
vacancies as and when they anse,

m  satisfy itself with regard to succession
planning, that the processes and plans
are in place with regard to the Board
and senior appointments,

W assess and articulate the time needed
to fulfil the role of Chairman, Seruor
independent Director and Non-
Executive Director, and undertake
an annual performance evaluation
to ensure that all members of the
Board have devoted sufficent time
to their duties

B ensure on appointment that a
candidate has sufficient time to
undertake the role and review his
commitments, and

m  ensure that the Secretary on behalf
of the Beard has formally wntten to
any appointees, detailing the role and
time comsmitments and proposing an
induction plan produced in conjunction
with the Chairman

it shall also make recommendations to
the Board

B with regard to the Charman having
assessed every three years whether the
present incurmbent shall continue in
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post taking mto account the needs of
contnurty versus freshness of approach,

®  as regards the reappointment of
any Non-Executve Director at the
conclusion of his or her specified term
of oflice especially when they have
concluded their second term,

m for the continuauon (or not) N service
of any Director who has reached the
age of 70

W concerming the re-election by
shareholders of any Director under the
' retirement by rotation  provisions in
the Company's arucles of association

W concerning any matters relating to the
continuation 1In office as a Director of
any Director at any tme and

B concemng the appontment of
any Director to Executive or other
office other than to the positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive the
recommendation for which would be
considered at a meeting of

m  all the Non-Executive Directors
regarding the position of Chief
Executive

m 3l the Directors regarding the
position of Chairman and

®  detailing items that shouid be
pubhshed i the Company s Annual
Report relating to the actvines of
the Committee

Authorty

The Cammittee 1s authonsed to seek any
information it reguires from any employee
of the Company in order to perform

its duties

The Committee 15 authonsed to obtan, at
the Company's expense, outside legal or
other professional advice on any matters
within its termns of reference

Takeover Directive

Disclosures required under the Takeover
Directive are included on page 66 and
form part of the Group's Corporate
Govemance report
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present ther report
together with the audited financial
statements of RPS Group Ple and its
subsidiary undertakings (the "‘Group’) for
the year ended 31 December 2010

Results and dividend

The Consolidated Income Statement 1s
set out on page 68 and shows the profit
for the year The Directors recommend a
final dnvidend of 2 52p (2009 2 19p)

per share

This together with the ntenm dividend
of 231p (2009 201p) per share paid on
21 QOctober 2010 gives a tota! dwdend
of 483p (2009 420p) per share for the
year ended 31 December 2010

Principal activities and
business review

Business review information can be found
within the Business Review {pages 8 to 39)
which reports on the Group's principal
activites and performance dunng the past

Aberforth Partners

Aegon Asset Management

Harding Loevner

Impax Asset Management

F & C Asset Management

Co-operative Asset Management

Legal & General Investment Management

Willlam Blair & Company

year and prospects for the future Financial
key performance mdicators can be found
on page 8 The Board does not use non-
financial key performance indicators to
assess the Group as a whole but
component parts of the Group do use
non-financial key performance indicators
from time to time The pnncapal operating
subsidiary undertakings are listed in Note 5
to the Parent Company Financial
Statements

The Business Review contains certain
forward looking statements with respect
to the financial condition resuits of
operations and businesses of RPS These
statements involve nsk and uncertainty
because they relate to events and depend
upen arcumstances that may occur in the
future There are a number of factors that
could cause actual results or developments
to differ materally from those expressed
or imphed by these forward looking
statements The current uncertainty in
global economic outlook mewtably

increases the nsks to which the Group 1s
exposed MNothing in the Business Rewew
should be construed as a proft forecast

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertanties
are reported on page 31 in the Risk
Management section of the Business
Review

Corporate Governance

The Dhrectors report on corporate
governance can be found on pages 44-59
and incarporates ather parts of the
Report and Accounts as detalled therein

Substantial shareholdings

The Company 15 aware of the following
interests in excess of 3% of the ordinary
share capital of the Company as

at 15 February 2011

No of shares Percentage
19,458,621 895
10,055,074 463

9 740,444 448
9,197,978 423
8356852 385
8,178,883 376
8,149,160 375
7,449,204 343
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Directors

Accounts

The Directors of the Company during the year and their beneficial interests in the ordinary share caprtal of the Company were

Brook Land

Roger Devin

Karen McPherson
John Bennett

Louise Charlton
Rabert Miller-Bakewell
Alan Hearne

Peter Dowen

Phil Williams

Gary Young

No of shares at
3IN2/10 and at
02/03/11

30,000
30,000
3,000
5,000
12,030
275,910
418,439
88,416

No of shares at
3112709 and at
03/03/10

30,000
30,000

482,030
575910
382,987

59 409

The Directors interests under the Company's Share Incentive Ptan were

No of shares at No of shares at

3171210 3141209
Afan Hearne 6,643 4,874
Phut Wiliams 4,345 2,720
Gary Young 8,773 7736
* As at appoiniment on 4 May 20t0
The Drrectors interests under the Executive share option scheme are set out below
| Jan 3| Dec Market value Date from
2010 Exercised 2010 Exerzise at date of which
Director number number number pnce exercise exerasable Expiry date
Alan Hearne 62,500 - 62,500 111 0p - 20/3/2008 204372015
28157 - 28,157 146 5p - 1 2/8/2008 12/8/2015
Peter Dowen 32,500 - 32,500 I110p - 20/3/2008 201372015
15,051 - 15,051 146 5p - 12/8/2008 12/872015
Gary Young 13,720 - 13,720 146 5p - | 2/8/2008 12/8/2015
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Report of the Directors continued

The interests of the Directors under the Company's tong Term Incentive Plan are set out below

Value of

grant at date MarketValue  MarketValue Market Value
i Jan 2010 of grant Granted Released 3! Dec 2010 of Shares at date of of release
Director number £000s number number at Grant release £000s
Alan Hearne 2007 124,893 365 - 124893 - 2923p 178 Ip 222
2008* 127419 395 - - 127419 310p - -

2009** 275261 395 - - 275261 143 5p -
Peter Dawen 2007 60,222 176 - 60222 - 292 3p 178 1p 107

2008* 44,129 137 - - 44,129 310p -
2009+ 35331 37 - - 95,331 143 5p - -
Phil Wiliams 2007 60,222 176 - 60,222 - 2923p 178 tp 167
2008* 61,935 192 - - 61,935 310p - -
2009*%*  |56,098 224 - - 156,098 143 5p - -
Gary Young 2007 49,272 |44 - 49,272 - 2923p 178 Ip 88
2008* 51612 |60 - - 51612 310p - -
2009%* 111,498 |60 - - F11,498 143 5p - -

The total value of LTIP awards released 1n 2010 was £524,000 (2009 £567,000) No grants were made in 2010
* These grants will not be released and will lapse in March 201 |

** it s anticipated that these grants will not be released and will iapse in March 2012 In consequence 1t 1s anticipated that there will be no
further releases under the plan
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The market price of the shares at

31 December 2010 was 2304p and the
range during the financial year was 169 Bp
to 2304p

None of the Directors were matenally
interested in any significant contract to
which the Company or any of s

subsidiaries were party during the year

Employees
The Group's policies in relation to

employees are disclosed on pages 25
to 28

Charitable and community
donations

During the year the Group, including fund
raising by staff, made chantable donations of
£472 000 to non-poltical orgarisations

Suppher payment policy

The Group has due regard to the payment
terms of suppliers and settles all undisputed
accounts in accordance with payment
terms agreed with the supplier At the year
end the Group had 33 days purchases
outstanding In respect of paymenits 1o
supphers and sub-contractors {2009 36
days) At the year end the Company had

| B days' purchases outstanding in respect of
payments to suppliers and sub-contractors
{2009 16 days)

Going concern

The financial statements have been
prepared on & going concern basis as the
Directors have a reasonable expectation
that the Group has adequate resources
to continue 1n business for the
foreseeable future

Directors’ responsibilities
statement

The Directors are respensible for keeping
proper accounting records which disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial posrtion of the Company, for
safeguarding the assets, for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities
and fer the preparation of a Directors
Report and Rernuneration Report which

comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

Financial statements are published on the
Group's website in accordance with
legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissernination of
financial statements, which may vary from
legislation 1 other junsdictions The
maintenance and accuracy of the Group's
website Is the responsibility of the
Directors The Directors’ responsibility also
extends to the ongoing integrity of the
financial staternents contained theren

Each of the persons who 15 a Director at
the time of this report confirms that

B 5o far as the Director 15 aware there Is
rno relevant audit information of which
the Company's auditors are unaware,
and

B the Director has taken all the steps that
he or she ought to have taken as a
Director in order to make
himselffherself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that
the Company's auditors are aware of
that information

This confirmation is given and should be
interpreted in accordance with the
prowvisions of the Companies Act 2006

The Directors are responsible for preparing
the Annual Report and the Financial
Statements in accerdance with the
Companies Act 2006 The Directors are
also required to prepare financial
staternents for the Group in accordance
with International Financial Reporung
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union and Article 4 of the 1AS
Regulation The Directors have chosen to
prepare financiat statements for the
Company in accordance with UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice

Group financal statements

Internationat Accounting Standard |
requires that financial statements present
farrly for each financial year the Group's
financal position, financial performance and
cash flows This requires the farithful
representation of the effects of transactions,

Accounts

other events and conditions 0 accordance
with the definttions and recognion cntenia
for assets habilties, ncome and expenses
set out In the International Accounting
Standards Bcard's ‘Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements’ In wirtually all arcumstances,

a fair presertation will be achieved by
comphance with all applicable IFRS A far
presentation alse requires the Directors to

B consistently select and apply
appropriate accounting polices,

B present information including
accounting policies, 1n a manner that
provides relevant, rehable, comparable
and understandable information, and

B provide additional disclosures when
compliance with the specific
requirements in IFRS (s insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact
of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the entitys financial
position and financial performance

Under company law the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and far
view of the state of affars of the Group
and its profit or loss for that penod

Parent company finanaal statements

Company law requires the Directors to
prepare financial statements for each
financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affars of the Company and
of the profit or loss of the Company for
that period In preparing these financial
statements, the Chrectors are required to

m  select suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consstently,

m  make judgements and estimates that
are reascnable and prudent,

W state whether applicable accounting
standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial
statements, and

B prepare the finanaal statements on the
going concern basis unless it 15
Inappropriate 1o presurmne that the
Company will continue 1n business
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Report of the Directors continued

Under company law the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and farr
view of the state of affairs of the company
for that period

The Directors confirm that they have
complied with the above requirements in
preparing the financial statemenits

Directors’ responsibiliues statement pursuant
to DTR 4

The Directors confirm that to the best of
their knowledge

B the financial statements, prepared in
accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the
EU. give a true and fair view of the
assets, labilities, financial position and
profit or loss of the Company and the
undertakings nctuded in the
consolidation taken as a whole and

8 the Business Review' includes a fair
review of the development and
performance of the business and the
position of the Company and the
undertakings included in the
consclidation taken as a whole, and
that the ‘Risk Management report
includes a descrption of the principal
risks and uncertainties that they face

Financial instruments

Information about the Group's management
of financial risk can be found In notes 27 to
30 of the consolidated financial statements

Capital management

The capital of the Group consists of debt,
which includes the borrowings and faciities
disclosed n note 14 to the consohdated
financial statements, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attnbutable to equity
holders of the parent, comprising issued
capital, reserves and retained earrungs as
disclosed in notes |19 and 20 The Group
manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as
going concerns and pursue the strategy

of the Group

Post balance sheet events

On 18 February 2011 the Group
announced the acquisition of Evans-
Hamilton Inc for a maximum consideration
of US$8 7m (£55m) On 2 March 2011
the Group announced the acquisition

of Nautilus Limited and Nautilus World
Limited for a maximum consideration

of £186m

Additional information

The following addiucnal information 1s
provided for shareholders as a result of the
implementation of the Takeover Directive
into UK Law

As at 31 December 2010 the Companys
1ssued share capital consisted of
217187913 ordinary shares of 3p each

At a general meeting of the Company
every holder of ordinary shares present in
person 1s entitted to vote on a show of
hands and on a poll every member present
In person or by proxy and enttled to vote
has one vote for every ordinary share held
There are no shares in ssue which carry
speaal rights with regard to control of the
Company There are no restnctions on the
transfer of ordinary shares in the Company
other than those that may be imposed by
law or regulation from time to tme

The Company's Articles of Association may
be amended by special resolution at a
general meeting of the shareholders
Drirectors are appointed by ordinary
resolution at a general meeting of the
shareholders The Board can appoint a
Director but anyone so apponted must be
elected by an ordinary resolution at the
next general meeting Any Director who
has held office for more than three years
since therr last appointment must offer
themselves for re-election at the next
annual general meeting With effact from
the 2011 Annual General Meeting all
directors will be required to seek annual
re-election

The Directors have power to manage

the Company's business subject to the
provision of the Company's Articles of
Association, law and applicable regulations
The Directors have power to ssue and buy
back shares in the Company pursuant to
the terms and limitations of resolutions
passed by shareholders at each annual
general meeting of the Company

Directors’ interests in the share capital of
the Company are shown in the table on
page 63 Substanual shareholder interests of
which the Company 15 aware are shown on
page 62

The Company 1s party to a number of
commercial agreements which, in line with
normal practce in the industry, may be
affected by a change of control following a
takeaver bid None of these agreements
are, however, considered to be of material
significance There are no agreements
between the Company and its directors or
employees providing for compensation for
loss of office of employment that occurs
because of a takeover bid

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held
on & May 201 | The Notice of Annual
Generat Meeting circulated with this
Report and Accounts contans a full
explanation of the business to be
conducted at that meeting This includes a
resolution 1o re-appoint BDO LLP as the
Cornpany’s Auditors

By order of the
Nicholas Rowe
Secretary

2 March 201 |
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Report of the Independent Auditors

To the members of
RPS Group Plc

We have audited the financial statements
of RPS Group Plc for the year ended

31 December 2010 which comprise the
Consolidated Income Statement, the
Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Consolidated and Farent
Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement, the Consohdated
Statement of Changes in Equity and the
related notes The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the Group financial
statements I1s applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union
The financial reporting framework that has
been appled in preparation of the Parent
Company financial statemenits 15 applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the
Company's members, as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006 Qur audit work
has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Company's members those
matters we are required to state to them
In an auditor's report and for no other
purpose To the fullest extent permitted
by taw we do not accept or assume
respensibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members as
a body for our audit work, for this report
or for the apinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of
directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the statement of
directors’ responsibilties the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being savsfied
that they give a true and far view Qur
responstbility 1s to audit and express an
opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland) Those standards require us 1o
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
(APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the
financial statements

A descnption of the scope of an audit
of financial statements 15 provided on

the APB's website at

www fre org uk/apb/scope/private cfm

Opinion on financial statements
In our opiruon

@ the financial statements give a true and
far view of the state of the Group's
and the Parent Companys affars as at
31 December 2010 and of the Group's
profit for the year then ended,

8 the Group financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union,

® the Parent Company financial
staternents have been properly
prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice and

m the financial staterents have been
prepared in accordance wath the
requirements of the Companies Act
2006, and. as regards the group financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation

Opinion on other matters
prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006

In our opinion

® the part of the directors' remuneration
report to be audited has been properly
prepared 1n accordance with the
Companies Act 2006, and

m the information given in the directors
report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared (s
consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are
required ta report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of
the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are
required to report to you If, in our opinion

Accounts

B adequate accounting records have not
been kept by the Parent Company, or
returns adequate for our audit have not
been receved from branches not
visited by us, or

8 the Parent Company financial
statements and the part of the
directors’ remuneration report to be
audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns or

®  certain disclosures of directors
remuneration specified by law are not
made, or

B we have not received all the
information and explanations we
require for our audit

Under the bisting Rules we are required to
review

8 the directors’ statement, set out on
page 65 n refation 1o going concem,

m the part of the corporate governance
statement refating to the Companys
compliance with the nine provisions of
the June 2008 Combined Code
specified for our review, and

® certain elements of the report
to shareholders by the Board on
directors’ remuneration

oo g

Matthew White (Senior Stotutery Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP statutory
auditor

55 Baker Street

Landon

WIU 7EU

United Kingdom

2 March 2011

BDQO LLP 15 a limited liabibty partnership
registered i England and Wales (with
registered number OC305127)
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Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec 31 Dec
2010 2009
Notes £000s £000s
Revenue 2 461,830 443,909
Recharged expenses 2 (68,568) {69.558)
Fee income 2 393,262 374,351
Operating profit 23 46,309 51 448
Finance costs 4 (4,025) (3113)
Finance income 4 185 268
Profit before tax and amortisation of acquired mangbles 47,993 52472
Amarusation of acquired intangibles (5,524) (3,869)
Profit before tax 42,469 48,603
Tax expense 7 (10,733) (14,597)
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 31,736 33,606
Basic earnings per share (pence) 8 14.78 1578
Diluted earnings per share (pence) 8 14 69 1559
Adjusted basic eamings per share (pence) 8 1579 1708
Adjusted diluted earnings per share (pence) 8 1569 1687
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec 31 Dec
2010 2009
£000s £0C0s
Profit for the year 31,736 33.606
Other comprehensive Income
Exchange differences 6,978 (3.804)
Tax recognised directly in equity 85 188
Total recognised comprehensive income for the year
attributable to equity holders of the parent 38,799 29.9%0

The notes on pages 72 to 106 form part of these financial statements
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Accounts

Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec
2010 2009
Notes £000s £000s
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 9 314,621 293943
Property, plant and equipment 10 28,107 28226
Investrments 447 204
343,175 322,373
Current assets
Trade and other recewvables 12 158,766 139,247
Cash at bank 13,933 13,691
172,699 152,938
Liabihties
Current habilities
Borrowings 14 1,744 1802
Deferred consideration 16 9,873 15,652
Trade and other payables 13 86,971 68,678
Corporation tax labilties 2,618 6,135
Provisions 17 1,768 | 324
102,974 53591
Net current assets 69,725 59,347
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 14 43,726 44652
Deferred consideration 16 8,661 9289
Other creditors 1,052 1,301
Deferred tax iabiity 18 11,291 9.7%1
Provisions |7 3,177 3219
67,907 68,252
Net assets 344,993 313468
Equity
Share caprtal |9 6,516 6457
Share premum 101,941 98238
Cther reserves 20 45,581 39,519
Retained earnings 190,955 169,254
Total shareholders’ equity 344,993 313,468

These financial statements were approvid and authorsed for 1ssue by the Board M

The notes on pages 72 to 106 form pirt of these financial

Dr Alan Hearne, Director
Gary Young, Director
On behalf of the Board of RPS Grofip Plc
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec 31 Dec
2010 200%
Notes £000s £000s
Cash generated from operations 24 57,874 70,583
interest paid (4,507) (3839
Interest receved 185 268
Income taxes paid {14,384) (12,550
Net cash from operating activities 39,168 54,462
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of subsidianies net of cash acquired (4,418) (20,616)
Deferred consideration {13,626) (15,075)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (6,856) (4.061)
Sale of property plant and equipment 3,193 86
DOividends received 116 -
Net cash used in investing activities (21,591) (35,666}
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 229 381
Repayments of bank borrowings (5,022) (3,023}
Payment of finance lease liabilities (1,491) (599}
Dividends paid 21 (9,710) {8410
Payment of pre-acquistion dividend (694) (1,511}
Net cash used in financing activities (16,688) (19,162
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 889 {4,366)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 13,691 16707
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations (647) 1,350
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 24 13,933 13691
Cash and cash eguivalents comprise
Cash at bank 13,933 13,691

The notes on pages 72 to 106 form part of these financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Accounts

Share Share Retained Orther Total

capital premium eamings reserves equity

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
As | January 2009 6399 95531 142,126 43551 287,607
Changes in equity during 2009
Totat comprehensive iIncome - - 33.794 (3.804) 29990
Issue of new ordinary shares 58 2707 {1536) (228) 1,001
Share based payment expense - - 3280 - 3,280
Didends paid - - (8,410} - (8410)
At 3| December 2009 6,457 98,238 169,254 39,519 313468
Changes in equity during 2010
Total comprehensive income - - 31821 6978 38,799
Issue of new ordinary shares 59 3,703 {2,036) 18 810
Share based payment expense - - 1,626 - 1,626
Dividends paid - - 9710} — (3710)
At 31 December 2010 6,516 101,941 190,955 45,581 344,993

The notes on pages 72 to 106 form part of these financal statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

l. Significant accounting policies

RPS Group Plc (the ' Company™) s a
company domiciled in England The
consoldated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December
2010 comprise the Company and its
subsidanes (together referred 1o as

the "Group™)

The consohidated financial statements were
authorised for 1ssuance on 2 March 2011

(a) Basis of preparation

The Group has prepared its annual financial
statements in accerdance with international
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS}Y as
endorsed by the European Union ang
implemented in the UK The financial
statements are presented in pounds
sterling, rounded ta the nearest thousand

The |ASB has i1ssued the following revised
and updated standards that are applicable
to the Group and that resulted in changes
in presentation for this accounting period,
IAS27 (rewised) Consclidated and separate
financial statements’ and (FRS3 {revised)
“Business Combinations”

The IASB has also 1ssued a vanety of IFRIC
amendments and interpretations that have
no impact on the Group's reporting

Ortherwise, these financial statements have
been prepared using accounting policies set
out in the Report and Accounts 2009

The accounting policies set out below
have been applied consistently to all
perniods presented in these consolidated
financial statements

(b) Basis of consclidation

Where the company has the power, either
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial
and operating policies of another entrty or
business so as to obtain benefits from s
actvities, 1t is classified as a subsidiary

The consohdated financial statemenits
present the results of the company and its
subsicharies as if they formed a single entity
Intercompany transactions and balances
between group companies are therefore
elminated in full The consolidated financal
statements incorperate the results of
business combinations using the purchase
method In the Consclidated Balance Sheet,
the acquiree’s identifiable assets labilities and

contingent hiabiliies are iniially recognised

at their fair values at the acquisition date
The results of acquired operations are
included in the consolidated staternent

of comprehensive income from the date

on which control 1s obtained They are
deconsolidated from the date control ceases

(<) Fore:gn currency

1 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are
transiated at the foreign exchange rate
ruling at the date of the transaction
Monetary assets and labilites denominated
in foreign currencies at the balance sheet
date are translated tc pounds sterling at
the foreign exchange rate ruling at that
date Foreign exchange differences arising
on translation are recognised In income

# Financial statements of foreign operations
The assets and liabilities of foreign
operations, Including goodwill and fair value
adjustments ansing on consahdation, are
translated to pounds sterling at the
exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet
date The revenues and expenses of foreign
operations are translated to pounds sterling
at rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions
Foreign exchange differences ansing on
retranslation are recognised directly in the
translation reserve

i Net vestment in foreign operations

Exchange dfferences ansing from the
translation of the net investment in foreign
operations are taken to translation reserve
They are recycled and taken to Income upon
disposal of the operation The Company has
elected, In accordance with IFRS [, that in
respect of all foreign operations, any
differences that have ansen before | January
2004 have been set to zero

iv Foreign currency forward controcts

Foreign currency forward contracts are
iniially recogrised at nil value being priced-
at-the-money at onginaton Subsequently
they are measured at far value (deterrnined
by price changes in the underfying forward
rate, the interest rate, the tme to expiration
of the contract and the amount of foreign
currency specdied in the contract)

Changes in farr value are recogmised
Income as they arise

(d) Property, plant and
equipment

1 Owned assets

Items of property, plant and equipment

are stated at cost or deemed cost less
accumulated depreciation (see below) and
impairment losses (see accounting policy (h))

Certain tems of property, plant and
equipment that had been revalued to far
value on or pricr to | January 2004, the
date of transition to IFRS, are measured on
the basis of deemed cost, being the revalued
amount at the date of that revaluation an
exemption allowed under IFRS |

n Leased assets

Leases which contain terms whereby the
Group assumes substantially all the risks
and rewards inaidental to ownership of the
leased item are classified as finance leases
Assets acquired under a finance lease are
capitalised at the inception of the lease at
far value of the {eased assets, or If lower,
the present value of the mimmum

lease payments

The land and buildings elements of
property leases are considered separately
for the purposes of lease classification

Obligations under finance leases are
included in habilities net of finance costs
allocated to future penods

All other leases are classified as operating
leases and are not capitahised

Lease payments are accounted for as
descnbed in accounting policy note (o)

it Subsequent costs

The Group recognises in the carrying
amount of an tem of property. plant and
equipment the cost of replacing part of
such an item when that cost s incurred ( it
1s probable that the future economic
benefits embodied within the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably All other costs are
recognised in the iIncome statement

as incurred

v Deprecation

Depreciation 1s charged to income on a
straight-ine basis over the estimated useful
Ives of each part of an item of property,
plant and equipment Land 1s not
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depreciated The estmated useful Ives are
as follows

Freehold buildings 50 years
Alterations to

leasehold premises Life of lease
Motor vehicles 4 years
Fixtures, fittings, IT

and equipment 3 to B years

(e) Intangible assets

1 Goadwill

All business combinations are accounted for
by applying the purchase method Goodwill
has been recognised n acquisitions of
subsidianes and the business, assets and
liabilties of partnerships The Board has
elected, n accordance with IFRS | that the
date from which 1t applies IFRS 3 (2004)
shall be 26 June 2002 In respect of business
combinauons that have occurred since that
date, goodwill represents the difference
between the cost of the acquisition and the
far value of the identifiable assets acquired

The Group has applied IFRS 3 (R) for the
first tme for transactions occuring n this
accounting penod In respect of acquisitions
pnorto 26 june 2002, goodwill 1s included
on the basis of its deemed cost, which
represents the amount recorded under
previous GAAP The classification and
accounting treatment of business
combinations that occurred prior to

26 June 2002 has not been restated in
preparing the Group's opening IFRS balance
sheet at | January 2004 in accordance
with [FRS t

Goodwill is stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses Goadwill is
allocated to cash-generating units and 15
tested annually for impairment (see
accounting policy (h))

n Other intangible assets

Intangible assets other than goodwill that are
acquired by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (see below) and
impairment losses {see accounting policy {h))

Intangible assets identified in & business
combination are capitatsed at fair value at
the date of acquisiion if they are separable
from the acquired entity or give nse to

other contractual/legal nghts The far values
ascribed to such intangbles are arrived at
by using appropriate valuation techniques

Expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands 15 recogrised In
Income as an expense as incurred

m Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on capitalised
intangible assets is capitahsed only when it
increases the future econormic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which 1t
relates All other expenditure 18 expensed
as incurred

v Amortisation

Amortisation 1s charged to profit or loss on
a straight-iing basis from the date that the
intangible assets are available for use over
their estimated useful hives unless such lives
are indefinite Tha estimated useful lives of
the Group’s intangible assets are as follows

Customer relationships 310 15 years
Trade names | to 5 years
Order backlog | to 4 years

(f) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other recevables are recognised
at inception at far value and then carred at
thewr amortiseg cost less impairment losses
Trade and other recervables are subject to
impairment tests whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amount may not be recoverable
Imparment losses are taken to the

Income statement as incurred

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank comprises cash balances and
call deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash
management are included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the
purposes of the statement of cash flows
Cash 15 categorised as a loan and receivable
and 15 carned at amortsed cost

(h) Impairment of non
financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's
assets, other than deferred tax assets, are

Accounts

reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there 1s any indication
of imparrment (f any such indication exists
the asset's recoverable amount 1s estmated

For goodwill the recoverable amount 1s
estmated at each annual balance sheet date

An impairment loss 1s recognised whenever
the carrying amount of an asset or its cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recogmised n
the iIncome staterment unless the asset 15
recorded at a revalued armount in which
case It Is treated as a revaluation decrease
o the extent that a surplus has previously
been recorded

Impairment losses recogrised in respect of

cash generaung units are allocated first to

reduce the carrying value of goodwill

allocated to the cash generating unit and

then to reduce the carryng amount of the

other assets in the unit cn a pro-rata basis

Goodwll was tested for impairment at
31 December 2009 and 3| December 2010

i Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount 1s the greater of
the net selling price and value in use In
assessing value in use the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
tme value of money and the risks specific
to the asset

i Reversals of impairment

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill s
not reversed in respect of other assets, an
imparrment loss is reversed If there has
been a change in the estmates used to
determine the recoverable amount An
impairment loss 1s reversed only to the
extent that the assets carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised

(i) Employee benefits

i Defined contrtbution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined

contrbution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense In the income
statement as incurred
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

l. Significant accounting palcies continued

1t Share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a range of equity
settled share option and conditional share
award schemes for employees

The Company has applied IFRS 2 to all
share options and conditional share awards
which were granted to employees and had
not vested as at | January 2005

The farr value of the employee services
recerved in exchange for the grant of
options or condiional share awards 15
recognised as an expense 1o the iIncome
statement Fair value has been determined
by using IFRS accepted valuation
methadclogies {see below) The amount
expensed to the income statement over the
vesting period Is determined by reference
to the farr value of the options and
conditional share awards excluding the
impact of any non-market vesting
condiions Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the
number of optiens and conditional share
awards that are expected to vest At each
balance sheet date the Group rewises its
estimates of the number of options and
condrional share awards that are expected
to vest The impact of the revision of onginal
estimates, If any, Is recognised in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment
to equity, over the remaining vesting period
No adjustment 1s made for falure to
achieve market vesting conditions

The fair value of options granted under the
Executive Share Option Scheme ("ESOS™)
and Save As You Earn ( SAYE") scheme
have been calculated using a binormial model
taking into account the following inputs

B8 the exercise pnce of the option,
B the life of the option,

B the market price on the date of grant
of the option,

B the expected volatility of the share
price,

B the dwvidends expected on the shares,
and

B the risk free interest rate for the life of
the option

The fair value of conditional share awards
has been calculated using the market value

of the shares on the date of grant adjusted
for any non-entitlement to dvidends over
the vesting peniod and market based
performance conditions such as total
shareholder return

1wt Accrued holiday pay

Prowision 15 made at each balance sheet
date for holidays accrued but not taken to
the extent that they may be carred
forward, calculated at the salary of the
relevant employee at that date

(j) Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance
sheet when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it 15 probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation If the effect 1s material,
provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and, when
appropriate, the risks speafic to the lability

A provision for onerous contracts 1s
recagnised when the expected benefits to
be derved by the Group from a contract
are lower than the unavordable cost of
meeting its obligations under the contract

(k) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised on
inception at fair value and then carried at
amortised cost

(1) Borrowings

Bank overdrafis and interest bearing foans

are inially measured at far value and then
held at amortised cost Obligations under

finance leases are dealt with in accordance
with accounting policy note (o}

{m) Deferred consideration

Deferred consideration anses when
settlement of all or any part of the cost

of a business combination is deferred

For acquistions completed under IFRS 3,

1t I1s stated at far value at the date of
acquisition, which 1s deterrmined by
discounting the amount due to present
value at that date Interest 1s imputed on
the far value of non interest beanng
deferred consideration at the discount rate

and expensed within interest payable and
similar charges At each balance sheet date
deferred consideration comprises the
remaining deferred consideration valued at
acquisition plus interest imputed on such
amounts from acquisition to the balance
sheet date

Where deferred consideration 15 in the
form of shares and the number of shares to
be 1ssued 1s fixed, the far value 15 credited
to equity under the heading "Shares to

be i1ssued”

For acqusitions completed under [FRS3 (R),
the fair value of contingent consideration s
calculated at each balance sheet date and
any gains or losses are taken to the
Consolidated income Statement

(n) Revenue

Revenue from services rendered 1s
recognised in income In proportion to the
stage of completion of the transaction at
the balance sheet date No revenue 1s
recognised if there are significant
uncertanties regarding recovery of the
consideration due or associated costs An
expected loss on a contract s recogrised
immediately in the income statement

Revenue includes expenses recharged to
clients Such expenses include mileage,
accormmodation, planning applications,
counsels’ fees and fees from sub-consultants
charged on at low margin

Revenue which has been recogrised but
not invoiced by the balance sheet date 15
included in trade and other recesables in
accrued income Amounts nvoiced in
advance are ncluded n trade and other
payables within deferred income

(o) Expenses

1 Operaung lease payments

Payments made under operating leases
are recognised in the income statement
on a straight-iine basis over the term of
the lease Lease incentives receved are
recognised as an integral part of the
total lease expense

# Finance lease payments

Mirurnem lease paymenits are apportioned
between the finance charge and the
reduction of the outstanding lability The
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finance charge 15 allocated to each period
during the lease term so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the lability

m Interest poyable and similar charges

Finance costs comprise interest payable on
bank overdrafts and loans, interest imputed
on deferred consideration (see accounting
policy {m}) and interest on finance leases

v Interest recervable

Finance income comprises nterest
recenvable on funds invested

(p) Income tax

Income tax on the income for the perods
presented compnises current and deferred
tax Income fax is recogrused in income
except to the extent that 1t refates to items
recognised directly in equity, n which case it
18 recognised mn equity

Current tax is the expected tax payable on
the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantially enacted at
the balance sheet date and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s provided using the balance
sheet liability method providing for
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabiliies for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes The following
temporary differences are not provided for
goodwiil not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or habilities that
affect nerther accounting nor taxable profit
and the differences relating to investments

In subsidianes to the extent that they wall
probably not reverse in the foreseeable
future In accordance with 1AS12 deferred
tax 1s taken directly to equity to the extent
that the intrinsic value of the outstanding
share awards (based on the closing share
price} s greater than the share based
payment expense already charged to the
ncome statement The amount of deferred
tax provided 1s based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlernent of the
carrying amount of assets and habilities using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised only to
the extent that 1t 15 probable that future

taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utiised Deferred
tax assets are reduced to the extent that it
18 no longer probable that the related 1ax
benefit will be realised

(q) Dividends

Dwidends are recogmised when they
become legally payable In the case of
intenm dividends to equity shareholders
this 1s when they are paid In the case of
final dvidends, this 1s when approved by
the shareholders at the AGM

(r) Employee Share Ownership
Plan (ESOP)

As the Company 1s deemed to have
control of its ESOP trust, it 1s treated as a
subsidiary and consohdated for the purpose
of the Group accounts The ESOP's assets
{other than investments in the Company's
shares), liabilities, income and expenses are
included on a line-by-line basis in the
Group financial statements The ESOP's
investment 1n the Company's shares Is
deducted from shareholders' funds in the
Group balance sheet as if they were
treasury shares, except that profits on the
sale of ESCP shares are not credited to the
share premium account

(s) Key accounting estimates
and judgements

In the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies descrbed above,
management has made the following
Judgements, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised In the
financial statements Any other estimates or
Judgements are made as descnbed in the
accountng pelicies above

1 Intangible assets

As described in accounting policy (e)
above, the Group recognises certain
ntangible assets on acquisiion other than
goodwill Judgements are made in respect
of useful ives and valuation methods
affecting the carrying value and
amortisation charges in respect of

these assets

1t Goodwill

As described in accounting policy (e)
above the Group undertakes annual

Accounts

impairment reviews of goodwill
Judgements in respect of discount and
growth rates are made in respect of these
assets These judgements are shown in
note 9

i Revenue recognition

The Group's revenue recognition policy is
stated in accounting policy note (n) In
some cases, judgement Is required to
determine the appropriate proportion of
the services performed to date on the
contract and the extent to which fees will
be recoverable Actual results could differ
from these estimates

Any subsequent changes are accounted for
with an effect on Income at the ume such
updated information becomes avalable

(t) Reorganisation costs

The Group has highlghted the cost of
reorganisation In notes 2 and 3 {o these
accounts This classification includes such
tems as redundancy costs profit or loss
on disposals of PPE, the costs of
consohdation of office space, rebranding
costs acquistion and other costs arising as
a consequence of reorganisation They are
nduded within the appropriate lines in the
consolidated income statement

(u) Accounting standards issued
but not adopted

During the year, the IASB and the IFRIC
issued additional standards which are
effective for penods starting after the date
of these financial statements The following
standards and interpretations which would
have an impact on the Group's reporting,
have vet to be adopted by the Group

8 1AS 24 (Rewised) ' Related Party
Disclosures™

#  Improvements to IFRSs (2010)

m  Amendments to IFRS 7 (Disclosures -
Transfers of Financial Asseis)*

B IFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

*Not yet endorsed by EU
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1. Business and geographical segments

Segment information is presented in the
financial staterments in respect of the Group's
business segments, which are reported to
the Chief Operating Decision Maker
{CODM) which s the Group's Board of
Directors The business segment reporting
format reflects the Group’s management and
internal reporting structure

Inter-segment priang is determined on an
arm’s length basis Segment results include
iters directly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis

Business segments

As announced on 3 February 2011

the Group merged its Plannung and
Development businesses in Britasn,

Ireland and Noerthern Ireland The Group
comprises the following business segments

Planning & Develapment - consultancy
services in UK and Ireland and Australa
related to town and country planning,
urban design, architecture, transport
planning and highway design, enviranmental
impact assessment and provision of water
and waste utilities and energy infrastructure

Segment results for the year ended 31st December 2010

Environmental Management - consultancy
services in the UK and the Netherlands
related to environmental science, the
management of water resources and health,
safety and nsk management other than to
the ol and gas sector

Energy - the prowsion of a wide range of
consultancy services including those relating
to health, safety and risk management,

on an international basis to the upstream
ol and gas and offshore renewable

energy sectors

Recharged Intersegment External
Fees expenses revenue revenue
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Planring and Development
UK and Irefand 105,150 18,118 (1.985) 121283
Australia 65,232 11,898 (951) 76,179
Intra P&D eliminations (6) - 6 -
Total Planning and Development 170376 30,016 (2.930) 197 462
Energy 157,554 30450 (160} 187,844
Envircnmental Management 68,521 8,807 (804) 76,524
Group eliminations (3189} (705) 3894 -
Total 393,262 68,568 - 461,830

Amortisation

Underlnng Reorganisation of acquired Cperating
profit costs ntangibles profit
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Planning and Development
UK and Ireland 10,442 384 (837} 9,989
Australia 10473 (1,064) (2 240) 7.169
Total Planning and Development 20915 (680) (3.077) 17,158
Energy 27,616 {289) (2,060) 25267
Environmental Management 9714 {298) {387} 2029
Total 58,245 (1.267) {55249) 51,454
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2. Business and geographical segments continued

Segment results for the year ended 31st December 2009

Recharged Intersegrent External
Fees expenses revenue revenue
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Planning and Development
UK and Ireland 127,728 26813 {1.136) 153 405
Awstralia 33235 8,648 (544} 41339
Intra P& eliminations 20 3} 24 -
Total Planning and Development 160,942 35458 {1,656) 194,744
Energy 149,057 24616 (s01) 173,072
Ervironmental Management 67,106 9,771 (784) 76,093
Group eliminations (2.754) (287) 3,041 -
Total 374,35 69558 - 443,909
Amaortsation
Underlying Reorgarusation of acquired Segment
prefit costs intangibles result
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Planning and Development
UK and Ireland 18,377 {2,755) (887) 14,735
Australia 8,287 21 {855} 7411
Total Planming and Development 26 664 (2776) (1,742} 22,146
Energy 27,979 (306) (1,793) 25,880
Environmental Management G 349 (371N (334) 9 644
Total 64,992 (3453 (3.869) 57,670
2010 2009
Group Recenciliation £000s £000s
Revenue 461,830 443909
Recharged expenses (68,568) {69 558)
Fees 393,262 374,351
Underlying profit 58,245 64992
Reorganisation costs (1,267T) (3,453)
Unallocated expenses (5,145) (6,222)
Qperating profit before amortisation 51,833 55317
Amortisation of acquired ntangibles (5,524) (3.869)
Operating profit 456,309 51,448
Finance costs (3,840) (2 845)
Profit before tax 42 469 48,603
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1. Business and geographical segments continued

Carrying amount of
segment assets

Segment depreciation
and amortisation

010 2009 20190 2009
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Planning and Development
UK and Ireland 184,542 195,016 2,306 2932
Australa 100,938 76,432 4,626 1,837
Planning and Development total 285,480 271,448 6,932 4,769
Energy 165,373 138,310 3,658 3,295
Emvironmental Management 61,245 58,886 2,027 2,131
Unallocated 3,776 6,667 463 542
Group total 515,874 475311 13,08¢ 10,737

Geographical analysis

Revenue Fees
2009 2009
2010 (Restated) 2010 (Restated)
£000s £000s £000s £000s
UK 210,444 225016 180,224 192,216
Ireland 49,527 67,030 40,690 51,620
Awstralia 110,712 70,590 93,152 60,340
USA 35,019 32,762 32,349 29,745
Netherlands 25,867 28,947 22,918 24,268
Canada 26,718 18,003 20,422 14,601
Other 3,543 1,561 3,507 1,561
Total 461,830 443,909 393,262 374,351

The table above shows revenue and fees to external customers based upon the location from which billing took place

Carrying amount of
segment assets
2010 2009 (Restated)

£000s £000s
UK 232,800 233,586
Ireland 74,989 78,347
Australia 133,472 105,860
USA 21,863 21,444
Netherlands 24,045 25,970
Canada 26,442 9.50¢
Other 2,263 603
Total 515,874 475,311

The Group has changed how it monitors its Planming and Development business i the UK and ireland which 1t now reports as one
operating segment Therefore the analyses in respect of 2009 have been revised to present Northem Ireland wathin the UK numbers
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3. Operating profit - by nature of expense

Accounts

Year ended Year ended
3! Dec 3i Dec
2010 2009
£000s £000s
Revenue 461,830 443909
Recharged expenses (68,568) (69.558)
Fee income 393,262 374351
Staff costs (194,430) (184232)
Depreciation and amortisation (13,080) (t0.737)
Other operating costs (139,443) (127934
Operating profit 46,309 51448
Year ended Year ended
31 Rec 3} Dec
2010 2009
£000s £000s
The following items have been included in arrving at profit
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
— owned assets 6,635 6,429
— under finance leases 921 439
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 5,524 3869
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 17 122
Recrganisation costs
— profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment {1,5486) -
— other reorganisation costs 2,813 3453
Other operating lease rentals payable
— property 10,4465 10,028
— equipment and mator vehicles 3,278 4,128
Operating sublease income recevable {161) (181
4. Net financing costs
Year ended Year ended
3| Dec 31 Dec
2010 2009
£000s £000s
Finance costs
Interest on loans, overdraft and finance leases (3.079) (1.975)
Interest imputed on deferred consideration (241) (428)
Interest payable on deferred consideration {(705) (7E0)
(4,025) (3113)
Finance income
Deposit interest recevable 185 268
Net financing costs (3,840) (2,845)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

5. Employee benefit expense

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec 31 Dec
1010 2009
£000s £000s
5taff costs (including Dhrectors emoluments) comprise

Wages and salanes 168,478 157,648
Social security costs 15,343 15,906
Pension costs - defined contribution plans 8,983 7,398
Share based payment expense - equity settled 1,626 3.280
194,430 184,232

Average number of employees (including Executive Directors) was
Professtonal 3,551 3411
Support 821 843
4,372 4254

The Group considers the Directors to be the key management personne! and details of directors’ remuneration are included on pages 56

and 64

6. Auditors’ remuneration

During the year the Group (including its overseas subsidianes) obtained the following services from the Group's auditors at costs as

detalled below

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec 3t Dec
1010 2009
£000s £000s
Principal auditors
Audit services
Statutory audit of the Group's annual accounts 74 84
Statutory audit of the Group's subsidianes 83 95
Other services Pk 23
Network firms of principal auditors
Audit services
Statutory audit of the Group's subsidianies 156 144
Corporate finance 35 -
Other auditors
Audit services
Statutory audit 64 51
Tax serwices - 8
Other services 13 -
448 405
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7. Income taxes

Analysis of charge in the year

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec 31 Dec
2010 2009
£000s £000s
Current tax
UK corporation tax 5,706 8,377
Foreign tax 5,092 7441
10,798 15818
Deferred tax credit (65) (821)
Tax expense for the year 10,733 14,997 u
Analysis of credit to equity
Current tax on share based payments (23) {40)
Deferred tax on share based payments (62) (148)
Tax credit in equity for the year (85) (188)
The charge for the year can be reconaled to the profit per the income statement as follows
Year ended Year ended
31 Dec 3} Dec
2010 2009
£000s £000s
Profit before tax 42,469 48 603
Tax at the UK effective rate of 28% (2009 28%) 1,891 13,609
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 159 439
Different tax rates applied in overseas jurisdictions 659 894
Effect of change in tax rates (85) -
Effect of change n Australian tax law (1,754) -
Prior year adjustments (237) 55
Total tax expense for the year 10,733 14,997

Tax Law Amendment {2010 Measures No 1) Act 2010 was enacted in Australia during july and amends the tax treatment of certain assets
acquired in business combinations The one-off Impact 1s to retrospectively reduce the ncome tax hability for the head company of the
Awustralian tax group for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2009 when acquisitions entered the tax group The tax expense for 2010
15 reduced by £1,754,000 in relation to the impact of this new legislation
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Notes to the Conschidated Financial Statements continued

8 Earnings per share

The calculatons of basic and difuted earnings per share were based an the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and a weighted

average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the related period as shown in the tables below:

Year Year

ended ended

31 Dec 31 Dec

2010 2009

£000s £000s

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 31,736 33,606
0090s 000s

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 214,737 212943
Effect of shares to be issued as deferred consideration - 286
Effect of employee share schemes 1,311 2,347
Weghted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted eamings per share 216,048 215576
Basic earnings per share (pence} 14.78 1578
Diluted earnings per share (pence) 14 69 1559

The directors consider that earnings per share before amorusation and the one off effect of the change in Australian tax law (see note 7)

provides a rmore mearmingful measure of the Groups performance than statutory earmings per share The calculations of adjusted basic and
diluted earnings per share were based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding dunng the year as shown above, the

profit attributable to ordinary shareholders before the amortisation of acquired intangible assets and the tax thereon and the one off

change in Australian tax faw as shown n the table below

Year Year

ended ended

3t Dec 31 Dec

2010 2009

£000s £000s

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 31,736 33606
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 5,524 3.86%
Tax on amortisation of acquired intangibles (1,598) (1 106)
Change i Australian tax law (1,754) -
Adjusted profit_ attnbutable to shareholders 33,908 36359
Adjusted basic earmings per share (pence) 15.79 1708
Adjusted diluted earnings per share {pence)} 15.69 1687

Report and Accounts 2010




9. Intangible assets

Accounts

Intellectual Customer Order Trade
property nghts relationships backlog names Goodwill Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Cost
At | Janwary 2010 201 35,390 1872 1383 275032 313,878
Additions - 5,662 1,103 50 7.854 14,669
Reduction in deferred consideration - - - - (1,366) (1,366)
Adjustment to prior year estimates - - - - 1,887 t,.887
Foreign exchange differences - 3352 119 114 7995 11580
At 31 December 2010 201 44,404 3,094 1,547 291,402 340,648
Aggregate amortisation and impairment losses
At | January 2010 201 5610 988 915 12,221 19,935
Amertisation - 4,431 895 198 - 5524
Foreign exchange differences - 513 8 47 - 568
At 31 December 2010 201 10,554 1,891 1,160 12,221 26,027
Net book value at 31 December 2010 - 33,850 1,203 387 279,181 314,621

Intangible asset additions that are recorded in 2010 have been recognised at their provisional fair values (see Note 26}

Adjustment to prior year estimates

The deferred consideration and net assets of acquisition in 2009 were orignally stated at provisional fair values These fair values have now

been finahsed

These adjustments have not been adjusted in the prior year balance sheet on grounds of immateriality in accordance with 1AS 8

Intellectual Customer Order
property nghts relationships backlog Trade names Gaoodwill Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Cost
At | January 2009 201 22,355 1,682 1,327 255,146 280711
Addions - 12,045 |70 - 18742 30957
Reduction in deferred consideration - - - - (32) (32)
Adjustment to prior year estimates - - - - 26% 269
Foreign exchange differences - 990 20 56 307 1973
At 3| December 2009 201 35,390 1.872 1,383 275,032 313878
Aggregate amortisation and impairment losses
At | Januvary 2009 201 2,387 469 700 12221 15978
Amortisation - 3129 519 22| - 3.869
Foreign exchange differences - 94 - (6) - 88
At 3| December 2009 201 5610 988 915 12221 19935
Net book value at 31 December 2009 — 25,780 884 468 262811 293,943
Net book value at 31 December 2008 - 199568 1,213 627 242925 264.733
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

9 intangible assets continued

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination 15 allocated at acquisition to the cash generating uruts (CGUs) that are expected to benefit
from that business combination The Group has re-presented the allocation to CGUs on the basis of this years revised segmentation

31 Dec 2010 31 Dec 2009
£000s £000s

Planning and Development
GB 75,027 75160
Northern Ireland and Republic of Ireland 47,291 48 420
UK and Ireland 122,318 123580
Australia 40,895 30236
Total Planning and Development 163,213 153816
Energy 84,587 77797
Environmental Management 31,381 31,198
279,181 262811

The Group tests annually for impairment or
more frequently 1f there are iIndications that
goodwill right be impaired Management
have not identified any impairment
triggenng events in the period since

the last annual review

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are
determined from value in use calculations
The determination of whether or not
goodwill has been impared requires an
estimate to be made of the value in use of
the cash-generating units to which goodwaill
has been allocated

The value in use calculation includes
estimates about the future financial
performance of the CGUs In all cases the
approved budget for the following financial
year forms the basis for the cash flow
projections for a CGU The cash flow
projections in the four financiat years
following the budget year reflect
management's expectations of the
medium-term operating performance

of the CGU and the growth prospects

in the CGU's market. Thereafter, a perpeturty
15 applied to the final year's cash flows

Key assumptions

The key assumptions in the value in use
calculations are the discount rates applied,
the growth rates and margins assumed over
the forecast period

Discount rete apphed

The discount rate appled to a CGU
represents a pre-tax rate that reflects the
rarket assessment of the tme value of
money at the end of the reparting penod
and the nisks specific to the CGU The
Group bases its estimate for the long term
pre-tax discount rate on tts weighted average
cost of caprital (WACC) The inputs to this
calcufation are derived from long term
market and industry data

The discount rates applied to the CGUs
were in the range [22% to 154%

Growth rates

The growth rates appled reflect
management’s expectations regarding the
future performance of the business These
incarporate the effects of the global
recession over the last two years, the
expected recovery of the CGUs affected
and the past expenence of the Group as 1t
emerged from previous recessions They
also reflect the expected benefits of the
reorganisaton of the UK and treland P&D
business announced on 28th October 2010

The five year EBIT growth rates applied to
the CGUs were in the range 5% to 25%
per annum after taking into account a range
of probability weighted scenanos

The long term growth rates applied to the
perpetuity calculations were In the range
2 25% to 24% per annum reflecting the

average long term growth rates of the
economies In which the CGUs are based

Margins

The EBIT margins used to denve forecast
cash flows are based on managerment's
expectations of future market development
and also margins achieved histonically

The margins applied to CGUs were in the
range 5% to 25%

Summary of results

During the year, all goodwill was tested for
impairment with no impairment charge
resulting (2009 £nil) The goodwill allocated
to the Planning and Developrment UK and
Ireland operating segment was tested at the
operating segment level, the Great Britan
level and whole of Ireland level No
impairment resufted from any of these tests

The Directors consider a range of scenanos
in order to assess how sensitive the value In
use calculations are to the above variables

If the Group s operating margins remain at
current levels 1t would not be required to
recognise an imparment charge

In the Directors’ view, a 1% absolute
maovement in the value of the WACC s
reasonably possible If that movernent
occurred the Group would not recognise
any impairment in the carryng value of the
goodwill in any CGU
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10. Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures
Freehold Alterations fitings,
land and to leasehold Motor IT and
butdings premises vehicles equipment Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Cost or valuation
At | January 2010 | 1.406 3298 2793 49,868 67365
Additions 45 1,859 498 4511 6913
Disposals (1.762) {423) (617) (5983) (8,785)
Addiions through acquisition - 10 - 412 422
Foreign exchange differences (297) 556 349 1,381 1,989
At 31 December 2010 9,3%2 5,300 3,023 50,189 67,904
Depreciation
At | January 2010 2,280 898 | 069 34,892 39139
Charge for the year 207 618 505 6,226 7,556
Disposals (355) (385) (536) (5.894) (7.170)
Foreign exchange differences (43} 72 6l 182 272
At 31 December 2010 2,089 1,203 1,099 35,406 39,797
Net book value at 31 December 2010 7,303 4,097 1,924 14,783 28,107

At 31 December 2010 the Group had alterations to leasehold properties, motor vehicles and office equipment held under finance lease
contracts with net book vatues of £1,272,000 £819,000 and £1,537.000 respectively

Fixtures
Freehold Alterations fitings
land and to leasenoid Motor T and
bulldings premises vehicles equipment Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Cost or valuation
At | January 2009 12,142 1,636 1,407 47 208 62393
Additions - 275 163 3511 3.949
Disposals - (160} (272) (4.775) (5207)
Additions through acquisition - 1,339 1,315 3886 6,540
Foregn exchange differences (736) 208 180 38 (310
At 3t December 2009 | 1,406 3.298 2793 49,868 67,365
Depreciation
At | January 2009 2148 725 926 34019 37818
Charge for the year 226 313 330 599% 6,868
Disposals - (161) (198) (4 608) (4967)
Foreign exchange differences (94) 21 It (518) (580)
At 31 December 2009 2,280 898 1 069 34,892 39139
Net book value at 31 December 2008 9,994 9t 481 13189 24,575
Net book value at 31 December 2009 9,126 2400 1,724 14,976 28,226

At 31 December 2009 the Group had afterations to leasehold propertiesmotor vehicles and office equipment held under finance Jease
contracts with net book values of £1,313,000 £1,078,000 and £2,092,000 respectively
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Il Subsidiaries

A list of the significant subsidiaries, including the name country of incorporation and proportion of ownership interests 15 given in Note 5
to the Parent Company’s financial statements on page |11

12.Trade and other receivables

31 Dec 31 Dec

2010 2009

£000s £000s

Trade recevables 113,525 98,138
Less prowsion for impairment of trade receivables {6,580) (5.281)
Trade recewvables net 106,945 92,857
Accrued income 446,571 41,598
Less provisien for impairment of accrued income (5,996) (4,005}
Accrued income net 40,575 37,593
Prepayrnents 6,963 5,364
Other recevables 4,283 3433
158,766 139,247

All amounts shown under trade and other
recewvables fall due within one year

The carrying value of trade and other
recervables 15 considered a reasonable
approximation of fair value due to thewr
short term nature and the prowisions for
impairment recorded against them

The Groups trade and other recewables
have been reviewed for signs of impairment
Certan trade recervables were found to be
impaired and a provision of £6,580,000
(2009 £5,281000) has been recorded
Certain accrued income balances have been
found to be inpared and a provision of
£5996,000 (2009 £4,005,000) has been
recorded agamnst them

The indwidually impaired balances
mainly relate to items under discussion
with customers

Certan trade recervables are past due but
have not been impaired These relate to
customers where we have no history of
default and no concerns over their financial
situation The ages of financial assets past
due but not impaired 15 as follows

2010 2009

Ageing £000s £000s
MNot more than three months 12,559 ELL3I
More than three months 13,433 14,524
25,992 25655
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12.Trade and other receivables continued

Accounts

Trade recevables  Accrued income Total
Movements in iImpairment £000s £000s £000s
As at | |anary 2010 5,281 4,005 9,285
Income statement charge 1,640 2,198 3,838
Recevables written off duning the year as uncollectble {773) (1.598) (2371)
Addrtions through acguisitions 382 1,032 1,414
Foreign exchange 50 359 409
As at 31 December 2010 6,580 5,996 12,576
As at | January 2009 6143 4136 10,279
Income statement charge I 873 884 87
Recevables written off dunng the year as uncollectible (1.809) (1.714) (3.523)
Addions through acquisitions 1,066 848 1914
Foreign exchange {130) (138) (268)
As at 3| December 2009 5,281 4005 9,286
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other recevables are denominated as follows
3f Dec 31 Dec
2010 2009
£000s £000s
Sterling 68,082 54913
Euro 25,645 37904
US Dollar 14,672 13,285
Canadian Dollar 13,009 3,651
Australian Dollar 35,691 29,056
Other 1,667 438
158,766 139,247
The maximum expasure to credit nsk at the reporting date 15 the carrying amount of each ctass of recevable mentioned above
13.Trade and other payables
31 Dec 31 Dec
2010 2009
£000s £000s
Trade payables 24,320 16822
Accruals 30,224 24 644
Creditors for taxation and social security 12,788 11,053
Deferred income 14,590 13,120
Other payables 5,049 3,039
86,971t 68,678

All amounts shown under trade and other payables fall due for payment within one year

The carrying values of trade and ather payables are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short term

nature of these habilities
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Notes to the Consohidated Financtal Statements continued

|4 Borrowings

31 Dec 31 Dec
2010 2009
£000s £000s
Bank loans 41,816 41949
Finance lease creditor 3,654 4,505
45,470 46 454

Bank Other Bank Cther
loans loans Total loans loans Total
2010 010 010 2009 2009 2009
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

The borrowings are repayable as follows

On demand or in not more than one year 322 1,422 1,744 419 1383 1802
In the second year 196 1,211 I,407 156 1213 | 469
in the third to fifth years inclusive 41,298 1,021 42,319 41 274 1,909 43,183
41,816 3,654 45,470 41,949 4,505 46,454
Less amount due for settlerment within 12 months {(322) (1,422) (1,744) (419 (1383 (1,802}
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 41,494 2,232 43,726 41530 3,122 44,652

The prncipal features of the Group's
borrowings and bank faciiies are as
follows

{) An uncommitted £1,000,000 bank
overdraft facility, repayable on demand

(1} The Group has two principal bank loans

(a) A revolng credit faciity of
£125,000,000 wath Loyds TSB Bank ple,
the Group's prncipal bank, expiring in
2013 Loans carry interest equal to
LIBOR plus a margin determined by
reference to the total bank borrowing
of the Group There were loans drawn
totalling £41.064,000 at 3| December
2010 (2009 £40.931000) The facility 1s
guaranteed by the Company and certain
subsidianes but no secunty over the
Group’s assets exsts

{b) Australian DoMtar denorminated loans of
£752 000 The loans were taken out

between September 2004 and October
2009 by a company that was acquired
by the Group in July 2009

Repayments commenced in September
2004 and will continue unt!! September
2014 The loans are guaranteed by
interlocking guarantees between the
acquired company's entities

(0} Bonding faciity of £13,000,000 with
Lloyds TSB Bank Plc Utlisation at the
year end was £6,735000 (2009
£7 165,000)

The carrying amounts of short term
borrowings approximate their fair values, as
the impact of discounting 15 not significant

The carrying amounts of our long term
borrowings approxxmate fair value as the
borrowings have been transacted in the
two months prior to year end and the loan
15 revalving in nature

Loan hquidity risk profile

2010 2009

£000s £000s

<| year 1,144 1,737
I-2 years 9%0 1737
>2 but <5 years 41,718 43 604
43,852 47,078

The liquidity risk profile above shows the
expected cashflows in respect of the
Groups loan faclities assurming that the
loan balance at year end remains constant
until expiry of the facilities It also assumes
that interest and foreign exchange rates
reman constant at the rates exisung at the
year end for that period
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IS. Obligations under finance leases

Amounts payable under finance leases

Accounts

Present Present

Less value of Less value of

Minimum future minemum Minimum future menmum

lease mterest lease lease Interest lease

payments charges payments payments charges payments

2010 2010 2010 2009 2009 2009

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Within one year 1,684 (262) 1,422 1,717 (334) i,383
In two to five years 2,471 (239) 2,232 3,550 (428) 3,122
4,155 (501) 31,654 5,267 (762) 4,505

For the year ended 3| December 2010, the
average effective borrowing rate was 8 9%
Interest rates are fixed at the contract date
All leases are on a fixed repayment basis
and no arrangements have been entered

into for contingent rental payments

16. Deferred consideration

Lioyds TSB Bank Plc

The Group's obligations under finance
leases are secured by interlocking

guarantees between certan Group entities,
the lessors’ rights over the leased assets and
a letter of credit provided by

The carrying amount of obligations under
finance leases 1s considered to be a
reasonable approximation of far value

The liability in respect of deferred consideraton comprises shares and interest bearing and non-interest bearing cash obligations due to the

vendors of acquired businesses

31 Dec 31 Dec
2010 2009
£000s £000s
Cash due within one year
Interest beanng 7,632 10210
Non-interest bearing 2,241 4822
Shares due within one year - 620
9,873 15,652
Cash due between one and two years
Interest bearing 5,406 5640
Non-interest bearing 2,124 -
7,530 5,640
Cash due between two and five years
Interest bearing 1,131 3,649
1,131 3649
Tota! deferred consideration payable 18,534 24941
Less amount due for settlement wathin |2 months (9,873) (15652)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 8,661 9,289

Deferred consideration 15 recorded at present value calcufated with reference to the LIBOR rates prevailing at the time of acquisiuon in
respect of the currency in which the deferred consideration 15 denorminated (varying between | 0% and 5 8%) The movement in present
value 15 taken through the profit and loss within finance costs
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

17, Provisions

Property Warranty Deapidations
The provision for property costs relates to This provision Is in respect of contractual This provision is in respect of renstatement
operating lease rentals and related costs on obligations and will be utlised within obligatsons related to leasehold propertes
vacated property and will be utihsed within one year and will be utihsed within |5 years
15 years
Property Warranty Dhlaprdatons Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s
As at | January 2010 1,668 510 2,365 4,543
Additional provision in the year 21 250 156 427
Utiised in year (937) (124) (540) {1.601)
On acquisition of subsidiary 1,244 - 182 1,426
Exchange difference 67 (5) 88 150
At 31 December 2010 2,063 631 2,251 4,945
2010 2009
£000s £000s
Due as follows
Within one year 1,768 1324
After more than one year 3,177 3,219
4,945 4,543
The carrying value of the provisions disclosed above 1s a reasonable approximation of their farr value
18 Deferred taxation
The movement for the year in the Group's net deferred tax position was as follows
2010 2009
£000s £000s
At | January (9.791) (6746)
Asset acquired on acquisition of subsidiary {1,747) (4.015)
Fair value adjustments to prior year acquisitions 1,061 -
Exchange differences (941) i
Charge to income for the year (20) 824
Charge to equity for the year 62 148
Effect of change In tax rate 8s -
At 31 December {11,291) (9.7 1)
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18 Deferred taxation continued

Accounts

Deferred tax ossets Deprecation
in excess of
capital  Employment Share based
allowances benefits Tax losses Prowvisions payments Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
At | fanuary 2009 752 916 28 476 57 2229
Reclassifications - - - (476) - (476)
Charge to ncome for the year 66 (208} (228) - 265 (105)
Charge to equity for the year - - - - 148 148
Asset acquired on acquisition of subsidiary (6) 851 230 - - I 075
Exchange differences 18 63 (1) - - 80
At | January 2010 830 | 622 29 — 470 2,95t
Charge to income for the year {195) 262 - - (399) (332)
Charge to equity for the year - - - - 3) 3)
Effect of change in tax rate (40) &) - - 3 (46)
Asset acquired on acquisition of subsidiary (2) 250 - - - 248
Exchange differences [E))] 283 2 - - 276
At 3| Decernber 2010 584 2,408 31 - 71 3,094
Deferred tax habiities Foreign Tax
exchange on  Revaluation deductible
investments  of properties goodwill Prowsions Orher Tota
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
At | January 2009 (1.627) (361) (6774} {213) (8.975)
Reclassifications - (82) 476 82 476
Charge to income for the year 742 - 569 (288) %7) 926
Asset acquired on acquisition of subsidiary - - (4.070) (1.020) - (5.0%0)
Exchange differences - 29 25 (137} 4 (79
At | January 2010 (885) (332) {10.332) (969) (224) (12742)
Reclassifications - - - (25) 25 -
Charge to income for the year 279 - 795 (651} (reny 312
Charge to equity for the year - - 65 - - 65
Effect of change in tax rate 22 - 140 (31) ~ 3l
Asset acquired on acquisition of subsidiary - - (1.977) (18) - (1,995)
Fair value adjustments to prior year acquisitions - - - 1,061 - 1061
Exchange differences - 12 (746) {456) (27) (1217)
At 31 December 2010 (584) (320)  (12,055) {1,089) (337) {14,385)

rpsgroup com




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

19 Share capital

Authonsed Authorised Authonsed Authornised

010 2010 2009 2009

Number £000s Number £000s

Ordinary shares of 3p each 240,000,000 7,200 240 000,000 7.200

Issued and fully paid

Issued and fully pad

2010 2010 2009 2009
Number £000s Number £000s
Ordinary shares of 3p each
At | January 215,247,277 6,457 213286497 6399
Issued under share option schemes 185,303 6 313713 9
{ssued under save as you earn schemes - - 1,00C -
Issued under the Share incentive Plan 745,667 22 457,668 14
Issued in respect of the Performance Share Plan 378,202 12 384,006 Il
Issued in respect of the Long Term Incentive Plan 347,987 10 386,955 12
Issued 1n respect of deferred consideration related to
2CqQUISILIONS IN prior years 314,155 9 417438 12
At 3| December 217,218,59¢ 6,516 215247277 6457
2010 2009
Number Number
Ordinary shares held by the ESOP Trust 1,582,690 859,575
Ordinary shares held by the SIP Trust 3,085,882 2,505,608
The ESOP Trust has elected to wawve the dvidend on the unallocated ordinary shares held
The table below shows options outstanding at 31 December 2010
Penod exercisable Number Exercise price (p)
2004 - 2011 37,750 136 - 154
2005 - 2012 82,206 125 - 149
2006 - 2013 168.812 IE-171
2007 - 2014 47,409 149
2008 - 2015 250 100 I - 147
2001 - 2018 315,000 295
2013 - 2020 295,000 195
196277

Please see page 66 in the Report of the Directors for detatls of the Group's capital management procedures
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20. Other reserves

Merger Employee Translabon Total
reserve trust reserve other
£000s £000s £000s £000s
At | January 2009 20,079 (3,583) 27,055 43551
Changes in equity during 2009
Exchange differences - - (3,804) (3.804)
Issue of new shares 608 (836) - (228)
At 31 December 2009 20687 (4419} 23.251 39519
Changes in equity during 2010
Exchange differences - - 6,978 6978
Issue of new shares 569 (| 485) - (516)
At 3| December 2010 21,256 {5,904) 30,229 45,581
The following describes the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity
Reserve Description and purpose
Share premium Premium on shares issued in excess of nominal value, other than on shares ssued in respect of acquisitions when
merger rehef s taken
Merger reserve Premium on shares ssued in respect of acquisitions when merger relief is taken

Employee trust Own shares heid by the SIP and ESQP trusts
Translaton reserve Cumulative gans/losses arising on retranslating the net assets of overseas operations into sterling

Retained earnings Cumutative net gains and losses recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and
conscldated statement of changes in equity
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Notes to the Consohidated Financial Statements continued

21. Dividends

Year Year
ended ended
31 Dec 31 Dec
2010 2009
£000s £000s

Amounts recogrised as distibutions to equity holders during the period
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2009 of 2 19p (2008 | 91p) per share 4,722 4093
Interim dividend for the year ended 3t December 2010 of 231p (2009 201p) per share 4,988 4317
9,710 8410
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010 of 2 52p (2009 2 19p) per share 5,461 4,728

The preposed final dividend 15 subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a lability

the financial statements

22, Operating lease arrangements

At 3t December 2010 the Group's total remaining commitments as lessee under non-cancellable operating feases for certan of its office

properties and motor vehicles was as follows

la]

Commrtments
Property Property Other Cther
2010 2009 2010 2009
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Within cne year 10,731 9.639 2,857 2710
In two to five years 25,467 24456 3,720 2713
After five years 15,675 17,941 - -
51,873 52,036 6,577 5423

Operating feases - Jessor

Certan properties have been vacated prior to the end of the lease term Where possible the Group always endeavours to sub-lease such
vacant space on short term lets The sub-lease rental income during the year ended 31 December 2010 was £161,000 {2009 £191.000)

The mimimum rent recervable under non-cancellable operating leases s as follows

Recewvables 2010 2009
£000s £000s

Within one year 164 107
In two to five years 340 171
After five years - |4
504 292
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23. Related party transactions

Related parties, following the definitions are not disclosed in this note There were
within 1AS 24, are the subsidiary companies  no transactions within the year in which the
and members of the Board Transactions Directors had any interest The

between the Company and its subsidiaries Remuneration Report contains details of

have been eliminated on consolidation and Board emeluments

24, Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Accounts

Year ended Year ended

31 Dec 31 Dec

2010 2009

£000s £000s

Profit before tax 42,469 48,603

Adjustments for

Interest payable and similar charges 4,025 3113
interest receivable (185) (268}
Depreciztion 7,556 6,868
Ameortisation of acquired intangbles 5,524 3.869
Share based payment expense 1,626 3,280
(Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (1,579) 152
Share of profit of associates (335) (78)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (7.981) 31,223
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 6,754 (26,179)
Cash generated from operations 57,874 70583

The table below provides an analysis of net bank borrowings, comprising cash and cash equivalents, interest bearing loan

during the year ended 3| December 2010

s and finance leases,

At Faregn At
31 Dec 2009 Cash flow Exchange 31 Dec 2010
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Cash and cash equivalents 13,691 889 (647) 13,933
Bank loans (41,94%) 5022 (4.889) (41,816}
Finance lease creditor (4,505} 1421 (640} (3,654}
(32,763} 7,402 {6,176) (31,537)

25. Major non-cash transactions

There were no major non-cash transactions dunng the year
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26, Acquisitions

The Group completed the following acquisitions duning 2010 to strengthen and broaden the skill base of the Group

Date of Place of Percentage of MNature of

Acquisthion incorpaoration entity acquired business acquired

Health in Business Ltd 15/03/2010 UK 100% Occupational health
Aquaterra Consulting Pty Ltd 27/05/2010 Australia {00%  Enwvironmental consultancy
Boyd Exploration Consultants Ltd 26/08/2010 Canada 100% Mining consultancy

These businesses have been integrated with other parts of the Group The contributions to the revenue and operating profit to the Group's
resufts for the period of those entities where it 1s practicable to separately identify their results i1s given below

Operating

Revenue profit

£000s £000s

HIB |,405 103
Aquaterra 7801 583
Boyd 3,557 443

The Group has allocated the net assets of its acquismions provisional fair values as it did not have complete information at the balance sheet
date Detalls of the carrying values of the acquired net assets and the provisional fair vaiues assigned to them by the Group follows

Intangible assets Property,

Customer Trade plant and Other Other Net assets
Order book  refationships names equipment Cash assets habilities acquired
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Provisional farr values
HIB - 520 50 12 60 342 (426) 258
Aquaterra 402 2,535 - 260 2228 2931 (4422) 3934
Boyd 701 2607 - 150 2,568 3.704 {4.880) 4.850
1.103 5,662 50 422 4,856 6977 (5.728) 9,342

The Group proforma revenue and operating profit as required by IFRS 3 (R) assuming all acquisttions were completed on the first day of
the year are calculated to be £471,447,000 and £46,513,000 respectively
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Gross
Fair value of contractual Esumated
acquired amounts  unrecenable
recervables recevable cash flows
£000s £000s £000s
Recewables analysis
HIB 3c0 300 -
Aguaterra 2,357 2357 -
Boyd 3547 3.547 -
6,204 6,204 —
The vendors of HIB, Aquaterra and Boyd have entered into iIndemnity and warranty arrangements with the Group The total undiscounted

cashflow that could be recewvable by the Group 1s between £nil and £6,204,000 As the Group does not expect that these warranties will
become recevable, it has not recognised an indemnification asset on acquistion

lmitial cash  Deferred cash Total MNet assets Goodwill Tax deductible

consideration  consideration  consideration acquired acquired Goadwill

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

HIB 720 217 937 558 379 -
Aquaterra 4104 3778 7882 3934 3948 -
Boyd 4,450 3927 8377 4,850 3527 =
9,274 7,922 17,196 9,342 7,854 -

The Group incurred costs related to acquisitions totalling £324.000 which have been expensed through the consohdated income statement
(200% £nil)

Goodwill represents the value of the accumulated workforce associated with these acquisitions

Acquisitions made in 2010 Acquisitions made n 2009

HIB  Aquaterra Boyd Conics

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Goodwill at | January 2010 - - - 20816
Addtions through acquisition 379 3948 3527 -
Adjustment to pnor year estimates - - - 1.887
Reduction in deferred consideration - - - (1166}
Foreign exchange - 46l 193 3875
Goodwill at 30 December 2010 379 4,409 3,720 25,412

There were no accumulated impairment losses at the begnning or the end of the period

Prior period acquisitions

in 2009 the Group acquired Conics Pty Ltd, a mult—disaphinary consultancy based on the East coast of Australia, pnmarily in Queensland
The provisional fair values of the net assets acquired wath this business have now been finalised The net effect has been to credit the net

assets acquired by £1,887,000 related to the alignment of accounting pohicies, the write off of irecoverable recevables and the associated
tax effects
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27.Denvatives and other
financial instruments

Set out below are the narrative disclosures
relating to financial instruments

Financial instruments

The Group's financial assets comprise cash
and trade and other recewvables which are
categonsed as “loans and other receivables”
and held at amortised cost.

The Group's financial kabilites comprise
bank leans and trade and other payables
which are categorised as Other financiai
habilities™ and held at amortised cost. The
far value of the loan s determined by
discounting at the loan interest rate The
Group occasionally uses forward foreign
currgncy contracts to manage transactional
currency risks ansing from the Group's
operations

It 15, and has been throughout the penod
under review, the Group's policy that no
trading in financial instruments shall be
undertaken

Foreign currency nsk and interest rate nsk
are the most significant aspecis for the
Group in the area of financal instruments

it 15 exposed to a lesser extent to hquidity
nsk The Board reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these nsks and they
are summarised below

Foreign currency risk

The Group, which 1s based In the UK

and reports in sierling has investments in
overseas operations in the Netherlands,
Ireland, USA, Canada, Australia, Malaysia
and Brazi that have functional currencies
other than sterling As a result the Group's
balance sheet and income statement can
be affected by movement in the exchange
rate between sterling and the functronal
currencies of overseas operations The
most important exchange rates as far

as the Group I1s concerned i1s the
Sterhng/Australian dollar rate

The fair value of the forward foreign
exchange contracts held at year end was
not matenal

The Group does not hedge balance sheet
and income statement translation exposures
Interest rate risk

The Group draws down short term loans,
that may be renewed, against its revolving

Classification of financial instruments
\

credit facility princpally in steriing at fixed
rates of interest for the term of the loan
The Group's overdraft bears interest at
floating rates Surplus funds are placed on
short-term deposit or held within accounts
bearing interest related to bank base rate

Liguidity risk

The Group has strong cash flow and the
funds generated by operating comparnes
are managed on a country basis The Group
also considers its long-term funding
requrements as part of the annual business
planning cycle Please see note |4 for
further detall of the Group's bank facilities

Credit nisk

The Group is mainly exposed to credit risk
from credit sales It s Group policy,
wnplermented locatly, to assess the credit risk
of new customers before enterng
contracts The Group does not enter mnto
complex dervatives to manage credit risk

Fair values

The far value of the financial assets and
habilities of the Group are considered to be
materiafly equivalent to their book value

2010 2009

£000s £000s
Cash 13,933 13,691
Trade and other recevables 158,766 139,247
Loans and other receivables 172,699 152,938
Bank loans 41,816 41,945
Trade and other payables 86,971 68678
Other financial liabilities 128,787 110,627
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28, Foreign currency risk

The table below shows the extent to which  own functional currency Foreign exchange income statement of the Group companies
Group companies have monetary assets differences ansing on the translation of during the year
and habihties in currencies other than their these assets and habilmes were taken to the

Net foreign currency monetary assets/{habilities) at 31 December 2010

Central
Norwegian  Australian African Russian  Canadian
Sterling furo  US Dollar Krone Dotlar Francs Roubles Dollars Other Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £8600s £000s £000s £000s
Functional currency of
Group operation
Sterlkng - (588) iy 343 203 147 327 278 453 1,274
Euro (8) - (8) - - - - - - (16)
Australian Dollar {236) 7 (280) - - - - (24) 12 (521)
Canadian Dollar 70 (10) 25 - - - - - - (56)
Malaysian Ringgit 20 - (161} - {159) - - - - (340)
Mongohan Tugrik (3) - 67 - 77 - - — - (13)
At 3| December 2010 (338) (5%1) (246) 343 (33) 147 327 254 465 328
Net foreign currency monetary assets/(liabilities) at 31 December 2009
Central
Norwegian  Australian African Russian  Canadian
Steriing Euro  US Dallar Krone Dollar Francs Roubles Dollars Cther Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Functional currency of
Group operation
Sterling - 12370 1,018 177 1,104 99 80 (1,045) (152) 13,651
Euro 90 - 2n - - - - - - 69
Australian Doltar (18n - 790 - - - - (28) 39 620
Canadian Dollar (252) (5) (8% - - - - - - {346)
Malaysian Ringgrt - - (246) - (36) - - - - {282)
At 3| December 2009 (343) 12365 1,452 |77 1,068 99 80 {1.073) (H13) 13712
Foreign currency sensitivity
The Group considers the volatility of currencies showed volatiities of up to currencies the impact would have been to
currency markets over the year to be 13% and 12% respectively If Sterling reduce Group profit before tax by £1 000
representative of the foreign currency sk it strengthened against these currencies by These movements would have had no
15 exposed to The main exposures the |3% and 2% the impact weould be to impact on Group equity and reserves
Group had at year end were Euros and increase Group profit before tax by £1,000
Norwegian Krone Over the year these If Sterling had weakened against these

rpsgroup.com




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

29. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk and profile of financial habilities and assets
The interest rate risk profile of the Group s financial labilities which at 31 December 2010 comprised deferred consideration finance lease
obligations and bank loans were as follows

Floating rate financial habilities Fixed rate financia) labilties Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Currency £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Steriing - - 17,219 7.509 17,219 7,508
Euro - - 24% | 567 249 |.567
Australizn Dollar 7,560 - 12,129 52,951 19,689 52951
Canachan Dollar - - 4,452 443 4,452 443
US Dollar - - 22,395 8925 22,395 8925
At 31 December 7,560 - 56,444 71,395 64,004 71,395
The maturity profile of financial labilities 1s as follows
Floating rate financial habibties Fixed rate financial habdities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £0G0s
Within one year 3,837 - 7,780 17454 11,617 17,454
In ene to tweo years 3,723 - 5,214 7,110 8,937 7110
In two 1o five years - - 43,450 46,831 43,450 46,831
7,560 ~ 56,444 71,395 64,004 71395
Financial habilities
Fixed rate financial habil:ties
Woeighted Weighted
Weighted Weghted average average
average average perniod for period for
nterest interest which rate which rate
rate rate 15 fixed 15 fixed
% % - months - months
Currency 2010 2009 2010 2009
Sterling 2.0 49 | 7
Euro 3.6 41 I 7
Australian Dollar 6.4 54 17 g
Canadian Dollar 11 I 4 18 |
US Dollar l.4 14 1 |
31 48 ] 7
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2010 2009
Currency £000s £000s
Sterling 3,571 (1.816)
Euro 1,409 8207
US Dollar 2,322 2,980
Awustralian Dollar 3,718 2,396
Canadian Dollar 1,672 1,559
Cther 1,241 365
At 3| December 13,933 13,691

Cash balances are held in ether non-interest beaning current accounts or instant access deposit accounts beanng floating rate interest

Borrowing facilities

The Group has the fallowing undrawn commutted barrowing facilities availzble in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met

The undrawn borrowing facilities comprise revolving credit facilities that expire between two and five years where interest costs are fixed
at the tme drawings are made Dunng 2010, the Group had an overdraft facility expiring within one year carrying floating rate interest

31 Dec 31 Dec

2010 2009

£000s £000s

Expiring in more than 2 years but not more than 5 years 83,936 76904

Interest rate sensitivity

The Group considers the volatility of interest rates over the year to be representative of the potential interest rate risk it 1s exposed to
Over 2010 the weighted average interest rate the Group pays have reduced by | 7% A | 7% decrease in interest rates would increase
Group profit before tax by £887,000 A further | 7% increase in interest rates would decrease Group profit before tax by £887,000
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30 Credit Risk

The Group's exposure to credrt risk 15 hrmited to the carrying arnount of financial assets recogrised at the balance sheet date, as

summansed below:

2010 2009
£000s £000s

Class of financial asset
Cash and cash eguvalents 13,933 13,691
Trade and other recewables 147,520 130,450
161,453 144,141

The directors consider the above financial
assets that are not impaired to be of good
credit quality including those that are past
due See note |12 for further detal on
recervables that are past due

None of the group’s assets are secured
by collateral

In respect of trade and other recewvables,
the group 15 not exposad to any significant
¢redit risk exposure 1o any single
counterparty or any group of
counterparties with similar ¢haractenstics

The credit risk for liquid funds 1s considered
negligble, since the counterparties are
reputable banks with high quality external
credit ratings and are supported by the
government

31. Share-based payments

In accordance with IFRS 2, the Group has
recognised an expense to the income
statement representing the farr value of
outstanding equity settled share based
payrnent awards to employees which have
not vested as at | January 2010 for the
period ended 31 December 2010

The Group has calculated the fair market
value of options using 2 binomial madel
and for whole share awards the fair value
has been based on the market value of
the shares at the date of grant adjusted
to take into account some of the terms
and conditions upon which the shares
were granted

Those far values were charged to the
Income statement over the relevant vesting
period adjusted to reflect actual and
expected vesting levels

The Group has not relied on the
exemption afforded under IFRS | to

exclude instruments granted before
7 November 2002

Prior to 2004, the Group granted options
and super aptions to employees under the
Executive Share Option Scheme ( ESOS™)
and Save as You Earn {' SAYE") scheme
Under the ESOS, share options are granted
at the market price on the date of grant
with the exercise of options subject to the
satisfaction of corporate performance
conditions and continuity of employment
provisions For SAYE options share options
are granted at the market price on the date
of grant Employees can exercise the SAYE
option at the end of their savings contract

Since 2004 the Group has incentivised and
motivated employees through the grant of
conditional share awards under the Long
Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP ") for Executive
Directors and other seruor directors, the
Performance Share Plan { PSP"}, for senior

managers and staff, and the Share Incentive
Plan (' SIP'), available to staff Under these
arrangements shares are granted at no cost
to the employee The release of shares
granted under the LTIP and PSP are subject
to the satisfaction of corporate
performance conditions and continuity of
employment provisions Share holder
approval has lapsed for the LTIP and
therefore no further grants will be made
under this plan, the LTIP and former annual
bonus plan have been replaced by the
Bonus Plan (see page 51) The release of
shares under the SIP are subject to
continuity of employment provisions

The following tables set out details of share
schemes actmity over the year from
I January 2010
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Weighted
Number Number average
Year of outstanding Grants outstanding exercise Vesung
grant 31 Dec 2009 New grants Exerased Lapsed replaced 31 Dec 2010 price conditions
2000 92,600 - (42,800) {49.800) - - 128p 3 or 5 years
2001 90,250 - (33,5C0) (6,500) - 50250 148p 3 or 5 years
2002 169,871 - (27.214) {14.792) - 127,865 14%9p 3 or 5 years
2003 503,760 - (81,789 {15559) - 406,412 I6p 3 or 5 years
2004 1,750 - - - - 1,750 118p 3 ymars
2008 315000 - - - - 315000 295p 3 years
2010 - 295000 - — - 295000 195p 3 years
1,173.231 295000 (185 303) {86,651) - 1,196,277
Weighted
average
exercise 173p 195p 129p 136p 187p
price
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise during the period was £2 16
Weighted
Number MNumber average
Year of outstanding Grants outstanding exercise Vesting
grant 31 Dec 2008 New grants Exercised Lapsed replaced 31 Dec 2009 price conditions
1999 19,500 - (18,000) (1.500) - - 73p 3 or 5 years
2000 140,600 - (49.000) {500) 1.500 92,600 128p 3 or 5 years
2001 36,500 - (8,000) (1 QOD) 2750 , 90250 66D 3 or 5 years
2002 240 347 - (62.976) (8,000) 500 169,871 |4%p 3or5 years
2003 695,744 - (175737 (16947) 700 503.760 1ip 3 or 5 years
2004 1,750 - - - - I 750 118p 3 years
2008 315,000 — — — - 315000 295p 3 years
1,509,441 - (313713 {27.947) 5.450 1,173,231
Weighted
average
exercse 162p 124p 122p 145p 173p
price
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise duning the period was £§ 99
SAYE
Number Nurmber
outstanding outstanding Exeruse Vesting
Year of grant 3§ Dec 2009 Exercised Lapsed 31 Dec 2010 pnce conditions
2003 - - - - — 3 or 5 vears
Number Number
outstanding outstanding Exeruise Vesting
Year of grant 31 Dec 2008 Exercised Lapsed 31 Dec 2009 price conditions
2003 42,508 {}+.000) {41,508} — 147p 3 or 5 years
42 508 {1.000) {41,508} -
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31. Share-based payments continued

LTIP
Number Number
outstanding outstanding Vesting
Year of grant 31 Dec 2002 New grants Releases Forferts 31 Dec 2010 conditions
2007 347,987 - (347 987) - - 3 years
2008 285,095 - - - 285095 3 years
2009 638,188 - — - 638 188 3 years
1,271,270 — {347,987) — 923,283
Number Number
outstanding outstandimg Vesting
Year of grant 3| Dec 2008 New grants Releases Forferts 31 Dec 2009 conditions
2006 386955 - (386955) - - 3 years
2007 347987 - - - 347987 3 years
2008 323804 - - (38,709) 285095 3 years
2009 - 721,812 = (83 624) 638,188 3 years
1,058 746 721,812 (386,355) (122,333) 1,271,270
Based on current performance it 1s not expected that the LTIP awards made in 2008 and 2009 will vest
PSP
Number Number
outstanding Grants outstanding Vesung
Year of grant 31 Dec 2009 New grants replaced Releases Lapses 31 Dec 2C10 conditions
2005 - - G443 (5.443) - - 3 years
2006 12,044 - - (7.748) - 4,296 3 years
2007 430,191 - - (336,467) (39 626) 54,098 2 or 3 years
2008 100901 - - (9048) (33.057) 58796 | 2 or 3 years
2009 | 494 634 - - (15,496) (190,535) | 288603 3 y=ars
2010 - 38453 - - - 38453 3 years
2037770 38,453 9,443 {378,202) (263218) 1,444,246
Number Number
outstanding Grants outstanding Vesting
Year of grant 31 Dec 2008 New grants replaced Releases Lapses 31 Dec 2009 conditions
2005 9,869 - - (9.869) - - 3 years
2006 3391011 - - (308 064) {13003) 12,044 3 years
2007 519,161 - - {65,098} (23.872) 430,191 2 or 3 years
2008 108,387 - - (978) (6 508) 100901 1,2 or 3 years
2009 - 1,520,898 - (7972} {18,292} | 494634 3 years
976,528 1,520,898 — (321,981) (67,675) 2,037770
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SIP
MNumber Number
outstanding outstanding Vesung
Year of grant 31 Dec 2009 New grants Releases Forfeits 31 Dec 2010 conditions
2006 15372 - (15.372) - - 3 years
2007 233,860 - (221,074) {12,786) - 3 years
2008 554,101 - (28.493) {39.506) 486 102 3 years
2009 599,828 - (24.615) (44 662) 530,551 3 years
2010 - 635219 (7,234) (19.333) 608,652 3 years
1,403,161 635219 (296,788) (116287) 1,625,305
Number Number
outstanding outstanding Vesting
Year of grant 3] Dec 2008 New grants Releases Forfeits 31 Dec 2009 conditions
2005 3539 - (100) (3439) - 3 years
2006 301,828 - (5.754) (260,702) 15,372 3 years
2007 272241 - (9 306) {29075) 233,860 3 years
2008 643794 - (23.244) (66,449} 554 101 3 years
2009 - 639,297 (12,525) {26 944) 599,828 3 years
1,221,402 63%297 (56.929) (406,609 1,403,16)

Share Options and SAYE Options

The farr values of the above equity
instruments have been determined
using the following cntena

Share Options

Share price on grant 111 -29525p
Expected volatlity 268% - 393%
Expected Ife 3 or5 years
Expected dividend yield | 45% - 201%
Risk-free interest rate 28%-52%
Fair value at

measurement date 330ip -9422p
Weighted fair value 4342p

The volatility has been based on the annualised
average of the standard deviations of the dally
historical continuously compounded returns

of the Group s share price over the most
appropnate penod from the date of grant

The risk-free rate of interest was assumed
to be the yield to maturity on a UK Gilt
strip with the term to maturity equal to the
expected lfe of the option

The expected dvdend yeld 1s an estimate
of the dwvidend yield at the date of grant for
the duration of the option’s Iife

LTIP
For LTIP awards with an earnings per share
performance condition, the fair value has

been calculated as the market value of the
shares on the date of grant adjusted to
reflect the fact that a participant s not
entitled to recewe dividends over the three
year performance period

LTIP awards
Far value at
measurement date 13363p - 30t 25p
Weighted fair value 18553p
Helding period 3 years
Expected dividend yield 095% - 238%

PSP

For the purposes of calculating the far
value of conditonal shares awarded under
the PSP the fair value was calcdlated as the
market value of the shares at the date of
grant adjusted to reflect the fact that a
participant 1s not entitled to receve
dvidends over the performance pernod

the SIF the fair value was calculated as the
market value of the shares at the date of
grant Participants are entitled to recewve
dividends over the three year holding
period therefore no adjustment was macde
to the market value

SIP awards

Fair value at

measurement date 126 00p - 33575p

Weighted fair value 19331p

Holding pencd 3 years

During the year ended 31 December
2010 the Group recognised expense of
£1 626,000 related to the far value of the
share based payment arrangements (year
ended 3| December 2009 £3,280 000)

In determining the charge to the income
statement the Group made the following
assumptions with regard to annual lapse
rates as at the date of grant

PSP awards
Far value at Share scheme Annual lapse rate
measurement date 13001p - 20258p ESOS 0%
Weighted far value 165 36p LTIP 0%
Holding penod 3 years PSP 5%
Expected dmdend yield 09%-244% 9P 10%

SIP
For the purposes of calculating the fair
value of condtional shares awarded under

In addition, the Group estimated that all
non-market based performance conditions
would be satisfied in full
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32. Events after the balance
sheet date

Evans-Hamilion Incorporated

The Group completed the acquisiion of
100% of the 1ssued share capital of Evans-
Hamitton incorporated, a US-based
oceanographic consulting firm, on

8 February 2011 for a maximum cash
cash consideration of US$8 67 million
(£55 million})

In the financial year ended 31 December
2010 Evans-Hamilton In¢ had revenues of
US$7 5 million (£4 7 millien) and profit
before tax of US$ | 4 million (£02 million)
after adjustment for non-recurring tems
Net assets at 31 December 2010 were
US30 6 millien (£0 4 milion) after adjusting
for assets excluded from the transaction
Cn the same basis gross assets at

31 December 2010 were US$3 75 million
(£24 million) Net debt at 31 Decemnber
2010 was USE1 5 million (£1 O miflion)
inibal consideration of US34 67 milion
{£3 0 million) has been paid

Subject to certain operational conditions
being met, two further sums of US$20
midhion (£1 3millon) will be paid on the first
and second anniversanies of the transacticn

The Nautilus Group

The Group completed the acquistion 100%
of the 1ssued share capital of Nautilus Ltc
and Nautilus World Ltd (together “Nautilus )
a UKAJS based business providing
geoscences and petroleum engineering
traning to the ol and gas industry on

2 March 201 I, for a maximum cash
consideration of £18 6 milion

in the year ended 31 December 2G10
Nautilus had revenues of £102 millicn

and profit before tax of £3 | millon, after
adjustmenit for non-recurnng items Net
assets at 31 December 2010 were £1 2
million, after adjusting for assets excluded
from the transaction On the same basis,
gross assets at 3| December 2010 were £68
milllon The business has no significant debt.

Since these acquisitions were completed on
18 February 2011 and 2 March 2011 1t s
not practicable to provide the remaining
information required by IFRS 3

Consideration paid at completion was
£106 million Subject to certan operational
conditions being met, three further surns of
£28 million, £27 millon and £2 6 milhon
will be paid on the first three anniversaries
of the transacticn

33. Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had
contingent labilities in respect of contractual
performance guarantees and other matters
entered inte for or on behalf of certain
Group undertakings It 1s not expected that
any material hability will anse in respect
thereof, and the Directors estimate that the
fair value of such guarantees 1s not matera
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Parent Company Balance Sheet

As at Ag at
31 Dec 3t Dec
2010 2009
Note £000s £000s
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 3 778 844
Tangible assets 4 1,241 2,469
Investments 5 234,259 192,132
236,278 {95,445
Current assets
Debtors 6 48,125 77473
Cash at bank and in hand 273 3,115
48,398 80588
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 7 25,986 28,115
Provisions for labilities g 16 _
26,002 28,115
Net current assets 22,396 52,473
Total assets less current habilities 258,674 247918
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 8 41,064 40931
Prowisions for labilties g 59 52
Net assets 217,551 206,935
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 1,12 6516 6,457
Share premium account 12 101,941 98,238
Profit and loss reserve 12 93,710 85,940
Other reserves 12 15,384 16300
Shareholders’ funds 217,551 206,935

These finanoial statements were approved ghd authonsed for ssue by the Board on 2 March 201 |

The notes on pages 108 to !4 form partfof these financal statements

Dr Alan Hearne, Director
Gary Young, Director
On behalf of the Board of RPS Group

rpsgroup com




Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements

1.Accounting policies

The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost
convention as modified by the revaluation
of certain assets and are in accordance with
applicable UK accounting standards The
following principal accounting policies have
been applied

Goodwilf

Goodwill arsing on the acquisition of
businesses, representing any excess of the
fair value of the consideration given over
the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired 15 capitalised Purchased
goodwill s wntten off on a straight line
basis over its useful economic life of

up to 20 years

Voluation of investments

Investments held as fixed assets are stated
at cost less any provision for impairment
in value

Tangible fixed assets

Tangble fixed assets are stated at cost or
valuation, net of depreciation and any
provision for impairment

Depreciation 1s provided to write off the
cost, fess estmated residual values, of all
tangible fixed assets excluding freehold
land, over therr expected useful lives

It 1s calculated at the following rates

Freehold buildings 5Q years
Alterations to

leasehold premises Lfe of lease
Motor vehicles 4 years
Fixtures fittings

IT and equipment 3 to 8 years

Revaoluation of properties

The Company has taken advantage of the
transitional arrangements in FRS (5
Tangble Fixed Assets” and retaned the
book values of certain freehold properties
that were revalued prior to implementation
of that standard Where an asset that was
previously revalued s disposed of its book
value 1s eliminated and an appropnate
transfer made from the revaluation reserve
to the profit and loss reserve

Leased assets and assets held under hire
purchase contracts

Where assets are financed by hire purchase
or leasing agreements that gve rights
approximating to ownership (finance
leases), the assets are treated as if they had
been purchased outright The amount
capitahised 15 the present value of the
minimum lease payments payable duning
the lease term The corresponding leasing
commitments are shown as amounts
payable to the lessor Depreciation on the
relevant assets 1s charged to the profit and
loss account

Lease payments are spht between capital
and interest using the actuanal method and
the nterest element 1s charged to the profit
and loss account

All other leases are treated as operating
leases Their annual rentals are charged to
the profit and loss account on a straight
line basis aver the lease term

Forewgn currency transiation

Foreign currency transactions are translated
at the rates ruling when they accurred
Foreign currency monetary assets and
habilties are translated at the rates ruling
at the balance sheet date

Pension costs

Contributions to the Company's defined
contribution pension schemes are charged
to the profit and loss account in the year in
which they become payable

Share based employee remuneration

The Company has applied FRS 20 Share-
based payment’ to all share options and
condrtional share awards which were
granted to employees and had not vested
at | |anuary 2005 A charge 15 recognised
on the same basis as that recognised for
the Group under IFRS 2 (see page [03)
Where the Company will be 1ssuing shares
to satisfy share awards made by its
subsidiaries, the Company records a captal
contnbution equal to the far value of the
share-based payment incurred by its
subsidiaries except to the extent that the
subsidiaries reimburse the Company

Toxation

Current tax, including UK corporation tax 1s
provided at amounts expected to be paig
{or recovered) using the tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the batance sheet date

Deferred tax 15 recognised in respect of
timing differences that have originated but
not reversed at the balance sheet date
where transactions or events that result in
an obligation to pay more tax in the future
or a right to pay less tax in the future have
occurred at the balance sheet date Timing
differences are differences between the
Company’s taxable profits and its results as
stated in the financial statements that arse
from the inclusion of gains and losses N tax
assessments in periods different from those
in which they are recognised in the
financal statements

A net deferred tax asset s regarded as
recoverable and therefore recognised only
when, on the basis of all avalable ewdence, it
can be regarded as more hkely than not that
there wilt be suitabfe taxable profits from
which the future reversal of the underlyng
tming differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 15 not recognised when fixed
assets are sold and 1t 1s more lkely than not
that the taxable gain will be rolled over,
being charged to tax only if and when the
replacement assets are sold

Deferred tax is measured at the average
tax rates that are expected to apply i the
penods in which the timing differences are
expected to reverse, based on tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-
discounted basis

Empiloyee Share Ownership Plan (ESOP)

In accordance with UITF 32 the assets
income and expenditure of the ESOP Trust
are incorporated into the Company
Financial Statements

Financial instruments

Dhsclosures on finanaal instruments have not
been included in the Company's financial
statements as 1ts consolidated financial
statements include appropriate disclosures
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Financial assets Trade debtors and other recevables are Finanaal iabilities
recogrused at far value on inception and are
subsequently carned at amortised cost. They
are subject to impairment tests whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that their carrying value may not be
recoverable Impamrment losses are taken to
the profit and loss account as incurred

Amounts held at amortised cost
Trade creditors and other payables

Loans and recevables

Loans and recevables are non-dervative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted n an

active market. carned at amortised cost

2 Profit attributable to shareholders
No profit and loss account 1s provided for the Parent Company as allowed by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006

including bank loans are recognised at far
value on nception and are subsequently

Year Year
ended ended
31 Dec 31 Dec
2010 2009
£000s £000s
Profit for the year attnbutable to the shareholders of the Parent Company,
dealt with in the accounts of the Parent Company 16,002 70,527
The remuneration of the auditors for the statutory audit of the Company was £33,000 (2009 £37,000)
3. Intangibte Assets
Goodwll
£000s
Cost
At ! January 2010 and at 3| December 2010 2,134
Amortisation
At | January 2010 1,230
Charge for the year 66
At 31 December 2010 1,356
Net book value at 31 December 2010 778
Net book value at 3| December 2009 844
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4 Tangible Assets

Fixtures,
Freehold Alterations fittings
land and to leasehold IT and
buildings premuses equipment Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Cost or valuation
At | January 2010 2,044 162 3726 5932
Transfers 150 (150 62 62
Additions - - 639 639
Disposals (1762) - — (1,762)
At 31 December 2010 432 12 4,427 4,871
Depreciation
At | January 2010 484 27 2952 3463
Transfers 18 (17 59 60
Provided for the year 29 2 431 462
Disposals (355) - - (355)
At 3] December 2010 176 12 3,442 3,630
Net book value at 31 December 2010 256 - 985 1,241
Net book value at 31 December 2009 1,560 135 774 2,469
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5. Investments

Accounts

Shares are held directly by RPS Group Plc except where marked by an asterisk where they are held by a subsidiary undertaking

All trading subsidiaries provide environmental consultancy services

20010 2009

£000s £000s
Subsidiary undertalangs
Cost
At | January 192,970 178,108
Additions 42,127 14,862
At 31 December 235,097 192,970
Provisions
At | January 2010 and 31 Decernber 2010 838 838
Net book value at 31 December 234,259 192,132

During 2010 RPS Group Plc converted £42,127 000 of its long term intercompany debt with the Australian sub group into equity in the

Australian Holding Company

Additions in 2009 relate to restructuning of the USA companies and represent RPS Group Plc's cost of mvestment in the US Holding

Company

Subsidiary undertakings
The following were the principal operating subsidianes during the year
Country of

Proportion of

registration and operaticn  ordinary share capital held

The Environmental Consultancy Limited England 100%

RPS Consuttants (UK) Limited (formerly RPS Water Services Limited) England 100%

RPS Energy Limited England 100%

RPS Energy Consultants Limited England 1 009%*
RPS Health in Business Limrted England 1 00%6*
RPS Ireland Limited Northern Ireland 1 00%*
RPS Groep BY Netherlands 100%

RPS Advies BV Netherlands | Q0%
RPS Analyse BV Netherlands 100%*
RPS BCC BV MNetherlands | 00%:*
RPS Kraan Consulting BV Netherfands 1 00%6*
RPS Kraan Detachering BV Netherlands H00%*
RPS Group Limited Ireland 1 00%*
RPS Engineering Services Limited Ireland §00%*
RPS Planning & Environment Lirnited Irefand 100%*
RPS Consulting Engineers Limited Irefand 100%*
RPS Consultants Pty Limited Awustrala 100%*
RPS Energy Pty Limited Australia 100%*
RPS Envirenment Pty Limrted Australha 100%*
Harper Somers O'Sullivan Pty Limited Australia 100%*
MetOcean Engineers Pty Limited Awustralia | 00%*
RPS Australia East Pty Ltd Australia | 00%%*
Agquaterra Consulting Pty Limited Awustralia 1 0C%s*
Cambnan Consultants (CC) America Inc USA H00%*
RPS JD Consufting Inc USA [ 00%*
RPS Energy Canada Limited Canada L00%*
Geoprojects Canada Limited Canada 10096
Boyd Expioration Consultants Limited Canada 100%*
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements continued

6 Debtors
31 Dec 31 Dec
2010 2009
£000s £000s
Trade debtors 7 26
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 45,400 755186
QOther debtors 365 469
Corporation tax 1 161
Deferred tax 460 713
Prepayments and accrued ncome 1,892 588
48,125 77,473
All amounts fall due for payment within one year
7. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
31 Dec 31 Dec
2010 2009
£000s £000s
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 23,094 25744
Deferred consideration - 488
Trade creditors 1,154 |88
Other creditors 349 418
Accruals 1,389 1,277
25,986 28115
The liability in respect of deferred consideration 1s due to the vendors of acquired businesses
8. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
31 Dec 31 Dec
2010 2009
£000s £000s
Bank loans 41,064 40931
Due as follows
After two years and within five years 41,064 40931
41,064 40931
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9 Provision for liabilities

Accounts

Dilapidations
£000s
As at | fanuary 2010 52
Additional provision in the year 23
As at 3| December 2010 75
2010 2009
£000s £000s
Due as foltows
Within one year 16 -
After more than one year 59 52
75 52
The provision made in the year relates to leasehold property reinstatement obligations
10. Deferred taxation
Movement on deferred taxation
31 Dec 31 Dec
2010 2009
£000s £0C0s
Net asset at beginning of year 7i3 469
(Charge)/credit to income for the year (253) 244
Net asset at year end 440 713
Deferred taxation balances comprise
31 Dec 31 Dec
2010 2009
£000s £000s
Short term timing differences 222 496
Depreciation In excess of capital allowances 238 217
Deferred tax asset 460 713

I 1. Share capital

Ordinary shares of 3p each
At | january 2010
At 31 December 2010

Authonsed

Value

Number £000s
240,000,000 7,200
240,000,000 7.200

Allotted and fully paid

Value

Number £000s
215247277 6,457
217,218,591 6516

Full details of the share capital of the Company are disclosed in Note |19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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I 2. Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

Employee

Share Share Merger Revaluation trust  Profit and

capal  premium reserve reserve shares loss reserve Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
At | January 2009 6399 95531 20,079 32 (3583) 22079 140537
Issue of new shares 58 2707 608 - (836)  (1,536) 1001
Share based payment expense - - - - - 3,280 3280
Retained profit for the year - - - - - 70527 70527
Dwadend paid - - — - - (8,410} (8410)
At 31 December 2009 6,457 98238 20,687 32 (4419 85940 206,935
Issue of new shares 59 3703 569 - {1483) (2.036) BIO
Share based payment expense - - - - - 1 626 1626
Retained profit for the year - - - - - 17890  17.8%0
Dwvidend paid - - - - - (3.7100 (9,710
At 3| December 2010 6,516 101,941 21,256 32 (5,904) 93,710 217,551
13. Dividends

Full detalls of davidends paid by the Company are disclosed in Note 21 of the Consolidated Financial Statements

14, Commitments under operating leases

At 3| December 2010 the Company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as set out below

tand and buildings Other
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2010 2009 2010 2009
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Operating feases which expire
Within one year 90 240 16 83
In two to five years 308 514 62 51
After five years - 14 - -
398 768 78 |34

15, Directors’ interests In transactions

Directors emoluments were paid by RPS Group Plc and they are disclosed in the Remuneraton Report Apart from these, there were no

transactions during the year in which the Directors had any interest
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Five Year Summary

Accounts

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Revenue 461,830 443,909 470,465 362674 296,843
Fee income 393,262 374351 392096 305108 246,011
Profit from operations before tax and amortisation 47,993 52472 57512 45,010 34719
Net bank debt (31,537) (32.763) (28,555) (32630) (30.129)
Net assets 344,993 313468 287,607 227534 186,934
Cash generated from operating activities 57.874 70,583 67,386 45,393 40,663
Average number of employees 4,422 4254 4,438 4093 3428
Dwvidend per share 4.83p 420p 366p 318p 276p
Adjusted basic EPS 15.79p 1708p 1892p 1517p 1201p
Adjusted diluted EPS 15.69p 16 87p 18 66p 1495p 11 74p

The Five Year Summary does not form part of the audited financial statements
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